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The Group sponsored 
sportswear to the CSD in 

Winter Olympic Games,
Youth Olympic Games,
Asian Games and Asian Beach 
Games in 2010. 
We are proud to provide 
high-quality gear for them 
in these international games.

 International games held in 2009

 International games held in 2010

 International games to be held in 2011 and 2012

The 3rd Asian Indoor Games 
November 2009

Hanoi, Vietnam

The 5th 
East Asian Games
December 2009

Hong Kong SAR, China

The 1st 
Asian Youth Games

July 2009

Singapore

The 1st 
Youth Olympic Games

August 2010

Singapore

The 21st 
Winter Olympic Games
February 2010  

Vancouver, Canada

The 2nd 
Asian Beach Games 

December 2010

Muscat, Oman

The 16th 
Asian Games  
November 2010  

Guangzhou, China

The 30th 
Summer Olympic Games
 27 July to 12 August 2012 

London, United Kingdom

The 3rd 
Asian Beach Games  
August 2012

Haiyang, China

The 1st 
Winter Youth Olympic Games 

January 2012 

Innsbruck, Austria

The 7th 
Asian Winter Games

February 2011 

Almaty, Kazakhstan
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GROUP STRUCTURE

Anta 
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Anta 
International (BVI)
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Anta 
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

Notes:
(1) Return on average total shareholders’ equity is equal to the profit attributable to the equity shareholders divided by the average balance of total 

shareholders’ equity.
(2) Return on average total assets is equal to the profit attributable to the equity shareholders divided by the average balance of total assets.
(3) Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average balance of inventories divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days in the 

relevant year.
(4) Average trade receivables turnover days is equal to the average balance of trade receivables divided by the turnover and multiplied by the number of 

days in the relevant year.
(5) Average trade payables turnover days is equal to the average balance of trade payables divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of 

days in the relevant year.

Year ended 31 December 2010 2009 Changes

    (RMB million) (RMB million) (%)

Turnover 7,408.3 5,874.6  26.1

Gross profit 3,170.6 2,472.9  28.2

Profit from operations 1,736.8 1,394.8  24.5

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1,551.1 1,250.9  24.0

Free cash inflow 1,269.0 1,156.8   9.7

(RMB cents) (RMB cents) (%)

Earnings per share

 – Basic 62.21 50.23  23.9

 – Diluted 62.04 50.09  23.9

Shareholders’ equity per share 227.68 203.84  11.7

(HK cents) (HK cents) (%)

Dividend per share

 – Interim 20 12

 – Final 25 12

 – Special – 11

45 35  28.6

(%) (%) (% points)

Gross profit margin 42.8 42.1   0.7

Operating profit margin 23.4 23.7   0.3

Margin of profit attributable to equity shareholders 20.9 21.3   0.4

Effective tax rate 16.1 13.6   2.5

Advertising and promotional expenses (as a percentage of turnover) 13.6 12.7   0.9

Staff costs (as a percentage of turnover) 8.9 9.1   0.2

R&D costs (as a percentage of cost of sales) 3.2 3.0   0.2

As at 31 December 2010 2009 Changes

(%) (%) (% points)

Average total shareholders’ equity to average total assets 81.8 86.6   4.8

Return on average total shareholders’ equity(1) 28.8 26.2   2.6

Return on average total assets(2) 23.6 22.6   1.0

(days) (days) (days)

Average inventory turnover days(3) 36 38      2

Average trade receivables turnover days(4) 19 16      3

Average trade payables turnover days(5) 36 35      1
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Healthy growth in ASP and volume

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

 Financial 
performance

• Turnover increased by 26.1% to RMB7.41 billion

• Gross profi t margin increased by 0.7% points to 42.8%

• Profi t attributable to shareholders increased by 24.0% to 

RMB1,551.1 million

• Basic earnings per share has an increase of 23.9% to 

RMB62.21 cents

• 62.1% payout of the 2010 profi t attributable to equity 

shareholders

• Free cash infl ow increased by 9.7% to RMB1,269.0 million

 Operational 
 performance

• Number of ANTA stores reached 7,549, a net increase of 958 

ANTA stores

• Total sales fl oor area of ANTA stores increased by 23.5%, to 

approximately 872,000 sq.m.

• Average sales fl oor area per ANTA store increased from 107 

sq.m. to 116 sq.m.

• ASP (wholesale price) increased by 4.0% to RMB99.5 for 

footwear and increased by 8.8% to RMB65.8 for apparel

• Volume increased by 10.9% to 38.4 million pairs of footwear and 

increased by 27.1% to 50.6 million pieces of apparel

This Annual Report 2010 contains certain forward-looking statements 

with respect to the fi nancial conditions, results of operations and business 

of the Group. These forward-looking statements represent the Group’s 

expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known 

and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, 

performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied in 

such statements. Certain statements, that include wordings like “potential”, 

“estimated”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “objective”, “intends”, “plans”, 

“believes”, “estimates”, and similar expressions or variations on such 

expressions may be considered “forward-looking statements”.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties. Readers 

should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual results 

to differ in some instances materially, from those anticipated or implied in 

any forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements speak only at 

the date they are made, and it should not be assumed that they have been 

reviewed or updated in the light of new information or future events. Trends 

and factors that are expected to affect the Group’s results of operations are 

described in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Cautionary Statement Regarding 
Forward-Looking Statements
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2010

(RMB’000)

Gross profit 3,170,554

Non-current assets 1,309,436

Current assets 5,745,055

Current liabilities 1,163,393

Net current assets/(liabilities) 4,581,662

Total assets 7,054,491

Total assets less current liabilities 5,891,098

Non-current liabilities 160,366

Total liabilities 1,323,759

Non-controlling interests 52,701

Shareholders’ equity 5,678,031

(RMB cents)

Basic earnings per share 62.21

Diluted earnings per share 62.04

Shareholders’ equity per share 277.68

(HK cents)

Dividends per ordinary share

– Interim 20.0

– Final 25.0

– Special –

(%)

Effective tax rate 16.1

Advertising and promotional expenses
 (as a percentage of turnover)

13.6

Staff costs (as a percentage of turnover) 8.9

R&D costs (as a percentage of cost of sales) 3.2

Return on average total shareholders’ equity(1) 28.8

Return on average total assets(1) 23.6

Average total shareholders’ equity
 to average total assets

81.8

Debt to shareholders’ equity ratio(2) 23.3

(days)

Average inventory turnover days(1) 36

Average trade receivables turnover days(1) 19

Average trade and bills payables turnover days(1) 36

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

RMB million

0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

1,000

3,000

2,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

9,000

7,408.3

5,874.6

4,626.8

2,988.7

1,250.1

Turnover

%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

10

30

20

23.423.7

20.1

16.0

11.8

Operating profi t margin

RMB million

0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

200

600

400

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,800

1,600 1,551.1

1,250.9

894.8

537.8

147.4

Profi t Attributable to 

Equity Shareholders

nn

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

7,549

6,591

5,667

4,716
4,108

Number of ANTA Stores

Unit

0

4,000

2,000

1,000

3,000

6,000

5,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

Profit from operations 1,736,811

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1,551,113

Operating profit margin 23.4

Gross profit margin 42.8

Margin of profit attributable to equity shareholders 20.9

8,000

Notes:
(1) Please refer to notes on page 4 of the annual report for the definitions 

of return on average total shareholders’ equity, return on average total 
assets, average inventory turnover days, average trade receivables 
turnover days and average trade and bills payables turnover days.

Turnover 7,408,309



Annual Report 2010  ANTA Sports Products Limited 7

2009 2008 2007 2006

(RMB’000)  (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

2,472,894 1,848,573 999,907 313,228

1,193,651 592,464 494,789 265,166

4,909,755 4,350,018 4,135,949 591,189

872,460 461,610 480,044 618,444

4,037,295 3,888,408 3,655,905 (27,255)

6,103,406 4,942,482 4,630,738 856,355

5,230,946 4,480,872 4,150,694 237,911

93,618 – – –

966,078 461,610 480,044 618,444

57,389 – – –

5,079,939 4,480,872 4,150,694 237,911

(RMB cents) (RMB cents) (RMB cents) (RMB cents)

50.23 35.94 25.26 8.19

50.09 35.86 25.21 N/A

203.84 179.95 166.69 13.22

(HK cents) (HK cents) (HK cents) (HK cents)

12.0 10.0 – –

12.0 10.0 8.0 –

11.0 8.0 – –

(%) (%) (%) (%)

13.6 7.3 10.1 0.4

12.7 13.8 12.4 8.3

9.1 7.0 7.1 6.8

3.0 3.0 2.5 0.5

26.2 20.7 24.5 84.5

22.6 18.7 19.6 22.6

86.6 90.2 80.0 26.8

19.0 10.3 11.6 259.9

(days) (days) (days) (days)

38 43 44 42

16 15 14 19

35 39 51 61

Thousand sq.m

0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

300

200

100

500

400

600

700

800

900

1,000

872

706

571

434

329

Total Sales Floor 

Area of ANTA Stores

Gross Profi t Margin

%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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42.842.1
40.0

25.1

Margin of Profi t 
Attributable to Equity 
Shareholders

%

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

10

20

30

20.921.3
19.3

11.8

1,394,777 930,659 479,256 147,280

1,250,941 894,791 537,793 147,417

23.7 20.1 16.0 11.8

42.1 40.0 33.5 25.1

21.3 19.3 18.0 11.8

RMB million

0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

200

600

400

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,800

2,000

1,736.8

1,394.8

930.7

479.3

147.3

Profi t from Operations

1,600

Notes:
(2) At each financial year end, debt to shareholders’ equity ratio is 

equal to total liabilities over the shareholders’ equity.

5,874,596 4,626,782 2,988,723 1,250,142

18.0

33.5
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ANTA News Centre

ANTA NEWS CENTRE

Greater Market Recognition for Improved A-Jelly 
Technology
May to August 2010

The Group has optimised the application of upgraded A-Jelly technology from semi-

shoe sole to whole shoe sole. The enhancement was widely applauded by sports 

enthusiasts. A-Jelly, a biodegradable and shock absorbing material, enhances the 

stability and comfort of our performance-based footwear. To better promote the 

A-Jelly technology among the public, a series of marketing campaigns using TVC and 

POP was launched, which was extremely well received by the market.

ANTA Sports Endorsed Athletes Achieved Best Ever 
Results in 2010 Winter Olympics
February 2010

ANTA Sports’ endorsed athletes, including Shen Xue, Zhao Hongbo and Zhou Yang, 

won 3 gold and 2 silver medals in the Vancouver 2010 Winter Olympic Games. Their 

achievements contributed to the best showing ever by Chinese athletes in the history 

of the games with a total of 5 gold, 2 silver and 4 bronze medals. Members of the CSD 

were dressed in ANTA-design outfit in the opening ceremony.

COC Partnership an Effective Promotion Platform for 
ANTA Sports
May 2010

ANTA Sports cooperated with the COC and its Internet service partner, Sina, to 

launch the “ANTA • China Sports” channel, stepping up a closer partnership among 

the three parties on a wide range of marketing and sporting initiatives. The Group also 

partnered with the COC in the “26th China International Sporting Goods Show” in 

Beijing to showcase the latest sportswear designed by ANTA for the CSD.

ANTA Sports Pledged Full Support for China’s 
“Sports for All” Campaign in Olympic Day Run
June 2010

ANTA Sports pledged its full support for the COC’s “Sports for All” movement with 

its participation in the 24th Olympic Day Run event. The event was hosted in 9 cities, 

attracting nearly 20,000 runners to participate and live the Olympic spirit. A number 

of ANTA Sports’ endorsed winter sports athletes, including Li Nina, Zhang Dan and 

Zhang Hao, marathon runner Chen Rong as well as CBA players Liu Xiaoyu and Ji 

Zhe also joined ANTA Sports’ employees in the run to demonstrate their support.

ANTA Sports Recognised for Leading Market Position 
and Brand Value
March and July 2010

ANTA Sports was named the top travel and sports footwear brand for the 9th year 

by the China General Chamber of Commerce and the China National Commercial 

Information Center. The Group also claimed the “Best Value Award” in the “6th China 

National Garment Association Award”. Furthermore, ANTA Sports was first included 

in Forbes China’s “2010 China Most Valuable Brands Top 50”.
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ANTA News Centre

ANTA NEWS CENTRE

ANTA Sports Included in Hang Seng Corporate 
Sustainability Index
July 2010

ANTA Sports is the only sportswear company included in the Hang Seng Corporate 

Sustainability Index Series by Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited. The inclusion not 

only is a recognition by the capital market, but also a significant endorsement of the 

Company’s commitment and efforts to enhance corporate sustainability.

ANTA Sports Opened the 7,000th Store
June 2010

ANTA Sports opened its 7,000th store in Jiangsu. The milestone opening was part of 

ANTA Sports’ progressive store opening strategy in prime locations to enhance brand 

image and to meet a growing demand for ANTA’s differentiated products. It also 

signifies an expansion of the Group’s sustainable and healthy distribution network.

ANTA Sports Added Basketball Superstar Kevin 
Garnett to List of Endorsed Players
August and December 2010

NBA superstar Kevin Garnett joined Luis Scola to form the strongest endorsement 

portfolio for the Group and enhances ANTA’s brand influence in the basketball market 

in China. Kevin Garnett’s popularity brought groups of welcoming fans in his “Love 

China” tour. He has also appeared in NBA games wearing ANTA basketball shoes 

“KG1”. The Group has rolled out marketing campaigns featuring Kevin Garnett to 

celebrate the launch of “KG” sportswear series.

ANTA Sports Outfit Worn by the CSD in Asian Games 
Victory Ceremonies
November 2010

The CSD won a record number of 199 golds, 119 silvers and 98 bronzes in the 

Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games. Hundreds of Chinese medalists were dressed in 

ANTA-designed outfit in victory ceremonies in front of cheering home crowds. The 

CSD’s outstanding performance offered ANTA significant exposure. High-profile 

marketing campaigns was also launched to bring the public closer to ANTA and the 

event. All these have helped strengthen ANTA’s symbolic role in China’s sports industry.

Basketball Star Player Luis Scola Revisited China to 
Meet Fans
May – June 2010

ANTA Sports’ endorsed NBA player Luis Scola met with fans and basketball lovers 

on his second China tour, entitled “Road to Glory”. Scola visited 5 cities on the tour 

including Beijing, Harbin, Shanghai, Nanjing and Guangzhou. He also promoted the 

sport by coaching young players in the CUBA training camp and various other events.



OUR ENDORSED PLAYER LUIS SCOLA



ROAD TO

GLORY
We firmly believe brand equity value to be 
the basis of our business decision making 
and the core values to be maintained by 
ANTA Sports’ people.
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CHAIRMAN’S BLOG

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of ANTA Sports Products Limited, I 

am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the 

year ended 31 December 2010.

Provident Strategies Sustain Our 
Healthy Growth Momentum

Looking back on the market environment in 2010, the 

economy has recovered after the global financial crisis. The 

surge in disposable income and domestic consumption 

continued to fuel the growth of the sportswear industry. 

Although industry participants have delivered mixed 

performances, the Group was able to achieve strong and 

healthy growth and deliver a set of impressive financial and 

operational results by leveraging our competitive strengths 

and effective development strategies. During the year, 

the Group’s turnover increased by 26.1% to RMB7.41 

billion (2009: RMB5.87 billion). Profit attributable to equity 

shareholders rose 24.0% to RMB1.55 billion (2009: 

RMB1.25 billion). Basic earnings per share were RMB62.21 

cents (2009: RMB50.23 cents). The Board proposed to 

declare a final dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share 

(2009 final dividend: HK12 cents; 2009 special dividend: 

HK11 cents) which, together with an interim dividend 

of HK20 cents per ordinary share (2009: HK12 cents), 

represent a payout ratio of 62.1% of profit attributable to 

equity shareholders for the year.

COC Partnership Helps ANTA Stand 
Out in the Sportswear Industry

Brand awareness among Chinese consumers has 

been growing steadily as the level of affluence and living 

standards continue to improve. To enhance the desirability 

of our brand, we have been working closely with the COC 

to promote sports. Our four-year exclusive sportswear 

partnership for the COC has proved to be an invaluable 

platform to set us apart from competitors. During the 

Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games, the CSD once again 

dominated the medal count. Chinese athletes also achieved 

their best results in the Vancouver 2010 Winter Olympics, 

including 3 golds earned by our endorsed athletes. Such 

outstanding achievements by the CSD in turn helped lift 

ANTA’s profile with the Chinese medal winners receiving the 

honours in victory ceremonies dressing in ANTA-designed 

outfit. What’s more, we have expanded our COC partnership 

and further enhanced our brand exposure through the 

launch of “ANTA • China Sports” channel in collaboration 

with the COC’s Internet service partner, Sina.

ANTA Taps Market Potential amid 
High-profile Sporting Events

In order to get the most out of our marketing efforts and 

to capture market opportunities from the most influential 

sporting events in 2010, Winter Olympics and Asian Games, 

we stepped up our ongoing and comprehensive “Support 

China Altogether” marketing campaign to help drum up 

public enthusiasm and to bring ANTA closer to consumers. 

Apart from rolling out popularly acclaimed TVC and POP, 

we also put on display ANTA-designed CSD victory outfit 

at major shopping malls to let the public share the joy and 

glory of the nation’s sporting achievements. Moreover, the 

interactive campaign successfully encouraged the public 

participation by experiencing the games. The campaign not 

only generated positive feedback from the market but also 

strengthened ANTA’s symbolic role as of the representative 

of China’s sports industry. We believe our effective 

promotion of major sporting events will ultimately boost 

sports participation and benefit the long term growth of the 

sportswear industry.

Basketball Superstar Empowers 
ANTA’s Endorsement Portfolio

We are dedicated to building on our endorsement resources 

with the addition of mega athletes to help us reach out to 

target customers. During the year, we have added NBA 

superstar Kevin Garnett to our endorsement list, which 

marks one of the most significant scoops of our branding 

efforts. Our international basketball endorsers, Kevin 

Garnett and Luis Scola, are both committed to promoting 

the development of the sport in China. They not only 

coached aspiring young players on basketball skills but 

also drew huge crowds of cheering fans as they toured 

around China. Riding on their popularity and influence, we 

have been able to win over the attention of basketball fans 

and successfully strengthen ANTA’s association with the 

sport. The basketball duo also have worn state-of-the-art 

ANTA basketball shoes in NBA matches, further validating 

our brand and premium quality of ANTA sportswear in 

front of global audience. We have also launched a series 

of marketing promotions starring Kevin Garnett to promote 

the “KG” sportswear series. Meanwhile, we continue to 

partner with the major leagues in Chinese basketball, CBA 

and CUBA, through various marketing activities to promote 

our featured products to basketball fans. Leveraging our 

comprehensive basketball sponsorship and endorsement 

resources, we have been able to reinforce our brand 

influence and leadership in the domestic basketball 

segment.

21 Feb 2011

Chairman
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To integrate the sports spirit 
of “Going Beyond Oneself” 
into everyone’s daily life.

OUR MISSION
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CHAIRMAN’S BLOG

Healthy Network Expansion Boosts 
Notable Sales Performance

The Group sees tremendous opportunities in the mass 

market as its size and purchasing power continue to 

grow on the back of strong economic growth and higher 

wages. As the pace of urbanisation accelerates more 

prime locations are opening up for new stores, which 

means more opportunities for us to expand the distribution 

network. At the end of 2010, the total number of ANTA 

stores surpassed the milestone 7,000 mark and reached 

7,549. We strongly believe a healthy distribution network 

is vital for the sustainable growth of the Group. That is why 

we are focused on increasing our store efficiency and the 

competitiveness of our network. Not only did we boost 

retail sales by working more closely with distributors and 

franchisees, we also offered guidelines and trainings to help 

them optimise store operation and expansion planning. In 

addition, we have shared timely market analysis and provide 

thorough reviews on retailers’ trade fair ordering plans so 

as to achieve healthy inventory and discounts levels. As a 

result, they have been able to sustain profitability through 

better inventory management, more accurate ordering and 

effective store operation.

Innovation Drives Product 
Differentiation

Product differentiation and R&D capability are the keys to 

our success. Our self-developed A-Jelly technology has 

been upgraded to offer greater resilience and more comfort 

for both professional athletes and leisure consumers. 

Always striving to enhance our R&D capability, we have 

applied advanced technologies to a wide range of products 

which have resulted in good market response. We are also 

committed to optimising and enriching our product mix to 

gauge the potential of different market segments. We have 

made a great leap in widening our apparel product offerings 

and have steadily expanded the Sports Lifestyle and Kids 

sportswear series. More value-added products such as 

the “KG” and “I Love CBA” basketball series as well as 

COC licensed products have been rolled out in response to 

growing consumer demand for branded value-for-money 

and their increasingly sophisticated tastes. Owing to our 

consistent efforts to innovate, we have been the top seller 

of travel and sports shoes in terms of market share for nine 

years in a row in China.

Sustainability Is the Overarching 
Value that Guides Our Work

Looking ahead, we see both opportunities and challenges 

in the sportswear industry. The prospect of mass market 

remains promising amid the increases in purchasing 

power and sports participation, thanks to the Chinese 

government’s economic policies and its efforts to promote 

sports. Continued industry consolidation also enables the 

Group to expand market share by leveraging our competitive 

edge. However, increasing cost pressures will continue to 

confront all industry players and their retailers. In order to 

sustain our profitability and that of retailers, we will implement 

more effective cost control measures and closely work with 

retailers to ensure their store efficiency and inventory levels 

healthy. We have also undertaken the ERP optimisation 

program in order to monitor our retail performance and to 

gain more real-time market intelligence for long term growth.

Seize Opportunities by Market and 
Product Diversification

Solid brand equity has always been, and will continue to 

be, our strongest competitive advantage. We will further 

consolidate our leading position by leveraging our solid 

sponsorship and endorsement portfolio. In particular, we 

have been able to increase our brand’s desirability by 

successfully strengthening our relationship with basketball 

fans through the Kevin Garnett endorsement. We are also 

ready to roll out marketing campaign and featured products 

leveraging the CSD's participation in the London Olympics 

to raise public awareness in the lead-up to the games. 

Moreover, the Group is focused on seizing opportunities by 

diversifying into emerging markets and product categories. 

In view of the promising potential of the women and 

teenagers’ markets, we will take steps to expand and enrich 

the women’s sportswear and Sport Lifestyle series to meet 

the increasing demand. While expanding our footprint in 

the mass market, the Group will also seek to rejuvenate the 

Fila brand, and revitalise its product offerings and network 

coverage so we can expand our presence in the high-end 

market.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my heartfelt 

gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business 

partners for their continued support. I would also like to 

extend my appreciation to the Board members and all of our 

staff for their dedication and hard work.

Chairman

21 Feb 2011



To become the top national 
sportswear brand in China in terms 
of both brand desirability and market 
share, and to be respected by 
others as well as to develop into a 
sustainable world-class sportswear 
company.

OUR VISION
To become the top national
sportswear brand in China in terms 
of both brand desirability and market
share, and to be respected by 
others as well as to develop into a
sustainable world-class sportswear 
company.
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Hong Kong, 21 February 2011

Ding Shizhong
Chairman
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China’s Economic Data

National Income GDP RMB39,798.3 billion YoY 10.3%

Urban Residents’ Income Per capita annual disposable income RMB19,109 YoY 11.3%

Consumption Total retail sales of consumer goods

Clothing sector (including sports footwear and apparel)

RMB15,455.4 billion

RMB587.4 billion

YoY 18.4%

YoY 24.8%

Inflation CPI

PPI

103.3 (2009=100)

105.5 (2009=100)

YoY    3.3%

YoY    5.5%

Source: National Bureau of Statistics of China (as at 31 December 2010)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

China’s Economy Sustains 
Healthy Moderate Growth

The Chinese government has successfully 

led the economy on the road of recovery 

by carrying out a series of economic 

restructuring measures and stimulus policies 

in the aftermath of the global financial crisis. 

As a result, the country’s economy has 

achieved a steady and healthy growth in 

the past year, with a 10.3% GDP growth 

to RMB39,798.3 billion. The country’s 

per capita annual disposable income of 

urban residents also increased by 11.3% 

to RMB19,109 due to continuous pay 

rises and in line with the overall economic 

environment. Although the increase of wages 

and purchasing power will drive economic 

growth, China faces the challenges brought 

by inflation and global financial instability 

in the coming years. As one of the world’s 

largest economies, China is expected to be 

more influential and interdependent on the 

global markets. The Chinese government 

will further enhance its responsiveness to 

external economic changes to sustain the 

economic growth of the country.

Central Government 
Boosts Domestic Demand 
and Fights Against 
Inflation

The Chinese government’s strategy of 

expanding domestic consumption is 

effective, with the total retail sales of 

consumer goods rising by 18.4% in 2010. 

Retail sales in the clothing sector rose as 

much as 24.8%. The uptrend in retail sales 

has been fueled by the minimum wage 

increase in a number of provinces and 

persistent creation of new jobs. However, 

a stronger consumer demand has led to 

inflationary pressure in China. The CPI and 

PPI rose 3.3% and 5.5% respectively in 

2010, implying that the increase of raw 

material prices is affecting the manufacturing 

sector and the additional cost is then passed 

on to consumers. To tackle inflation and 

avoid economic overheating, policymakers 

have stepped up efforts to stabilise the 

prices of both consumer goods and raw 

materials by a set of price control and 

monetary measures.

Sportswear Market Offers 
Tremendous Growth 
Potential

China sportswear industry achieved 

a promising growth despite the keen 

competition during the year, thanks to the 

Chinese government’s policies to spur 

domestic consumption. Other beneficial 

factors include continual urbanisation, wage 

increment and sports promotions. Last year 

increased purchasing power of the average 

consumer in second and third-tier cities was 

witnessed while urbanisation meant more 

prime location for new stores. Meanwhile, 

major international events such as the Winter 

Olympics and Asian Games have helped 

to promote sports participation in the long 

run. Leading sportswear players with clear 

position and strong brand recognition stand 

to benefit from such a benign business 

environment.

Players with Strong 
Sustainability Outperform 
in Market Consolidation

During the year, the sportswear industry had 

mixed results. Market position, development 

strategy, operational sustainability as well 

as competitiveness all help to decide 

sportswear brands’ performance. As the 

income levels and living standards have been 

improving, consumers are likely to be more 

brand-oriented in the future and will demand 

branded sportswear products that offer even 

greater value-for-money. It is expected that 

the industry players with strong brand equity, 

innovative R&D capabilities, effective network 

management and solid capital resources will 

gain more market share, particularly as the 

industry is going through consolidation.
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External Environment

Economic

•	 Per	capita	disposable	income	 
growth rate

•	 Degree	of	urbanisation

Technological

•	 Products’	functionality
•	 Performance-based	sportswear	

products
•	 Trendy	leisure	sportswear	products

Environmental

•	 Protection	and	education
•	 Seasonality

Social

•	 Sports	participation	rate
•	 Consumers’	taste	and	preference
•	 Individual	expenditure	on	 

sportswear	products

Legal

•	 Compliance
•	 Health	and	safety

Political

•	 Government’s	concern	of	citizens’	
health

•	 Promotion	of	sports	activities	in	schools

Competitive Advantages

Strong Brand Equity

•	 Diversified	sponsorship	resources
•	 Brand	internationalisation
•	 Nationwide	brand	recognition	&	

awareness

Capital Adequacy

•	 Sufficient	funding	for	future	
business	development

•	 No	bank	or	other	borrowings

Nationwide Distribution Network

•	 Quick	response	to	the	market	
demand

•	 Wide	spread	of	our	network
•	 Effective	management	of	

distributors	and	franchisees

Corporate Social Responsibility

•	 Corporate	citizenship	and	public	
relations

•	 Close	communication	with	
stakeholders

Cost Leadership

•	 Enjoy	economies	of	scale
•	 Highly	efficient	supply	chain	

management
•	 Offer	value-for-money	products

Product Differentiation

•	 A	wide	range	of	product	mix	and	
lines

•	 Qualify	for	setting	national	quality	
standards

•	 Strong	alliance	with	designers	
and	R&D	institutions
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Brand-driven Business Model

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group positions ourselves as a brand 

management company which integrates our 

sponsorship and endorsement resources, 

advertising and promotional campaigns, 

CSR, store image, value-for-money 

performance-based and stylish sportswear 

products as to reinforce our brand image 

and the level of brand association. Our 

brand drives the distribution network and the 

supply chain to serve our consumers and to 

achieve our vision, mission and core values.

Product Development

Product Design

Samples

Trade Fair
Ordering

Production

Raw Materials 
Procurement

Mission

Core Values

Vision

Consumers

Distributors

Logistics Management

Quality

Core Technology

Design

CSR

Endorsement

COC / Sponsorship

Advertising / Promotion

Store Image

Brand-driven 
Factors

Supply chain 
Management

Nationwide 
Distribution
Network

Brand-driven 
Factors

P.53

P.49

P.49

P.64

P.20

P.20

P.20

P.20

P.13

P.19

P.46 P.49

P.15

P.11 P.52P.23 P.63

Logistics

Distribution fl ow

Information feedback fl ow

Strategic brand management

Association of our brand with consumers

Network, supply chain and logistics management
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Strategic Brand Management Model

Strong Brand Equity

Brand is the most powerful asset to sustain 

long term growth. To help realise our highly 

defined mass market positioning, ANTA 

Sports is focused on implementing effective 

branding strategy to enhance our nationwide 

brand recognition. As consumers are 

becoming more sophisticated and brand 

conscious, the Group has put greater efforts 

in strengthening our brand and product 

differentiation to improve brand desirability. 

After years of hard work by ANTA Sports and 

other local players, market acceptance of 

domestic brands among Chinese consumers 

has been on the rise. This trend represents a 

promising opportunity for ANTA Sports’ future 

expansion.

We believe success favours those who 

are prepared. Our devotion on planning 

and preparing ahead has resulted an 

enhancement in our sports resources in 

2010. The signing of NBA superstar Kevin 

Garnett marked the era where ANTA Sports 

has brought together top-tier players with 

influential basketball leagues to build our 

unmatched basketball resources portfolio in 

China. The endorsement has strengthened 

ANTA Sports professional image in the 

performance-based sportswear market. 

ANTA Sports is honoured to be the 

exclusive sportswear partner of the COC. 

It was a privilege to have the opportunity 

to outfit the CSD in the victory ceremonies 

in the Vancouver Winter Olympics and the 

Guangzhou Asian Games. The outstanding 

performance of the CSD has helped 

establish ANTA’s brand positioning as a 

representative of China’s sports industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Kevin Garnett to our ranks of endorsed 

athletes demonstrates our determination 

to raise ANTA Sports’ profile to the next 

level. ANTA’s endorsed sport stars, 

including Luis Scola, Zheng Jie, Jelena 

Jenkovic, Wang Hao, etc., and the top 

sports league players outfitted by ANTA 

sportswear are the best ambassadors of 

ANTA Sports’ world-class products. Our 

strong portfolio of sports resources has 

played an indispensable role in enhancing 

the desirability of the ANTA brand and 

in fuelling the sustainable growth of our 

business.

• Advertising and Promotional 

Campaigns

ANTA Sports is renowned for 

incorporating sports sponsorship 

resources into different promotional 

channels to differentiate our brand and 

products in the eyes of consumers. 

Apart from rolling out creative TVCs, 

advertisements and in-store marketing, 

the Group also launched a number of 

interactive activities and games during 

the Winter Olympics and Asian Games 

to raise the level of public involvement 

and instill a sense of belonging 

among the consumers. The activities 

successfully united the support of the 

whole nation for the competing Chinese 

athletes. The Group also worked with 

CCTV5 in a bid to reach beyond sports 

fans to a wider audience in the mass 

market. Our effort in this regard has 

paid off with the popular success of the 

basketball infotainment TV program, 

“HOOPARK”, and the “ANTA CCTV 

Sports Personality”, which is hailed as 

the “Sports Oscar” of China. Leveraging 

the growing influence of Internet, 

we stepped up our efforts in online 

marketing and launched a number of 

popular websites, blog and interactive 

online games to focus on the youth 

market and online communities.

• Store Image

ANTA Sports is committed to maintaining 

an outstanding store image that is 

consistent with our brand ideology. We 

share our insights with distributors and 

franchisees to help them enhance their 

store image in order to provide customers 

with a better shopping experience. 

We also keep a close eye on the store 

set-up and window display to ensure 

the image of all ANTA stores are up to 

standards. Store decor and promotional 

materials such as in-store posters are 

provided to retail stores to highlight the 

marketing theme and the products of 

the season. Moreover, the “COC Corner” 

and “Grand Basketball Corner” are set 

up to showcase our growing portfolio of 

diversified products. All these measures 

are designed to highlight our range of 

unique and differentiated products and to 

enhance the brand desirability.

Our continued effort in brand building 

initiatives has won major accolades. 

In March, ANTA Sports was the only 

sportswear brand honoured with the “Best 

Value Award” in the “6th China National 

Garment Association Award”. In July, 

the Company was named one of “Most 

Valuable Chinese Brands” for the first time 

by Forbes China, ranking No. 21 in the 

poll. In the same month, our COC-themed 

marketing campaign nabbed the title of 

“Sports Marketing Case of the Year” in 

NetEase’s “1st Sports Online Marketing 

Awards Ceremony 2010”. These 

recognitions are a reflection of ANTA 

Sports’ leading position in the industry.

Brand Management 
Strategy

In order to move towards our vision of 

becoming China’s most desired domestic 

sportswear brand, ANTA Sports has devised 

an effective brand management strategy. 

During the year, we further extended the 

reach and effectiveness of our innovative 

marketing campaigns to promote our 

distinguished brand image and quality 

products through various media and in-store 

marketing.

• Endorsements and Sponsorships

Sports resources are the cornerstone 

of branding activities for performance-

based sportswear brands to differentiate 

and reinforce brand value. This is 

why ANTA Sports spares no effort in 

establishing a portfolio of exclusive and 

influential endorsement and sponsorship 

resources. Our strategic partnerships 

with the COC and the CSD from 2009 

to 2012 have provided us an excellent 

platform to enhance the exposure and 

influence of the ANTA brand both locally 

and globally. Apart from the alliances 

with influential sports associations, 

ANTA Sports has also made keen efforts 

in sponsoring elite athletes and top-

tier sports leagues to reinforce ANTA’s 

professional image and strengthen our 

association with major popular sports 

in China, such as basketball, tennis and 

running. The joining of NBA superstar 
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Brand Portfolio Model

Rising income levels and purchasing power 
have created a new breed of Chinese 
consumers who demand quality and have 
more sophisticated tastes, thus leading 
to a growing appetite for more quality and 
diversified sportswear products. Today’s 
consumers are willing to pay more for 
brands and products that offer the greatest 
differentiation and the best value for money. 
This trend is expected to boost sales 
of largely mass market products and, over  
the longer term, benefit the high-end  
market as well. To capitalise on this  
growth trend, ANTA Sports has adopted a  
multi-brand strategy that enables us  
to seize on opportunities in various  
market segment.

The mass market has been undergoing a 
rapid expansion as a result of urbanisation 
and wage increases. To better position 
for this growth in the mass market, the 
Group is focused on promoting its brand 
through association with popular sports and 
major events. We have already established 
leadership in the mass market for our 
performance-based sportswear products, 
particularly those in the basketball and 
running categories. We have also made 
inroads into the female sportswear market 
by expanding tennis product offerings to 
address the rising popularity of tennis in 
China. As a strategic partner of the COC, 
we continue to expand the COC licensed 
product series which we rolled out in 2009 
in a bid to further strengthen our relationship 
with consumers and the COC. In the trendy 
leisure sportswear and kids sportswear 

markets, we have also enriched our Sports 
Lifestyle series and Kids Sportswear series 
to extend our influence in those markets.

Increasing affluence will also spur demand in 
the high-end market. The acquisition of the 
Fila PRC Trademarks in September 2009 
has successfully created synergies with 
our existing business in the mass market. 
With a blend of sports and classical Italian 
heritage, Fila has been steadily gaining 
recognition among high-end consumers. 
The combination of Fila’s strong design and 
technology capabilities and ANTA Sports’ 
knowledge of the domestic sportswear 
market and expertise in supply chain and 
network management not only will provide 
Fila with a solid foundation to tap the growth 
in the high-end market, it will also benefit the 
Group’s business in the long run.
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OUR ENDORSED PLAYER KEVIN GARNETT



REACH

HIGHER
We never fear the obstacles to change but 
will apply our innovative ideas to create 
values for our customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Partnership
with the COC
P
w

In 2010, the remarkable performance of the 

CSD in the Vancouver Winter Olympics and 

Guangzhou Asian Games captivated the 

world’s attention. Our strategic partnership 

with the COC and the CSD provides an 

excellent platform for ANTA sportswear to 

appear on elite athletes in award ceremonies 

in major international competitions from 

2009 to 2012. This not only raised our brand 

exposure but also differentiated ANTA from 

peers and helped ANTA stand out as the 

“representative of China’s sports industry”. 

The Group has also launched a series of 

marketing initiatives to boost the sports 

development in China, benefi ting not only 

ANTA Sports, but also the entire sportswear 

industry.
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“ANTA • China Sports” Channel Launched on Sina.com

Outfit Design Competition for the CSD 
at the 16th Guangzhou Asian Games

The launch of “ANTA • China Sports” channel (http://sports.sina.com.cn/others) marked a 

closer cooperation between ANTA Sports, the COC and its Internet service partner Sina to 

enhance the effectiveness of the COC sponsorship.

ANTA Sports organised Outfi t Design Competition for the CSD at the 16th 

Guangzhou Asian Games to arouse public interest towards the event. The 

competition drew thousands of entries as budding designers vied for the 

honour of designing outfi ts for the CSD.

ANTA Sports supported the COC in setting up 

“Home of China”, a venue for the COC and the 

CSD members to share the joy and glory as 

well as to meet the media since the Vancouver 

Winter Olympics.

United at the “Home 
of China”
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China’s Medal TallyCSD Glittered in 
Asian Games

The CSD claimed the top spot on the 

medals list in the Guangzhou Asian Games, 

sweeping home a total of 416 medals. The 

CSD also broke several Asian Games and 

world records, further demonstrating that 

the Chinese athletes have attained world-

class standards. The success of Asian 

Games has signifi cant implications for the 

Company as the excellent performance 

of the CSD not only provided ANTA 

with extensive exposure, but also 

encouraged sports participation 

which facilitated the long-term 

sports development in China.

Since 2009, ANTA Sports 

has been using a consistent 

“Support China Altogether” 

theme to link up all our 

marketing initiatives in relation 

to the cooperation with the 

COC and the CSD. For 

each of the key events, we 

launched a series of TVC, 

outdoor billboards and in-

store POP displays featured 

by our endorsed Chinese 

athletes. This ongoing 

marketing strategy has 

proven a great success in enhancing ANTA’s 

association with the COC and the CSD as 

well as maximising the effectiveness of our 

marketing campaigns in the past 2 years.

In view of the great opportunity to consolidate 

our local leadership in Guangdong and to 

capture the attention of huge crowds of 

visitors to the event, ANTA Sports launched 

comprehensive promotional campaigns 

in Guangzhou. The Group has set up 

ANTA 
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exhibitions illustrating the history of Asian 

Games, display of the ANTA-designed 

CSD outfi ts and sports equipment in prime 

shopping malls to bring the public closer 

to ANTA and the event. More importantly, 

we focused on an interactive approach 

to encourage consumers to take part in 

activities. Furthermore, our endorsed athletes 

and the CSD medalists attended the fans 

gathering to meet with consumers. Real life 

experience of participation would help 

raise the public’s awareness 

of integrating sports into 

our daily life.

ANTA Sports also took the chance 

to gain more attention from online 

community by optimising our electronic 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

information platform “AN Town” (http://

anta.qq.com) and a website dedicated 

for the CSD in Asian Games (http://www.

anta.com/2010games/) to provide instant 

updates of the events. Furthermore, our 

marketing initiatives also extended to the 

coverage on product offerings and store 

display. ANTA Sports has launched the 

COC licensed product series and the “COC 

Corner” in stores in 2009 which receives 

favourable responses. Leveraging the 

research and design results for the CSD 

outfi ts, we were able to adapt the concept 

behind to the mass market products, which 

enable consumers to experience the glory 

and technological value of the champions’ 

sportswear. These comprehensive marketing 

programmes have consolidated ANTA’s 

symbolic role of representing the sports 

industry in the country, which would go 

further in sustaining ANTA’s sportswear 

business in the long run.
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China’s Medal TallyCSD Achieved Best Ever 

Results in Winter Olympics

ANTA Sports was glad to witness the record 

results of the China’s winter sports team in 

the Vancouver Winter Olympics in February 

2010. Our endorsed winter sports athletes 

achieved excellent performance, winning 

3 golds and 2 silvers. Our endorsed short-

track speed-skating star Zhou Yang won 

2 gold medals (breaking both Olympic and 

world records), and proudly collected the 

gold medal twice in ANTA outfi t in the victory 

ceremonies. Separately, pair fi gure skaters 

Shen Xue and Zhao Hongbo also earned the 

fi rst Olympic gold medal in their career and 

for the country in the pair skating sport with 

their years of hard work. Their performances 

truly refl ect ANTA’s “Keep Moving” spirit 

and virtues such as perseverance that the 

Olympics promote.

Annual Report 2010  ANTA Sports Products Limited 29

Golds Silvers Bronzes

China’s Medal TallyCSD Achieved Best Ever
Results in Winter Olympics

ANTA Sports was glad to witness the record 

results of the China’s winter sports team in 

the Vancouver Winter Olympics in February 

2010. Our endorsed winter sports athletes 

achieved excellent performance, winning 

3 golds and 2 silvers. Our endorsed short-

track speed-skating star Zhou Yang won 

2 gold medals (breaking both Olympic and 

world records), and proudly collected the 

gold medal twice in ANTA outfi t in the victory 

ceremonies. Separately, pair fi gure skaters 

Shen Xue and Zhao Hongbo also earned the 

fi rst Olympic gold medal in their career and 

for the country in the pair skating sport with 

their years of hard work. Their performances 

truly refl ect ANTA’s “Keep Moving” spirit 

and virtues such as perseverance that the 

Olympics promote.
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Being one of the most popular sports in 

China, basketball is among the Group’s key 

strategic priorities. More importantly, we see 

the growing popularity of basketball among 

the youth and increasing influence of ANTA-

sponsored top-tier basketball leagues in 

China, namely the CBA and CUBA. ANTA 

Sports stands to gain from the popularity of 

basketball through the partnership with the 

leagues. We also support the off-season 

training camps to nurture basketball talents 

and promote participation in the sport. In 

order to strengthen ANTA’s leadership in 

the mass market basketball segment, we 

are leveraging our preeminent sponsorship 

resources and more effective marketing 

campaigns to expand footprint in the market.

During the year, we achieved a significant 

breakthrough in perfecting the basketball 

portfolio. The endorsement of the renowned 

international basketball superstar, Kevin 

Garnett, greatly boosted ANTA’s professional 

image in the basketball segment. Kevin 

Garnett and Luis Scola are committed to 

promoting the development of basketball 

with the Group. They demonstrated their 

superb basketball skills and trained young 

Chinese basketball enthusiasts 

at the “My Basketball 

Dream” rookies’ tryout 

during their China tours. 

We have also facilitated 

their meetings with 

basketball fans in 

various events, which 

successfully drew 

huge crowds of 

basketball lovers and 

attention from the 

public. We believe the 

basketball duo’s popularity 

and influence in China not only 

enhance the sport’s participation, but also 

give a big boost to ANTA’s brand equity and 

consumer loyalty.

Mass Market
Performance-based
Basketball Series

M
P
B

We believe that we can continue our 

leadership position in the market through 

technological innovation, and this is 

particularly the case in the basketball 

segment. The Group has applied advanced 

technologies to our basketball products for 

the CBA and CUBA players. Starting from 

the 2010/11 NBA season, Kevin Garnett 

has been equipped with “KG 1” basketball 

shoes tailor-made by ANTA. This proves 

that our brand and product functionality are 

both recognised by the premier basketball 

league’s MVP. We are also proud of Luis 

Scola’s excelling performance as he was 

wearing the design award-winning ANTA 

“Phoenix” basketball shoes. ANTA’s unique 

basketball shoes not only draw worldwide 

attention because of their eye-catching 

design, but also offer strong protection and 

comfort to our endorsed athletes.

The Group is devoted to capturing 

more market share through 

the integration of our 

solid sponsorship 

portfolio, wide 

product variety 

and effective 

marketing 

campaigns. We 

launched interactive 

activities such as CBA All-

star lineup voting, CBA champion blessing, 

CUBA slogan competition, “I Love CBA” 

marketing promotion, co-hosting the All-

star Weekend with the CBA, etc. in the 

past season, to bring our brand closer to 

basketball fans. CBA-designated products 

and “KG” sportswear series were available 

at the “Grand Basketball Corner” in key 

ANTA stores to promote basketball. 

Moreover, Kevin Garnett‘s first marketing 

campaign, “Reach Higher”, has been rolled 

out together with the launch of limited 

edition “KG” box sets in our interactive 

activities. Through our continuous 

commitment to brand enhancement and 

product innovation, the Group is enjoying 

a more solid consumer base and stronger 

association with basketball as a popular 

sport in China.

安踏‧CBA職業聯賽唯一指定運動裝備
ANTA – Sole Equipment and 

Sportswear Sponsor for the CBA

安踏‧CUBA中國大學生籃球聯賽指定運動裝備
ANTA – Official Sponsor of Equipment and 

Sportswear for the CUBA



KG’s China Tour : Love China

1  August - Beijing
- My first ever China tour with ANTA Sports kicked 

off! ANTA is one of the leading sportswear brands 

in China. I am honoured to join the big family 

of ANTA Sports and have this great opportunity 

to support the development of basketball among 

young people . The signing ceremony was 

witnessed by both local and overseas media.

2  August - Beijing
-  I attended “My Basketball Dream” rookies’ 

tryout and coached young players 

on basketball skills. It was hosted by 

ANTA Sports’ sponsored CCTV5 basketball 

programme, “HOOPARK”. These talented 

players are rising stars and they’re very 

passionate about basketball . I wish them 

every success in the pursuit of their 

basketball dreams.

3  August - Jinjiang
-  Mr. Ding Shizhong, Chairman and CEO of 

ANTA Sports, showed me around the Company’s 

ANTA Technology Centre, footwear production 

plant and trade fair at its headquarters. I was 

very impressed by the world class R&D and 

manufacturing facilities of this homegrown 

sportswear brand in Fujian . Their R&D team also 

studied my movement and measured the stress 

on my feet in their state-of-the-art laboratory, 

which is accredited as a “National Enterprise 

Technology Centre”.

KKGGGGGGG’’ssss  CCChhhhhhiiiinnaaaaa  TTTTTToooouuuuuuurrrrr :: LLLLLLoovvveee CCCChhhhiinnnaaaaaa

1  August - Beijing
- MyMMMyMyy ffffffffirii stt eeeeeeveveev r rr ChChhC ininnina aaa totototouruur wwwwitttttthh hhhh ANANANAA TATAATATATAT  S SSSS SSpopportrtrtrttrtts s sss kikkik ckkkeddded 

ofofofofofoff!f!f!f!f!ff  A AAAA AAANTNTNTNTA AAAA isisisiss oooooneeeee o o o f f f f f thththt e lellelelell addinning ggg spspspspspspporororororrtststsststswewewearaaaa  bbbraar ndndndn s ss 

ininininnn CCCChihihihiinnanan . I I amamamaaa  h hhononouououoo reeered ddd tototottt  j joiiiin nnn ththhe bibiiibib g gg g fafaffaf mimimimiiimim lylylyllyly 

ofofofofoooof AAAANTNTNTA A AA SppSpSpporrrortststssss aaa aandndnnd hhhhavve eee ththhtht isisis ggggrerererereereataatatat opppppppporororo tutuuunininityytytyy 

tototo sssupupuu popoporttrtrrr t tt hhhhehhehh  dddddddevevvvelelllopoppmemm ntnttnttntn  ooff ff f bababbbbbbaskskskkk ttetettbababababab llllllllll aaamomomomoooonngnn  

yoyoyyy unununnungg ggggg pepeepep opopopoooplelelell . ThThThThT e sisisisis gngngnng ininii g gg cecececc rereeeeemomomomom nynyy wwwwwwwasasasas 

wiwiwww tntntnessesseseeed d dd bybybybybbbyy bbb bbb ttttotototottothh h lollolocacaal l l l l annnddddddddd ovverererererseseseseasasa  mmmm ddddddddddeddededdediaiaiaiaiai ..

2  August - Beijing
- -  III I a a aattttttttt enenenennndedededed d d d d “M“M“M“My y y yyyyyyyy BaBaBaBaaBBBBBBBBBBB skskskskssssss etetetetbabababallllllll D DD DDrererereamamamam” ”” rorororookokokokieieieies’s’s’ss  

trtrtrtryoyoyoyoutututut a a aandndndnd c ccccoaoaoaoachchchchedededed y y y yououououngngngng p p p plalalalayeyeyeyersrsrsrs  

ononononono  b bb bbasasasasaassssssskekekeketbtbtbtbtbalalalall l l l skskskskssss ilililillslslslslsssssssssssss. . ItItItIt www wasasasasss h h h hososososteteteted d dd bybybybybyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy 

ANANANANTATATATA S S S Spopopoportrtrtrtts’s’s’s’ s s s spopopoponsnsnsnsororororedededed C C C CCCCTCTCTCTV5V5V5V5V5 b b b basasasaskekekeketbtbtbtbalalalalalll l ll

prprprrppppppppppppppppppp ogogogogogoggggggggggggggggggrarararammmmmmmm e,e,e ,e ,,,,,, ““““HOHOHOHOHOH OPOPOPOPPARARARARRK”K”K”K”K”. . . ThThThThesesesese e e e tatatatalelelelentntntnttedededded 

plplplplp ayayayayerererers s s s arararare e e e ririririsisisisiingngngng s s s statatatat rsrsrsrs a aa andndndnd t t t thehehehey’y’yyrererere vvvverererery y y y 

papapapapppppppppppppppppppp ssssssssssssssssssssssss ioioioonanananatetetete a a aboboboboututututu  b bb bbasasasassskekekeketbtbtbtbalalalall .l .l .l . I I I I w wwwisisisissssh h h h ththththemememe   

eveveveverererery y yy susususuccccccccesesesess s s s inininin t t t thehehehe p p p purururursusususuitititit o ooof f f f ththththt eieieieir r rr 

bababaasksksksketetetetbabababaaaallllllll d d drererer amamamamms.s.s.sssss

3  August - Jinjiang
 MMMMr.r.r.r  D D D Dininini g g gg ShShShShizizizi hohohohongngngg,, , ChChChChaiaiaiairmrmrmrmanananan a a andndndn  CC CCEOEOEOO o o oof f f f

ANANANTATATATA S SS Spopopopoppppppppppppppppppppp rtrtrtts,s,s, s s sshohohohowewewew d d d d mememe a a aarororounununu d d d d ththththe e e e CoCoCoCompmpmpmppppppananana y’y’y’yyys s s s

ANANANANTATATATA T TTececece hnhnhnh olololologogogogy y y CeCeCeentntntntrereree,, , fofofofootototwewewewearararar p p p prororor dududud ctctcttioioioion n n n 

plplplplpp anananant t tt ananand d d  trtrtrtradadadade e e fafafaairiririr a aa at t tt itititi s s s heheheheadadadadquququuarararartetetetersrsrs. . . I I I wawawawas s s

vevevev ryryryry i i impmpmpmprererer ssssssededede  b bby y y y thththt e e e wowowow rlrlrlrld d d clclclclasasasss s s R&R&R&R D D D ananand dd d

mamamamanununuufafafa tctctturururinining g gg fafafafacicicicilililitititit esesese  o oof f f thththisisis hh homomommegeegroroownwnwn 

spspsppororoortststsweweweweararar b bbrarara dddndndn  i in n n FuFFuFuujijijianananan . . ThThThT eieieee r r R&R&R&DD D D ttttetett amammm a aaalslsso oo

stststs udududieieed d mymymmy mmmmovovvo emememenennt t t ananandd d memmem asasasurururedededed t tthehehe ss strtrtresesesss s 

ononon m mmmy y ffffffffffffffffffefffe tttttttttttttttttttetete  ii in n n n ttttttttththtthhthtthththththeieie r r ttttttttttttttttstststst ttttttttttttttttatata e-e- ffffffffffffffoffofof tttttttttttttttt-t-thehhhhee-a-aa tttttttttttttttrtrt lllllll l llabbbabororo ttttttttttttattatttatata oorory,y,y   

whwhwhicicich h h isisis a accccrereeredididitetetet d d dd asasas aa a “ ““NaNaNatititit onononalalal E EEntntnterererprprp isisise e 

TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTeTTeTTeTeTeeTechchhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhchhnnonoollllllllllllllllllllllllllllllollllogygy C CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCeeeneenee trtrtttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt e”e”e”e”””””””””””””””””e”””e””e”..

ANTA Sports Products Limited  Annual Report 201032

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KKKK
eeevvv

iiinnn
  GGGG

aaarrrr
nnn

eeetttt
tttt

babababbbb skskskksssssssssss

- -    



8  August - Beijing
-  Just before the China tour drew to a close 

I visited the headquarters of “Titan Sports” 

weekly newspapers and was interviewed by 

CCTV News Channel and Sina. I also took the 

opportunity to express my gratitude to all my 

fans and basketball enthusiasts in China for 

their support through these popular broadcast 

and online media. Hope to see you all again 

soon!

4  August - Shanghai
-  Being an Expo basketball ambassador, I took the opportunity to visit the China and US 

pavilions in the Shanghai World Expo. I also presented a pair of autographed ANTA basketball 

shoes to Expo officials for their hospitality.

5  August - Shanghai
-  It was exciting to meet huge crowds of 

my fans during a marketing event at 

Grand Gateway. A beautiful girl gave me 

a surprise kiss while we were exchanging 

souvenirs! Besides, my autographed 

fingerprint has been put on permanent 

display at Grand Gateway ANTA store to 

commemorate the tour.

8  August - Beijing
 J JJJusususust t t bebebeefofofof rerere t tt thehehe C CChihihihinanana t tttououo r r drdrdrd ewewew t to o a a clclc ososo e e e

I I viviviiisisisiis teteted d d thththe e e heheheadaddququqqq ararrteteeersrsrsrs o oof ff f “T“TTitititananan S Spopopppp rtrtrts”s” 

weweweekekeke lylyly n nnewewewspspspapappererers s s ananand d d wawaw s s s inininteteeeeervrvr ieieieweweed d d byby 

CCCCCCTVTVV N N Newewewee s s ChChhanannnenen ll l anannd d d SiSiSinana. . I I I alallsososoo t toooooo k k kk ththt e e

opopoppopooortrtrtunununititty y totot  e eexpxpxpreresssss  m mmy y grgrgratata ititududude e toto a allll m my y 

fafafansnsn  a aandndndd b basasskekekeetbtbtbalalall l l enenenthththhusususiaiaiaaststts s s ininiin C CChihihih nanana f ffororor  

tththhththeieieir r r sususuuppppppororttttttt tt ttttthttththttt rorouguggh h tttththttththesesese e e popop pupuulallaarr brbrroaoaoaddddddcddddccccasasasa tttt ttt tt

anana d d d onononoo lililinenene m mmedededdiaiaia . . HoHoHoH ppepep  tt to o seses eee lll

sosoononoonn!!!!!!!

4  August - Shanghai
- --  BB B Beieieieingngngng a a a an n nn ExExExExxxpoppopo b bb basassaskekekeetbtbtbtbalalalall l l l amamamambababaabbb ssssssssadadadadorororoor, I III totototookokokok tttthehehehe o o o opppppppppp ororrtutututuninininitytytyty t ttto oo vivisisisiitt tththth

papapapppppppppppppppppp vivivililillionnonons s ss sss inininin t t tthehehehe S S S SSShahahah ngngngggggggggggggggggggggggggghahahahai ii i WoWoWoWorlrlrlrld d dd ExExExExE popopopoppppppppp . I III alallalsosososo p pppppppppppppppppppppppprerereresesesesentntntnteddeded a aaa p pp ppppppppppppaiaiaiaiiir r rr ofofof a aaautututogogoggggggrarararaphphphphppp edeeded A AAANTNTNTNTA A A A babbabaskskskketetetetbabababallllllll 

shshhshoeoeoeoes s s s totototo E E E Expxpxpxpxpxppooo o ofofofoffififificicicicialalalals s ss fofofofor rr r thththht eieiir rr r hohohohospspspspititititalalalallitititity.y.y.y.

5  August - Shanghai
--  I I IIt t t t wawawaw s s s sssssssss exexexexcicicicititititit ngngngngggggggggggggggg t t tto o o oooo mememeeetetetete  h h hhuguguguggggggggggge e ee crcrcrc owowoowdsdsdsdss o ooof f f fffffffffffffff

mymymymy f f f fananananns s ss dudududuriririringngngn  a a aa m m mmararararkekekeketitititingngngng e eeeveveveventntntnt aa aaat t t t

GrGrGrGrGGGGGG anananand d dd GaGaGaGaGGG tetetetewawaway.y.y.yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy  AA A A b b bb beaeaeae ututututififififulululul g g gggggggiriririri l ll l gagagaggggggg vevveve mmm mee e e

a a a a susususurprprprpririririsesesese k k k kisisisiss s s s whwhwhwhilililille e e ee wewewewe w wwwerererere e e e exexexexe chchchchanananangigigigingngngngn  

sosososouvuvuvu enenenene iiririrs!s!s!s! B B BBesesesesididididesesesese , , , mymymymmy a aaaututututu ogogoggrarararaphphphphp eddeded 

fifififingngnggererererprprprprinininint t t t hahahahas s s s bebebebeenenenn p p ppututututt o o o on n n n pepepep rmrmrmrmananananenenenent t tt

didididispspspspsplalalalay y y y atatatata  G GG GGrarararandndndd G G GGatatatatewewewwayayayay A A AANTNTNTNTA A A A ststststorororore e e e totototo  

cococoommmmmmmmememememororororatttatate e e ththththe e e e totototourururu ..

tttt iiiitttt ttttooo viviviisisisisitttt ththththe e ChChChChinininna a a a anananand d d d USUSUSS 
ttt

8
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Luis Scola’s China Tour: Road to Glory

29 May - Beijing
-  I am very excited about returning to China for my second tour with ANTA Sports. It ’s great to go on to CCTV5 and say hello to my Chinese fans.

30 May - Beijing
-  I am honoured that my cooperation with ANTA Sports for basketball promotion in China has been extended. ANTA’s “Phoenix” basketball shoes are tailor-made to strengthen my on-court performance. In order to nurture basketball talents, I joined the CUBA training camp to share my years of experience in basketball with aspiring college players. Their hard work and passion reminded me of my early days when I just started out. I am 
confident that they will go on to become a powerful force of 
the Chinese basketball league.

1 Jun - Harbin
-  ANTA Sports and its sponsored CCTV5 basketball programme, “HOOPARK”, co-hosted “My Basketball Dream” rookies’ tryout. As a special guest of the opening ceremony, I played a series of one-on-one friendly matches with young players. They delivered some fine performances and I really enjoyed the enthusiastic atmosphere during the games.

LLuuuuiisssss SSccccccollllaaa’ssss CCCCCCChhhhhhhinnnnnaaaaa TTTooouuuurrrr:: RRRRoooooooaaaadddd ttttttoooo GGGGGGGGlloorrryyyyy

29 May - Beijing
---- -  IIIII a aaaam mmm veeev ryryrr  eexcxcxcititititi edededd a a a aabobobobbb tutut rereretututurnnrnninniining g gggggggg totottot  CCChihihihinananana f f f ffororo  m mmmmmmmyy yysesecocococoooc ndnddddnddd tt t touoououo r r wiwiththhth A AAAAAAANTNTTNTNTN A AA AAAAASpSpSpSpSpSpSporo tststststtst . .. ItItIt ’s’ssss g gg g grerereeatattt tttto o gogogogogo oon nnnn totototo CCCCCCTVTVTVTVV5 5 5 5 555 ananannanndddddd ddddd sasaasas y heheheheheelllllllllllllllo tttttttttttttttoto m mmmmmy yChChChChChhhininininiineseseeese eee fafafafansnsnsns.

30 May - Beijing
- - --  I II I a aaam m m m m hohohohononononoururururu edededed t t t thahahahat t t t mymymymy c cc coooooooopepepeperarararatitititiononononn w w w w iiiiiANANANANTATATATA S SS SSpopopopopoppppppppp rtrtrtrts s s s s fofofofof r r rr babababaasksksksketetetetbabababallllllll p p p pppprorororomomomomotitititionononon  inininin C C CChihihihinananana h h h hasasasas b b b beeeeeeeen n nn exexexexxxtetetetendndndndn edededed. . . . ANANANANTATATATAAA’s’sss “P“P“PPhohohohoenenenenixixixix” ” ” ” babababasksksksketetetetbabababallllllll s s sshohohohoeseseses a a a arererere t tttaiaiaiailololollor-r--r-mamamamadededede t t t to o o o ststststrerererengngngngththththenenenene  m m m my y y y onononon-c-c-c-couououourtrtrtrt pepepepeppppppppppppppppp rfrfrfrffffforororormamamamancncncce.e .e .e . I I I In nnn orororordedededer r r r totototo n n nnururururtutututurererere  babababasksksksketetetetbabababallllllll t t t talalalalenenenentstststs,, , , I I I I jojojojoininininedededed t t t tthehehehe C C C CUBUBUBUBA A A AAAtrtrtrtraiaiaiaininininingngngngggggggggggggggggggg c ccamamamamp p pp pppppppppppp ttototo s s sshahahaharererere mm m my y y yyyyy yeyeyeyeyyyy arararars s s s ofofofof exexexxpepepepeririririenenenencececece i i in n n n babababasksksksketetetetbabababallllllll w w w wwitititiiith h h h asasasaspipipipiriririringngngngg cocococollllllllegegegeggggggggggggggge e e plplplplppppppppppppp ayayayayyyyyyyyyererere s.s.s.s.s  T T T Theheheheiriririr h h h harararard d d d wowowoworkrkrkrk aa aandndndnd p ppppppasasasassssssrerereremimimim ndndndndedededed m m m me e e e ofofofof m m m my y y y eaeaeaarlrlrlly y y yy dadadad ysysysys w w wwhehehehen n n n I I I jujujuu

 
cococonfnfnfnffffffffididididenenent t t t thhththatatatat tt tthehehehey y y yyyyyyyyyyy wiwiwiwilllllllll g g g gggggggo o o oononon t t t tooo o bebebebecocococomemememe a a aa p p pppppppowowowowererererfufufuful l l l fofofoforcrcrcrce e e ofofofof  
thththhe e e ChChChChinininnesesesese e ee babababasksksksketetetetbabababallllllll l l l leaeaeaeagugugugue.e .ee .

1 Jun - Harbin
- - -  A A AANTNTNTNTA A A A SpSpSpSpororortstststs a a aandndndn  i i iitststts s ss spopopoponsnsnsn ororoo edededed C C C CTCTCTTV5V5V55V  babababasksksksketetettbababaaallllllll p p ppppppppppppppppppppprorrorogrgrgrgrgggggggggggggggggggggggggg amamamammemememe, , “H“H“H“HOOOOOOOOPAPAPAPARKRKRKRKR ”,”,”,”  cococoo-h-h-hosososo tetetet d d d “M“M“MMy y yy BaBaBaBasksksksketetetetbabababalllllll D D DDrereeeamamam” ” ”roroookokokokieieieies’s’ t ttryryryyyyyouououo t.t.t. AAA As s s a a a spspsppppppppecececiaiaial l l gugugugg esesesst t t ofofofof ththththe e opopopopenenenenininini g g g cececerereremomomoonynynyny, , , I I I plplplllplayayaya ededed a aa  seseseririiriesesese  o o oof f f ononone-e-e-e ononon-o-oonenene f f friririenenenndldldly y y mamamam tctctct hehehes s s wiwiwiitttttttttttthttttththth y youououngngng p ppllllallal yeyeyersrsrrs. . ThThThheyeye ddddddd dddddddddddddddd llllelleliviivivereree ddddddeddddddddddddeddd sososos mememmem  f ffininine e e pepepeerfrfrfororormamamancncnceseses a aaandndd II I r rreaeaeaalllllly y yenenjojjjjoyeyeeddddddddddddddddddddddddddddddd d ththtttttttttttttththtthhhtttttththhhhthe eee e enennttttththtttttttttttttthhtththththththththhthhththusussusiaiiiaiiaiia ttttttttttttttttttttsttttsticiiic a atttttttttttttttttttttttttttttmttttmtmmmososs hhhhhphhhhhhhhhhphherere e e edududud ririringngg t tthehehe g g gamama eses..
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5 Jun - Guangzhou
-  My tour ended with a visit to the ANTA store on Shangxiajiu Road and an interactive event at Liwan Plaza. My enthusiastic fans left me with great memories and I promised to do better in coming seasons to thank for their support.

3 Jun - Shanghai
-  It was a great and meaningful day for me! I visited the China and Argentina pavilions in the Shanghai World Expo with children affected by the earthquake in Yushu, Qinghai . I also played basketball with the lovely children and gave them ANTA Kids sportswear so that they could share the joy and excitement of basketball .

4 Jun - Nanjing
-  Huge crowds of my fans arrived early at Confucius Temple Square. There were roaring cheers and applauses among the crowds when I appeared in the marketing event. We all had great fun that day with the exciting activities and basketball games.

5 Jun - Guangzhou
- - -  M M M My y y y totototoururur e e eendndnddndededed w w wititith h h h a a a a viviviisisissit t t tototo ththththe e e ANANANANTATATAAA s s stototot rereree o o on nn ShShShananangxgxgxgggggggg iaiiai jijijijjjjjjjjjjj u u uRoRRoadadad a aaandndndd a a aan n n inininteteteerararactctctivivivve e e eeveveve enenentt t atatata  L LLLiwiwiwanana  P PPlalalazazaza. . MyMyyyyyyyyyy enenenenthththt usususiaiaiastststicicicc f ffananana s s s leleleftftftf  mmmee wiwiw ththth grgrggggggggggggggggggggggg eaeaeat t t mememem momom ririiesess a aandndndnd I II p ppppppppppppppproromimimim seses d d tototo d d do o o bebebetttttt ererr i iin n n cocococ mimimingngg s s eaeaaaaasososonsnsn  tototoooo tt ttthahahanknkkn  f ffffffffffffffffffffororo  t theheheiriri  s ssupupupupppppppppppppppppppppppppopopoppppppppppppppppp rtrt..

3 Jun - Shanghai
- -  I It tt wawaaas s ss a a grgrgrg eaeaeaeae t t tt ananandd dddd memememeananaana iningfgfgfgfulululu  dadadadaay y yy yyyyyyyyyyy fofofoffffff rr r r memememe! ! ! I I viiviisisissiteteed d dd ththththe e ee ChChChChininina a a ananand d ddAAArArArrgegegegentntntntininina a aa papapapaviviviililililionono s s ininnn t tthehehe S SSShahaaangngngnghahahhahai i WoWoWoWorlrllrld d ExExExxpoppopoppppp  w wwwititiith h hh chchcchc ilililildrdrdrdrenenenn a aaffffffffececece teteteted d dd bybybyby ththththe e e eaeaaartrtrtrttrr hqhhhqhqhquauauauakekekeke i i i in n nn YuYuYuYuuushshshshu,u,uu  Q QQQininininghghghghhhaiaiiia . . . . I I I I alalalsosososos  p ppplalalalayeyeyeyed d d bababbaskskskskettetetbabababalllllllll w w w witititith h h ththhthe e e e lolololovevevevelylylylll   chchchchillililildrdrddrdrenennn a a aanddndndddnd g g avave e ee tthtthtthtthemeemee  A AAAAAAAANTNTNTNTAA AA AAA AAA KiKiKiKKidddddddddddsdsddddss  spspspsporororortstststsweweeearararar s sssoo ththhthatatatat t t t thehhey y yy cocococ ululululd d d d shshshsharararare e eettttthtthththe eeee e jojojojojjoy y yy ananananddddddd d d d exexexexcicicicittttttttttettttetetemememememm tttttttttntttttnttntttttttttnt o o  ffffffff fffffff f f babbababaskskskksk ttttttttttttettttttetettetettbabababbbbballllllllllllllllllllllll ...

4 Jun - Nanjing
-  H H H Huguguguge e e e crcrcrcrowowowowdsdsdsdsd  o o o of f f f mymymyymy f f f fanananans s s s ararararririririveveveved d d dddeaeaeae rlrlrlrly y y yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy atatatat CC C Cononononnfufufufufffff ciciciciusususus T TTTemememmplplplplpppppppppp e e ee SqSSqSqqqqqqquauauauarerer . . ThThThTherererere e e e e wewewewerererere r r r roaoaoaoariririringngngng c cc cheheheheerererers s s s s anananannnd d d d ddapapapappppplplplplppp auauauauseseseses s s amamamamonononong g g gg ththththe e e e crcrcrcrowowowowoo dsdsdsds w ww whehehehehenn n I I I I apapapappepepepeararararedededed i iin n n n thththththe e ee mamamamamamarkrkrkrketetettttttetttee ininining g g g evevevevenenennenntttt.ttt.t.tt.  WeWeWeWe a a a alllllllll h h h hadadadadd g g gggrererereatatata  f fffunununun t t tthahahahat t tt dadadaday y yy wiwiwiwittttttttthttttthtthth tttttt t tttt ttttthehehehhe e eeexcxcxcxc tttttttttttititttttttttititininining g g g acacacacttttttttttttittititt vivivivittttttitititieseseses a a aa dddddddddddndndndddnd babababaskskssketetetete babababallllllll g g ggamamamameseseses..
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Mass Market
Performance-based 
Tennis Series

M
P
T

Rising affl uence and more available sports 

facilities have helped to boost popularity 

of tennis in China, thus creating a growing 

demand for performance-based tennis 

sportswear. The trendy appeal of tennis 

products also gains attraction from female 

and white collar consumers. To capitalise 

market opportunities, ANTA Sports has 

been expanding our tennis product portfolio 

since 2009, which was proven to be a great 

success in extending our infl uence in the 

tennis sportswear market.

ANTA Sports’ endorsement of the world’s 

renowned female tennis players, Zheng Jie 

and Jelena Jankovic, boded well for our 

ambition in the female tennis sportswear 

market. Equipped with ANTA tennis 

sportswear, our endorsers delivered superb 

performance in important tournaments in 

2010. Zheng Jie reached the semi-fi nal of 

Australian Open 2010, the best ever result 

in her tennis career. She also won her 12th 

career doubles title at the Malaysian Open 

2010. Jelena Jankovic, on the other hand, 

clinched victory in the BNP Paribas Open 

2010, winning her 12th career singles title 

in professional tournaments. Their excellent 

performance was a strong boost to the 

credibility of the ANTA brand.

ANTA Sports also worked with the 

endorsers closely in various marketing 

events to promote tennis in China. Zheng 

Jie and Jelena Jenkovic attended fans’ 

gathering and interacted with tennis lovers. 

We sponsored the Zheng Jie Youth Tennis 

Competition where Zheng Jie presented in 

the match to show support to the young 

tennis players. ANTA Sports is also keen to 

nurture future stars through the sponsorship 

of ANTA Cup-2010 Xiamen Golden Bridge-

ITF International Junior Tennis Tour.

Tennis is a vigorous sport and it is 

important for consumers to choose 

the right shoes to prevent injuries. Our 

design and R&D team closely monitored 

the physical condition of our endorsed 

players to tailor-make the best sportswear 

for them. In our quest to meet market 

demand for tennis products of different 

styles and designs, we pay particular 

attention to the designs of products and 

the application of different materials. In 

addition, we have adopted A-PS cut, an 

advanced 3-dimensional measurement 

technology for more accurate cutting 

to enhance the level of comfort that our 

tennis sportswear affords.



Running

OF HEAT AND PAIN
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ANTA Sports’ running series continues to be 

our top-selling product category, refl ecting 

the strong popularity of the sport in China. 

The Group has launched an extensive range 

of running products to target customers 

with different needs and preferences. 

By optimising the A-Jelly and other core 

technologies, we have further enhanced the 

value of our products and have provided 

consumers with the greatest running 

experience while successfully sustaining our 

lead in this area.

The Group continued to sponsor the 

Olympic Day Run following the success 

last year. The event, held under the theme 

of “Olympic Spirit Keeps Moving, Run for 

a Healthy China”, attracted nearly 20,000 

enthusiasts in 9 cities to share the joy of 

running. The Group was also the sole 

equipment and sportswear sponsor of 

the Dalian International Marathon and the 

Yangzhou Jianzhen International Half-

Marathon. Outfi tted by ANTA’s running gear, 

our endorsed marathon runner Chen Rong 

won the 2010 Dalian International Marathon 

championship. The sponsorship have helped 

promote the “Sports for All” spirit among the 

public by encouraging them to incorporate 

sport activities into their daily lives.

Our focused marketing campaign 

has successfully strengthened ANTA’s 

association with running. We continue to 

integrate TVC and in-store marketing to 

promote our running products, and more 

importantly to educate the public of the 

signifi cance in choosing the right running 

shoes that offer maximum protection and 

have the functionalities that meet their 

particular needs. Coinciding with the launch 

of the upgraded A-Jelly running shoes, we 

have launched the “Power of A-Jelly” online 

大連國際馬拉松賽體育用品唯一贊助商
Sole Sponsor of Equipment and 

Sportswear for Dalian International Marathon

Mass Market
Performance-based
Running Series

M
P
R game and an interactive 

website (http://anta.

youku.com/) to raise public 

awareness of our unique 

A-Jelly technology, thus to 

enhance the sales performance of 

our products and the desirability of our 

brand.

ANTA Sports is fully committed to continually 

improving the technologies of our running 

products. For instance, the Group has 

further optimised the application of A-Jelly 

technology from semi shoe sole to whole 

shoe sole. The upgraded product has 

improved cushioning and resilience on the 

sole and provides maximum protection 

for injuries on uneven surfaces. These 

value-added products have successfully 

expanded our product portfolio and make 

our products ideal for professional runners 

and consumers with higher purchasing 

power who demand maximum quality and 

functionality.



749
NUMBER OF SPORTS 

LIFESTYLE
SERIES STORES

NUMBER OF SPORTS 
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Mass Market
Sports Lifestyle
Series

M
S
S

Besides performance-based sportswear, 

the Group sees strong market potential for 

trendy leisure sportswear in the mass market. 

With rising living standards, consumers are 

looking for sportswear to show their style 

and individuality. In order to tap into this 

market segment, ANTA Sports made a 

leap in product diversifi cation by launching 

Sports Lifestyle series in late 2008. Evolving 

from the core ANTA brand, Sports Lifestyle 

series’ black logo accentuates the trendy 

focus to appeal to younger consumers who 

value individualism and freedom. Targeting 

teenagers and young working adults aged 

15 to 28 in the mass market, the current 

series have sneakers with matching apparel 

and accessories.

By utilising our product development and 

marketing initiatives, we are able to inject 

trendy and topical elements into our Sports 

Lifestyle product range, helping to ensure 

that they are at the forefront of the youth 

fashion market. The Sports Lifestyle series 

emphasises creative blend of design and 

colours while applying fashionable materials 

to make products stand out from others. 

The Group devised designated product 

theme in each season such as “Cool Play”, 

“Vintage” and “Street Dance”. As the football 

fever of the 2010 FIFA World Cup in South 

Africa swept through the world, ANTA Sports 

launched the “Wild Africa” series. We limit 

the quantity for each series to highlight 

product features and for better inventory 

management.

Apart from launching marketing activities 

that are aligned with product themes, 

we also keep a close tab on the trend in 

sports in the youth market to captivate 

our target audience. Riding on the 

increasing popularity of X Games, the 

Group rolled out a marketing campaign 

featuring stunts by trial bike and parkour 

expert, Yan Xiayan, who has a large 

following of teenage fans. The Sports 

Lifestyle series website is also regularly 

updated (http://www.anta.com/anta_

fashionstars/) with the latest product and 

store updates. To tighten the bonding with 

target consumers, different display style is 

applied to highlight the stylish and unique 

image of the Sports Lifestyle series. As 

at end of 2010, there were 749 Sports 

Lifestyle stores (2009: 343), representing 

a net addition of 406 stores.
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Mass Market
Kids Sportswear
Series

M
K
S

Driven by China’s fast-growing economy 

and sustainable growth in GDP, the children 

sportswear market has experienced steady 

growth in the past few years. Under the 

“One-Child-Policy” and “Sports for All” 

movement, parents are more willing to 

spend money on their children to ensure 

their well-being. As parents become more 

aware of product quality and safety issues 

in China, they are increasingly drawn to 

reputable brands that offer quality products. 

ANTA Sports introduced Kids sportswear 

series in late 2008 to satisfy the demand for 

reliable and value-for-money products for 

children in the mass market.

Targeting children aged between 8 and 14, 

Kids sportswear series aims to introduce 

the ANTA brand to children at an early 

stage of their life and to nurture their love 

for sports. The design and marketing of the 

products also take into account the special 

needs of children and parents. Drawing on 

our extensive experience in providing adult 

sportswear products, the Group has an R&D 

team dedicated to studying the shape and 

characteristics of children’s feet and body to 

develop products that are most suitable for 

them. Special attention is also paid on the 

selection of raw materials and design details 

to minimise the possibility of skin allergy 

and to enhance the comfort and protection 

level of products. In addition, we continue 

to expand our product offerings in order 

to enhance customers’ experience and 

promote their sense of brand loyalty along 

their childhood.

The Group focuses on launching 

marketing initiatives that are tailored to 

the taste of children, with a particular 

emphasis on the importance of sports 

as well as child health and personal 

development. During the year, we held 

drawing and photography competitions 

to inspire creativity in children and 

increase their bonding with our brand. 

The Internet is one of the most popular 

and widely used channels for parents 

to get information. In view of this, ANTA 

Sports has further enhanced the product 

website (http://www.antakids.com/) and 

Bulletin Board System (BBS) (http://

www.antakids.com/bbs/) for parents to 

exchange their views and share health 

care information with the Group. Using an 

eye-catching orange-coloured logo and 

lively store displays, the image of our Kids 

sportswear stores mirrors the healthy and 

happy lifestyle of children. During the year, 

we strategically expanded the network 

to increase our presence in the children 

sportswear market. The number of Kids 

sportswear series stores grew from 228 

at the end of 2009 to 383 at the end of 

2010, representing a net increase of 155 

stores.
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LOOKS THE SAME AGAIN
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MIX OF ATHLETIC AND 
AESTHETIC, AUTHENTIC 
AND FASHIONS, ITALIAN 
AND COSMOPOLITAN

Fila Business
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High-end MarketH

The “FILA” brand is a well-known global 

sportswear brand targeting the high end 

market segment. It is a good opportunity 

for us to expand our coverage to the high 

end sportswear market in the PRC. The 

operation of Fila retail stores in Hong Kong 

and Macao is strategically important for 

extending the brand’s reputation to the PRC 

market.

In order to raise the brand awareness and 

impact on the younger elite groups in the 

PRC high-end sportswear market, the Group 

is planning to rejuvenate and reposition 

Fila brand in China by launching a series 

of rebranding and marketing campaign to 

boost the brand recognition.

FILA stores with smart and refreshing display 

layout will be rolled out to impress trendy 

consumers in the fi rst and second tier cities. 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s 

distributors have been operating nearly 200 

Fila outlets in major cities of the PRC and 

the Group has nearly 10 Fila outlets in 

Hong Kong and Macao.

Since the acquisition of the Fila 

Business in the PRC in 2009, the Group 

has integrated the PRC team and 

the Hong Kong team who have 

deep understanding of Fila 

brand together with Fila’s 

worldwide resources and 

designers to form a strong 

product development 

team. In addition, the Group has also 

introduced OEM with extensive experience 

in serving international brands and high-

end customer markets to strengthen Fila’s 

supply chain.

Through innovative design, luxurious 

materials, and attention to detail, the 

Group will mix the heritage of Fila design 

with the fashion elements taking 

into account the preferences 

and physical characteristics of 

Chinese consumers to offer a 

new look of Fila products to 

the PRC market.

With the above branding 

and product strategies and 

the strong management 

team, we believe that the 

Fila business in the PRC 

will become another growth 

driver for the Group.
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ANTA Brand in China Market

ANTA Sports believes our business’ 
sustainability is closely linked to the health 
and soundness of the distribution network. 
With this belief, we have built over years 
an extensive network and an effective  
management system which extend our 
surveillance down to the store level. 
Furthermore, ANTA Sports has established a 
strong bonding with our regional distributors 
and franchisees, which enhances our network 
execution capabilities and our responsiveness 
to market changes. We all uphold the target 
of continuous optimisation of store efficiency 

and profitability to ensure our network remains 
competitive and sustainable in the long term.

•	 Extensive	ANTA	Retail	Network

To match mass market orientation, ANTA 
Sports continues to penetrate into high 
growth areas with a primary focus on second 
and third tier cities to capture opportunities 
brought by urbanisation and wage increases. 
As at 31 December 2010, the number of 
ANTA stores grew by 958 to 7,549 (2009: 
6,591). We further optimised the store size 
and location to boost retail performance 
and brand image. Total sales floor area and 
average sales floor area per store were 
approximately 872,000 sq. metres and 116 
sq. metres respectively. Taking advantage 
of popular e-commerce platforms such as 
taobao.com, letao.com and amazon.cn, the 

Group successfully captured the booming 
demand from online shoppers.

•	 Effective	Network	Planning	and	
Management	System

From the outset, ANTA Sports aimed to a 
lean and effective network structure with 
clear accountability and responsibility. The 
Group currently manages the nationwide 
distribution network through approximately 
60 regional distributors who take up the 
primary responsibilities of monitoring and 
guiding franchisees. Our sales team located 
in 3 regional centres and 7 branch offices 
offers timely support and ensure effective 
communication with distributors and 
franchisees.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NATIONWIDE DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Northern	
region

Eastern	
region

Southern	
region

Nationwide Distribution and Retail Network as at 31 December 2010

Southern Region

ANTA
Stores

Sports Lifestyle
Series Stores

Kids Series 
Stores

270 2,268 160

Beijing, Hebei, Inner Mongolia, Shanxi, Henan, 
Shandong, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai, Tianjin, 
Xinjiang, Shaanxi, Liaoning, Heilongjiang and Jilin.

Hunan, Hubei, Anhui, Jiangxi, Zhejiang, Jiangsu 
and Shanghai. 

Guangdong, Guangxi, Fujian, Hainan, Guizhou, 
Yunnan, Sichuan, Chongqing and Tibet.

Northern Region

ANTA
Stores

Sports Lifestyle
Series Stores

Kids Series 
Stores

239 2,538 123

Eastern Region

ANTA
Stores

Sports Lifestyle
Series Stores

Kids Series 
Stores

240 2,743 100
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Distribution Network & Structure

Southern Region

Northern Region

Eastern Region

Xiamen

Beijing

Shanghai Xian

Shenyang Chengdu

Wuhan

749 Sports Lifestyle 
Series Stores

Total Sales Floor Area 

Approx. 872,000 sq.m.

Average Sales Floor Area 

Per Store 116 sq.m.

383 Kids 
Series Stores

13 ANTA 

Flagship Stores

7,549 ANTA 
Stores

AAAverag

Per

ANTA
res

383 Kid
Series Sto

NTA 

Stores

749 Spor
Series

r Area

sq.m.

Over the years, the Group has developed 

a comprehensive management system to 

oversee network development and monitor 

retail performance. Store performance data 

are collected through an ERP system and 

weekly reports submitted by POS. The 

analyses of those data not only allow us to 

evaluate the performance of different regions 

but also helpful to identify opportunities and 

problems in the network. For instance, we 

share the insights we learn from historical 

trends to distributors and franchisees and 

guide their annual store expansion plans and 

trade fair order estimates, the accuracy of 

which will directly affect the stores profi tability. 

The Group actively involves distributors in 

the setting of key performance targets and 

provides appropriate incentives so that 

distributors and franchisees will have clear 

benchmark of what level of inventory and 

discount level they should achieve. The above 

measures help ANTA Sports remain highly 

competitive in gaining market share.

ANTA Sports sees distributors and 

franchisees as our long term partners and is 

committed to enhancing their management 

capabilities and profi tability. In addition to 

routine guidance and providing manuals to 

our retailers, the Group conducts nationwide 

training to reinforce and standardise retailers’ 

knowledge on product, decoration and 

display, customer service and inventory 

management.

• Outstanding Store Image

In order to sustain our leadership in the mass 

market and brand desirability, ANTA Sports 

insists on projecting a consistent store image. 

POP materials are also standardised to 

highlight the marketing themes of the season. 

Furthermore, the Group provides display 

equipment to encourage the adoption of the 

latest 5th-generation store layout and image. 

As at 31 December 2010, 85% of stores 

(2009: 78%) have been upgraded to the 5th-

generation standard. The outstanding layout 

and display at 13 ANTA fl agship stores in fi rst 

tier cities have given our brand image a big 

boost. The Group has also set up the “COC 

Corner” and “Grand Basketball Corner” in key 

stores to spotlight special product series.

ANTA Brand in Overseas 
Markets

In view of the gradual recovery of the global 

economy, the Group has endeavoured to 

expand our presence in selected overseas 

markets. The Group’s overseas distributors 

have opened ANTA stores and concessionary 

counters in Southeast Asia, Eastern Europe 

and the Middle East. Our value-for-money 

products with good quality and functionality 

have received favourable responses in these 

markets. Our collaboration with the COC 

and renowned endorsers such as Kevin 

Garnett, Luis Scola and Jelena Jankovic also 

has helped strengthen ANTA’s international 

exposure, laying a solid foundation for our 

future growth in overseas markets.
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Luis Scola Designated Basketball Shoes
Basketball Series | Aug 2010

Hydrogen Running Shoes
Running Series | Oct 2010

COC Liscensed Footwear Product
COC Series | Oct 2010

next page

HOME HELP LOG IN   NEWS CURRENCY ITEMS VIEW CART ORDER HISTORY

SHOP BY: BRAND SPORTS CATEGORY WHAT’S NEW ANTA PROJECTS SEARCH GO

GO

Product shot

ANTA newsletter

Sign up for our newsletter and keep updated to the 
new products and marketing campaigns

2010 Q4 to 2011 Q1

Kevin Garnett’s Marketing Campaign 

2010 Q2 to 2010 Q3

A-Jelly Technology’s Marketing 
Campaign 

2010 Q3 to 2010 Q4

“Support China Altogether” 
Marketing Campaign 

2010 Q1 to 2010 Q2

“I Love CBA” Marketing Campaign

Latest news

WHAT’S NEW

Kevin Garnett Designated Basketball Shoes
Basketball Series | Dec 2010

A-Jelly Running Shoes
Running Series | Oct 2010

Jelena Jankovic Designated Tennis Shoes
Tennis Series | Aug 2010

E-COMMERCE
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The recognition of 9-year top seller of travel 
and sports shoes in China illustrates our 
leadership in product quality and design 
in the mass sportswear market. Product 
innovation and differentiation always are at 
the top of our priority list. The Group spares 
no effort to enhance our product value and 
to optmise the product mix while offering 
consumers the best value for money. To 
increase our responsiveness to market 
changes, the Group has taken steps to help 
ensure our supply chain management and 
operational procedures remain cost effective 
and competitive.

Supply Chain and 
Operational Management

Based on years of experience on cost 
control, the Group further improved our 
workflow and cost monitoring systems to 
remain effective amidst rising inflationary 
pressures. Leveraging our extensive supply 
chain network, our procurement team 
worked closely with suppliers, OEM and 
ODM to monitor and share information of the 
cost trends of key raw materials. Meanwhile, 
we also extended collaboration with high 
quality OEM and ODM. The Group also 
identified critical manufacturing processes to 
save costs and reduce wastage. Moreover, 
we ordered materials with OEM and ODM 
to enjoy mass-purchase discounts. All these 
help ANTA Sports and our supply chain 
partners sustain operational efficiency and 
profitability in the long run.

Product Innovation

ANTA Sports believes technological invention 
and cutting-edge design are essential to 
sustain our leadership in the mass market. 
We continue to strengthen our internal R&D 
and design capabilities and collaboration 
with external institutions to seek for 
breakthroughs.

Using the right materials in the manufacturing 
of products not only helps save costs but 

also enhances the value of the product 
and the customer’s enjoyment. The Group 
cooperates with Huntsman Corporation to 
use an anti-bacteria technology, A-Antiseptic 
to prevent skin allergy and odour, thus 
making our products more comfortable 
for customers. Using the advanced fabric 
protector technology Teflon® of DuPont™, 
our apparel products are more durable and 
offer long-lasting protection against oil-and 
water-based stains and dust. Meanwhile, 
the Group applies 3M™ Thinsulate™ Ultra 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Cycle Of Product Design, 
Production And Delivery
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goods will be on shelves 
by 1 January

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter



ANTA Sports Products Limited  Annual Report 201050

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIDE-BACKER is a support 

system of the lateral side of 

shoe soles’ fore part that 

reduces the risk of twisting

AUTO-ARCH enables 

greater torsion control 

and improves stability

PRS rotate 

system facilitates 

greater agility on 

the feet when 

spinning

SUPER FLEXI helps 

make the fl exing joint on 

the fore foot feel snug 

and comfortable

A-WEARABLE RB is 

a rugged material that 

offers both anti-slip and 

abrasion resistance

A-FORM lowers the 

rate of foot injury by 

absorbing the impact on 

the heel

TALOON is a claw-like 

clasp system providing 

excel lent support and 

protection for the upper

A-HARDCOURT RB is a 

super tough rubber offering 

maximum durability for 

outdoor activities

A-SPRING is an elastic 

arch structure that offers 

maximum torsibility 

and provides excellent 

performance in shock 

absorption

A-CORE is a shock 

absorption technology 

for sports shoe soles that 

reduces the force of impact

A-COOL ensures 

maximum breathability 

and comfort with its 

effi cient ventilation design

A-JELLY is made of environmental 

friendly material that provides 

excellent anti-compression and 

anti-deformation capabilities for 

enhancing stability

ANTA’S Footwear Technology

Insulation in the winter sportswear series, 

a fi ber thermal insulation which provides 

exceptional warmth, which is also light and 

breathable that fi ts consumers in cold areas. 

The Group also applies A-organic cotton 

in support of low carbon living. The above 

initiatives not only have made our products 

more durable, functional and eco-friendly, 

they also promote a greener way of life.

During the year, we continued to perfect the 

A-Jelly and core technologies to enhance 

and diversify our product range. In particular, 

the Group introduced approximately 2,100 

new footwear products, 3,700 pieces of 

apparel and 2,000 accessory items, to 

ensure our portfolio of products meet the 

different tastes and needs of consumers. 

Moreover, our cooperation with the COC 

and the CSD has created an ideal platform 

to explore and experiment the cutting edge 

technology and fabrics for professional 

athletes. We have seized this invaluable 

opportunity to enhance our product 

innovation capabilities which has provided 

a signifi cant boost to the technology of our 

mass market products.
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Production Bases in Fujian Province

China

Changting
Apparel Production 

Base Approx. 

3,196,000 pieces

on

Xiamen
Apparel Production 

Base Approx. 

4,622,000 pieces

ion

Chendai
Footwear Production 

Base 4 Footwear 

Production Lines 

Approx. 2,840,000 pairs

tion

Chidian
Footwear Production 

Base 20 Footwear 

Production Lines 

Approx. 12,743,000 pairs

tion

Fujian

Production Capabilities

The Group strategically optimised the mix of 

our in-house and outsourced production to 

increase the responsiveness to consumers’ 

preferences and market changes. During 

the year, approximately 15.6 million pairs of 

footwear and 7.8 million pieces of apparel 

were produced in-house. The proportion of 

self-produced footwear and apparel being 

procured was 41.1% and 15.6% (2009: 

41.9% and 17.2%) respectively. The graph 

above sets out the details of the Group’s 

production bases and the quantity of 

products manufactured during the year.

Anhai
Shoe Sole Production 

Base Approx. 

15,473,000 pairs

ction
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Our ANTA 
Technology Centre

With continuous efforts to be 
“precise, detailed, practical 
and accurate”, we strive 
to grow with the sports 
industry.

With continuous efforts to be 
“precise, detailed, practical 
and accurate”, we strive
to grow with the sports
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Quality Control

Consumers not only demand stylish and 

trendy designs, but also comfort and 

protection in sportswear. ANTA Sports has 

applied stringent quality control measures 

as early as in the product planning stage to 

ensure all our products are of premium quality. 

Our ANTA Technology Centre has adopted 

stringent testing standards to closely monitor 

the supply of raw materials, production 

process and fi nished products at our own 

factories and at suppliers’ production facilities 

to ensure compliance with national quality 

standards.

Our efforts in offering the best quality 

products have been recognised by the 

industry over the years. During the year, the 

Company received the “ISO9001: 2008 

certifi cation” on quality management. 

Quality Control machines developed by 

our ANTA Technology Centre successfully 

obtained patents from the State Intellectual 

Property Offi ce of the PRC. We are the 

members in national and industry standard 

setting committees, which enables us 

to contribute to the advancement of the 

whole sportswear industry as well as to 

maintain our lead in the mass market.

Quality Control

Consumers not only demand stylish and 

trendy designs, but also comfort and 

protection in sportswear. ANTA Sports has 

applied stringent quality control measures 

as early as in the product planning stage to 

ensure all our products are of premium quality. 

Our ANTA Technology Centre has adopted 

stringent testing standards to closely monitor 

the supply of raw materials, production 

process and fi nished products at our own

factories and at suppliers’ production facilities

to ensure compliance with national quality 

standards.

Our efforts in offering the best quality 

products have been recognised by the 

industry over the years. During the year, the

Company received the “ISO9001: 2008 

cecertrtififi ccatation” on quality management.

QuQuala itty y CoC ntrol machines developed by 

our ANANTA Technology Centre successfully 

obtained patents from the State Intellectual 

Property Offi ce of the PRC. We are the 

members in national and industry standard 

setting committees, which enables us 

to contribute to the advancement of the 

whole sportswear industry as well as to 

maintain our lead in the mass market.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover Breakdown by Product

The following table sets out the contribution to the turnover by product category for the 

financial year:

Turnover Breakdown by Region

The following table sets out the contribution to the turnover by region for the financial year:

During the financial year, turnover increased 

by 26.1% as compared with 2009 because 

of the increase in ASP, additional product 

offerings and expansion of the distribution 

network. The share of apparel and 

accessories in sales increased from 43.6% 

for 2009 to 48.4% for the financial year. It 

reflected that our apparel and accessories 

design was well received by the market.

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009 Changes

(RMB million)
(% of

turnover) (RMB million)
(% of

turnover) (%)

Eastern region(1) 2,647.6 35.8 2,203.7 37.5  20.1

Southern region(1) 2,559.5 34.5 2,083.1 35.5  22.9

Northern region(1) 2,118.9 28.6 1,544.9 26.3  37.2

China market 7,326.0 98.9 5,831.7 99.3  25.6

Overseas markets(2) 82.3 1.1 42.9 0.7  91.8

7,408.3 100.0 5,874.6 100.0  26.1

2010 
RMB7,408.3M

3.4%

51.6%45.0%

2009
RMB5,874.6M

2.6%

41.0% 56.4%

Footwear Apparel Accessories

2010 
RMB7,408.3M

1.1%

34.5%

28.6%

35.8%

2009
RMB5,874.6M

0.7%

37.5%

26.3% 35.5%

Southern region Eastern region

Overseas marketsNorthern region

Notes:

(1) For details of region coverage, please refer to page 46.

(2) Overseas markets include Eastern Europe, Middle East and Southeast Asia.

The increase in turnover in the northern 

region was notable because of our 

continuous effort to balance the business 

among regions and to lessen the seasonality 

effect on our supply-chain.

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009 Changes

(RMB million)
(% of

turnover) (RMB million)
(% of

turnover) (%)

Footwear 3,824.9 51.6 3,315.3 56.4  15.4

Apparel 3,333.0 45.0 2,409.9 41.0  38.3

Accessories 250.4 3.4 149.4 2.6  67.6

7,408.3 100.0 5,874.6 100.0  26.1
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Analysis of ASP, Volume and Average Costs

The following table sets out the ASP, the volume and the average costs of footwear and apparel sold respectively for the financial year:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009 Changes

Total number 

of units sold

(thousand) 

ASP

(RMB) 

Average costs

(RMB)

Total number 

of units sold

(thousand) 

ASP

(RMB) 

Average costs

(RMB)

Total number 

of units sold

(%) 

ASP

(%) 

Average costs

(%)

Footwear 38,430 99.5 55.1 34,643 95.7 53.2  10.9  4.0  3.6

Apparel 50,628 65.8 39.0 39,834 60.5 36.9  27.1  8.8  5.7

Notes:

(1) We do not include details of the ASP, the volume and the average cost of the accessory products because we have a broad range of accessory products that vary significantly in 

terms of unit price. We believe that a unit-based analysis of this product category is not meaningful.

(2) ASP represents the turnover for the financial year divided by the total number of units sold during the financial year. Average cost represents the cost of goods sold for the financial 

year divided by the total number of units sold during the financial year.

Footwear Apparel Footwear Apparel Footwear Apparel

100 60 60

50 50

RMB Pairs/pieces (M) RMB

60

30 30

80

40 40

40
20 20

20
10 10

0 0 0

2006 2006 20062007 2007 20072008 2008 20082009 2009 20092010 2010 2010

65.8 38.4 39.0
60.5 34.6 36.9

57.0

26.8

35.3
53.6

18.3

35.6

46.6

8.8

34.8

68.2

51.288.0

23.6

58.6
94.0

33.9

55.2
95.7

39.8

53.2

99.5

50.6
55.1

ASP Volume Average Costs

ASP

• Increase in consumers’ disposable 

income, demand on sportswear 

products in China and strengthening 

of brand desirability have contributed 

significantly to the average increase in 

our suggested retail prices; and

• The enhancement of our brand image 

and the provision of more supports 

and services to the distributors have 

contributed to the increase in our ASP.

Volume

• Enhancement of brand and store 

image and the opening of flagship 

stores at prime locations are crucial 

factors for improving the quality of 

the distribution network and creating 

opportunity for further expansion 

of the distribution network to other 

potential markets. During the financial 

year, the number of ANTA stores and 

the total sales floor area have been 

increased; and

• The Group has developed a wide range 

of product lines to meet the demand of 

various markets in China.

Average Costs

Although average costs have been 

increased, the Group still can maintain ASP 

growth exceeding average costs growth as 

the Group has taken the following measures:

• Early purchase of raw materials to reduce 

the impact of price fluctuations; and

• Purchase of raw materials together with 

OEM/ODM in order to strengthen the 

Group’s bargaining power and enjoy 

the mass-purchase discount.

Despite growing cost pressure, the Group 

has dedicated to expand our design team 

and further upgrade our product offerings so 

as to maintain competitiveness.

11.7
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Cost of Sales Breakdown by Production and Procurement

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales by production and procurement and the percentage of such costs to 

the total cost of sales for the financial year:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009 Changes

(RMB million)
(% of

 cost of sales) (RMB million)
(% of

 cost of sales) (%)

Self-production

 Raw materials 529.4 12.5 518.1 15.2   2.2

 Direct labour 315.9 7.4 258.0 7.6   22.4

 Overhead 206.7 4.9 207.3 6.1   0.3

1,052.0 24.8 983.4 28.9   7.0

Subcontracting arrangement

 Raw materials 320.6 7.6 299.0 8.8   7.2

 Subcontracting charges* 244.0 5.7 225.1 6.6   8.4

564.6 13.3 524.1 15.4   7.7

Outsourced production

 OEM/ODM 2,621.1 61.9 1,894.2 55.7   38.4

Total 4,237.7 100.0 3,401.7 100.0   24.6

*  The subcontracting charges stated in note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements included raw material processing fee. Such fee is included in the cost of raw materials in this 

analysis.

The Group has adopted subcontracting arrangements to meet with the increasing demand of distributors rather than only relying on OEM/ODM 

so that the Group is able to increase its lateral production capacity while maintaining control over several production processes.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin Breakdown by Product Category

The following table sets out the gross profit and the gross profit margin by product category for the financial year:

Year ended 31 December

2010 2009 Changes

Gross profit
(RMB million)

Gross profit
margin

(%)
Gross profit

(RMB million)

Gross profit
margin

(%) (% points)

Footwear 1,706.6 44.6 1,470.9 44.4  0.2

Apparel 1,358.7 40.8 940.2 39.0  1.8

Accessories 105.3 42.1 61.8 41.4  0.7

Overall 3,170.6 42.8 2,472.9 42.1  0.7

As the increases in ASP of footwear and apparel were greater than the increase in average costs, the gross profit margins for both products 

increased during the financial year.
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Other Revenue

Other revenue for the financial year mainly 

represented government grants of RMB33.3 

million (2009: RMB23.8 million).

Operating Expenses Ratios

The ratio of advertising and promotional 

expenses to turnover has increased by 

0.9% points for the financial year as we have 

spent more budget on basketball, Winter 

Olympic and Asian Games in 2010. The ratio 

of staff costs to turnover has decreased by 

0.2% points as our management team has 

achieved operational efficiency during the 

financial year. The ratio of R&D costs to cost 

of sales has increased by 0.2% points in line 

with the Group’s R&D strategy.

Net Finance Income

The increase in interest income was mainly 

due to more RMB deposits being placed 

during the financial year.

Effective Tax Rate

Effective tax rate increased from 13.6% 

for 2009 to 16.1% mainly because of the 

following:

• Certain subsidiaries in the PRC which 

were entitled to a lower preferential 

tax rate in 2009 have been subject to 

a higher preferential tax rate since 1 

January 2010; and

• Distributions of the earnings 

accumulated since 1 January 2008 of a 

foreign-invested enterprise in the PRC 

to a Hong Kong incorporated investor 

is subject to a dividend withholding tax 

of 5%. The Group has estimated the 

amount of future dividends that are 

likely to be distributed by these foreign-

invested subsidiaries. Accordingly, 

deferred tax liabilities were recognised 

in respect of the dividend withholding 

tax for the financial year.

Margin of Profit attributable 
to Equity Shareholders

Margin of profit attributable to equity 

shareholders decreased by 0.4% points 

which is due to the 0.3% points decrease in 

operating profit margin for the financial year 

and the increase in the tax provision.

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final dividend 

of HK25 cents per ordinary share in respect 

of the financial year, together with payment 

of an interim dividend of HK20 cents per 

ordinary share, representing a total payout of 

RMB963.2 million (2009: RMB767.7 million), 

or a distribution of 62.1% (2009: 61.3%) of 

the current year’s profit attributable to equity 

shareholders.

Liquidity and Financial 
Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the cash and 

cash equivalents of the Group amounted 

to RMB3,391.2 million (placement of fixed 

deposits held at banks with maturity over 

three months totalling RMB900.0 million 

was regarded as an investing activity), 

representing an increase of RMB954.1 million 

as compared with the total cash and cash 

equivalents of RMB2,437.1 million as at 31 

December 2009. The total cash and bank 

balance (including pledged deposits) was 

RMB4,300.8 million as at 31 December 2010 

(2009: RMB4,006.7 million), representing a 

7.3% increase. This is mainly attributable to:

%
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Effective Tax Rate

Operating Profit Margin

Operating profit margin decreased by 0.3% 

points which is lower than the 0.7% points 

increase in the gross profit margin for the 

financial year, which was mainly due to 

the increase in the ratio of advertising and 

promotional expenses to turnover by 0.9% 

points.

Operating Expenses Ratio
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• Net cash inflows from operating 

activities amounted to RMB1,432.8 

million, representing strong working 

capital management and outstanding 

operating results.

• Net cash inflows from investing activities 

amounted to RMB496.2 million, 

comprising mainly the net decrease 

in placement of fixed deposits held at 

banks with maturity over three months 

by RMB660.0 million, offset by capital 

expenditure amounting to RMB164.6 

million.

• Net cash outflows from financing 

activities amounted to RMB939.1 

million, mainly representing the payment 

of the final and special dividends in 

respect of the financial year 2009 and 

the interim dividend in respect of the 

financial year, offsetting with the cash 

proceeds on exercise of share options.

As at 31 December 2010, total assets of 

the Group were RMB7,054.5 million of 

which current assets were RMB5,745.1 

million. Total liabilities and non-controlling 

interests were RMB1,376.5 million and 

total shareholders’ equity amounted to 

RMB5,678.0 million. In addition, there 

were no outstanding bank loans, bonds or 

debentures.

Due to strong growth of profit attributable to 

equity shareholders, the return on average 

total shareholders’ equity increased from 

26.2% for 2009 to 28.8% for the financial 

year and the return on average total assets 

increased from 22.6% for year 2009 to 

23.6% for the financial year.

A table analysing the Group’s free cash inflow for the financial year was disclosed below.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 

bank deposits of RMB9.6 million pledged 

(2009: RMB9.6 million) to secure bankers’ 

documentary credits for certain construction 

projects.

Capital Commitments 
and Contingencies

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 

capital commitments of RMB404.8 million, 

primarily relating to development of new 

information management systems and the 

establishment of an operational centre in 

Xiamen.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 

not provided any form of guarantee for any 

company outside the Group. The Group 

is not involved in any current material legal 

proceedings, nor are there any pending or 

potential material legal proceedings involving 

the Group.

2010 2009

(RMB million) (RMB million)

Operating cash inflow 1,432.8 1,688.7

Capital expenditure (164.6) (133.4)

Acquisition of subsidiaries – (400.0)

Others 0.8 1.5

Free cash inflow* 1,269.0 1,156.8

Cash and bank balances
 (including pledged deposits) 4,300.8 4,006.7

Assets/Liabilities
Turnover Ratio

Despite the remarkable growth of turnover 

and scale of operation, the Group has 

successfully implemented measures to 

control the inventory level and credit risk. 

The average inventory turnover days plus 

the average trade receivables turnover days 

remained at a similar level when compared 

with 2009.

* Free cash flow represents operating cash flow minus capital expenditure and others.
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Strong Financial Position

No bank or 
other loans

Shareholders’

equity

Liabilitie
s and others 20%

Solid 
Capital base

Light assets
Liquid, no 

financial needs

Total assets 
7,054.5 million

Non-current assets 19%

Current 

Assets

81
80

Financial Management 
Policies

The Group continues to control financial 

risks in a prudent manner and proactively 

adopts internationally recognised corporate 

management standards to safeguard the 

interests of shareholders. As the functional 

currency of the Company is the Hong 

Kong dollar and the Company’s financial 

statements are translated into Renminbi 

for reporting and consolidation purposes, 

foreign exchange differences arising from 

the translation of financial statements are 

directly recognised in equity as a separate 

reserve. As the Group conducts business 

transactions principally in Renminbi, the 

exchange rate risk at the Group’s operational 

level is not significant. Accordingly, the Group 

does not employ any financial instruments 

for hedging purposes. Nevertheless, the 

management continues to monitor the 

foreign exchange exposure and is prepared 

to take prudent measures such as hedging 

when needed.

Significant Investments 
and Acquisitions

During the financial year, the Group 

has made no significant investments or 

any material acquisition or disposal of 

subsidiaries. The Group continues to seek 

business opportunities such as acquisition 

of and cooperation with international 

sportswear brands to operate brand 

management business so as to increase the 

returns on shareholders’ equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

campaigns riding on basketball superstar 

Kevin Garnett’s popularity in China will give 

our brand value and desirability a strong 

boost in the basketball market. The Group is 

also committed to providing more innovative 

products to help increase the performance 

of our endorsed athletes and sponsored 

league players. In the spirit of “Reach Higher” 

marketing campaign, we hope Kevin Garnett 

will achieve greater achievements in the 

NBA matches as he competes in the “KG” 

shoes tailor-made by ANTA. In addition, we 

will further strengthen our collaboration with 

the COC and CSD by rolling out a series 

of Olympics-themed marketing campaigns 

and products to better connect ANTA to 

our target customers leveraging the CSD's 

participation in the London Olympics. Our 

effective use of top-tier sports resources will 

not only enhance brand equity but also fuel 

sales growth.

Diversify Product Offerings 
to Tap Growth

The Chinese government has been actively 

promoting a healthier lifestyle and sports 

participation among its people. Rising 

affl uence and a heightened awareness of 

health among the public have produced 

a large number of sports enthusiasts. As 

more women take part in sports and fi tness 

exercises, the Group is ready to capitalise 

this potential market. We will roll out 

TVC and POP to coincide with 

the launching of performance-

based products injected with 

fashion and trendy elements to meet 

the demand of this growing female 

market. We will also expand our basketball 

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, spurring domestic 

consumption and ensuring a more equitable 

distribution of wealth are going to be the two 

major issues facing China, according to the 

central government’s 12th Five-Year Plan. 

The policymakers are expected to take steps 

to raise the nation’s income levels and living 

standards. Riding on the increase of public’s 

purchasing power as well as the promotion 

of urbanisation and sports participation 

we expect to see continued growth in the 

sportswear industry. On the other hand, 

rising infl ationary pressures will bring 

challenges to all market players, particularly 

the weaker brands and their retailers. As a 

result, diverging performances by industry 

players are expected to see in the coming 

years. Still, the Group is confi dent that we 

can sustain healthy growth and consolidate 

our leading position despite the challenges 

by further strengthening our competitiveness 

to take full advantage of market growth.

Make Full Use of 
Sponsorship and 
Endorsement Portfolio

Our commitment to build ANTA into a 

strong brand is best demonstrated by 

our efforts to perfect the sponsorship and 

endorsement portfolio. We are devoted 

to unleashing the value of such powerful 

resources to the fullest degree. Marketing 

product offerings to mark the joining of 

Kevin Garnett to the ANTA family. The Group 

also sees increasing demand for sports lifestyle 

products from style-conscious young people 

who seek individuality. We are therefore devoting 

efforts to further optimise and expand the product 

mix of our Sports Lifestyle series to satisfy that 

need. Furthermore, the Fila business in the PRC also 

represents a long term growth opportunity for the Group 

in the high-end market with its unique brand position and 

stylish products.



Annual Report 2010  ANTA Sports Products Limited 61

Store Expansion Plan in 2011

300FILA stores

Expand Distribution 
Network with Effective 
Channel Control

The profi tability and health of our distribution 

network are two of the key strengths of the 

Group. As second and third tier cities are 

expected to continue to be the engine for 

growth we will focus our store expansion 

efforts in these areas to solidify our 

leadership. At the same time, we will reinforce 

our brand image by establishing a stronger 

presence in big cities and by optimising 

the decoration and product display on the 

store level. We will continue to upgrade our 

network planning and management system 

to ensure our distributors and franchisees 

are well-equipped to outperform in the 

competition. Specifi c measures will be 

implemented to ensure the timely exchange 

of market information and enhance the 

operational capabilities of retailers as well 

as store expansion and trade fair order plan 

formulation, which are critical to ensure 

store effi ciency and profi tability. Meanwhile, 

e-commerce is another sales channel that 

we are strategically developing to exploit 

opportunities in that emerging market.

Optimise Innovation 
Capability and Operational 
Efficiency

We prize ourselves on providing innovative 

and highly functional products for athletes 

and consumers. With the support of ANTA 

Technology Centre and external R&D 

partners, we are well-equipped to achieve 

breakthroughs in the technology, design 

and material of product innovation, and 

to roll out more value-added products to 

cater to the different needs of consumers. 

More importantly, through our advanced 

operational systems and effective cost 

control measures we are able to maintain 

our profi tability and help our supply chain 

partners and retailers to sustain in spite 

of keen competition in an infl ationary 

environment. The pilot run of the upgraded 

ERP system at selected ANTA stores will 

soon begin. The new system will have 

larger network coverage and we believe it 

will lift store effi ciency with the provision of 

more timely and insightful information on 

consumer preferences and market trends.

understanding of the market trend.

1,000Sports Lifestyle 

series stores

8,200ANTA stores

500Kids series 

stores

kids
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OUR ENDORSED PLAYER ZHENG JIE
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SUPPORT

ALTOGETHER
CHINA

We uphold integrity and honesty, we are 
grateful and attach high importance to 
social responsibility.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

ANTA, Society and the Environment

1. Promote Youth Education and Development

Young people are the future pillars of our society. We believe 

education is the best investment we as a nation can make to 

improve the lives of the younger generation and to ensure the 

future of our society. With this in mind, the Group and our staff 

have donated money, books, and stationery to schools to help 

build a better environment for learning. ANTA Sports also places 

a strong emphasis on the health and well-being of children. To 

promote sports participation among school children, the Group 

has joined hands with our endorsed players and employees to 

give away sportswear and equipment to schools. ANTA Sports’ 

volunteers also took part in the “Joyful Sports” program which 

aims to spread the spirit and joy of sports among children.

2,020 views
Fulfi lling our social responsibility 
is one of ANTA Sports’ core values 

as we recognise its importance to 
the sustainable development of 
our business. Bearing this goal in mind, 

the Group is fully committed to creating 

value for our shareholders, business 

partners, staff and society as a whole. As a 

responsible corporate citizen, we also work 

hard to contribute to a better community 

and a more sustainable environment.
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2. Address Community Needs

ANTA Sports is a keen believer in giving back to society and in the 

value of charitable work. That is why we encourage our staff, business 

partners and the public to do the same. In times of natural disasters, the 

Group has always sprung into action to mobilise relief efforts. Apart from 

making cash donations to help the people affected by the devastating 

earthquake in Yushu, Qinghai and the mudslide in Zhouqu, Gansu, the 

Group also had helped fi ght the drought in Yunnan by mobilising our 

distributors and National Rowing Team to distribute drinking water to the 

local people. During the year, our endorsed basketball player, Luis Scola, 

demonstrated his care for the children affected by the Yushu earthquake 

by taking them to the Shanghai World Expo to widen their horizon.

2,020 views

3. Build a Greener China

At ANTA Sports we embrace the idea of creating a sustainable 

environment and of building a greener China. To raise public awareness 

of the importance of environmental protection, we have involved in a on-

going tree planting campaign called “Champion Forest”, which has so far 

held successful tree planting activities in Beijing and Guangzhou. Within 

the Group, we embed environmental considerations into our major 

business decision-making processes. In our production operation, we 

are keen to explore new ways to reduce wastage and conserve energy, 

and use eco-friendly materials in the manufacturing of our products 

where possible. Not only do we abide by the relevant environmental 

regulations and rules, and have gained all necessary permissions and 

approvals from related regulators, we also encourage our workforce 

to come up with innovative ways for environmental protection in the 

workplace to cut our carbon footprint.

2,020 views

4. Ensure Legal Compliance

We pride ourselves on making every effort to ensure that our operations 

are in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations and that 

this commitment is enshrined in our corporate culture. Regular legal 

and corporate culture trainings are held to improve our employees’ 

legal compliance knowledge and to help them better appreciate 

the importance of good corporate governance. To reinforce this 

commitment, the Group’s Code of Conduct lays out our uncompromising 

anti-corruption policies and guidance on handling confl ict of interest 

situations. In addition, we continue to make improvements to our risk 

management, internal control and quality control systems. Measures 

are also being implemented to ensure that proper precautionary and 

monitoring procedures are in place.

2,020 views
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2. Encourage Sports Participation and Nurture Sports Talent

ANTA Sports believes the higher the rates of sports participation in 

the general public, the healthier the nation will become and the more 

sustainable the sportswear industry will be. Therefore, the Group is 

devoted to raising public awareness of the importance of incorporating 

sports into their everyday life by sponsoring major sports organisations 

and sports leagues such as the COC, CBA and CUBA. By offering our 

support to various sporting events like Olympic Day Run and Dalian 

International Marathon, we are able to help more people experience the 

joy of sports. ANTA Sports also enlists the support of our world-class 

endorsed players to help promote sports participation and to inspire 

other talented athletes. Over the years we have sponsored events 

including off-season training camps with CBA and CUBA, “My Basketball 

Dream” rookies tryout and Zheng Jie Cup Youth Tennis Competition to 

bring up young athletes.

ANTA and Industry

1. Promote the Development of Industry and Sports Undertaking

The Group is committed to providing every support to lift the country’s 

sporting standards. We believe high-quality professional sportswear and 

equipment are vital for giving our athletes the support they deserve and 

need to excel in their fi elds, which in turn helps improve the country’s 

performance in sports. It is with this belief in mind that we dedicate our 

efforts to product innovation and to enhancing the R&D capabilities of 

our ANTA Technology Centre. Through this effort of providing the best 

performance-based sportswear to our endorsed athletes and sponsored 

leagues players, we hope to help lift the standing of Chinese athletes on 

the world stage.

3. Facilitating Sportswear Industry Advancement

Product quality is at the heart of our core value and culture. We believe 

the provision of superior quality sportswear products not only improves 

the country and its athletes’ performance in sports, but also enhances 

the professional image and creditability of China’s sportswear industry 

as a whole. This is a goal which we are keen to pursue alongside our 

industry peers, by promoting our view and sharing our experiences. We 

are members of national and industry standard setting bodies. Through 

these memberships we are actively involved in the establishment and 

ongoing improvement of the country’s quality standards in the sportswear 

industry. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

2,020 views

2,020 views

2,020 views



Annual Report 2010  ANTA Sports Products Limited 67

4 of 6 < 1 2 3 4 >

ANTA and Staff

1. Create an Excellent Environment and Culture at Work

Corporate cohesion is one of the key reasons we are able to sustain long 

term growth. We are dedicated to establishing a strong corporate culture 

so as to guide our staff to work together to achieve our core values and 

strategic goals. During the year, the Group continued to reinforce the 

corporate culture programme with a full range of training and campaign 

to help our staff and business partners to better appreciate our mission 

and strategies. We have put in place effective communication channels 

for suggestions, staff forums and feedback from staff, such as meetings 

with senior management and employee surveys, to better understand 

our employees’ needs. We also encourage our staff to live out our 

corporate mission of incorporating sports into their daily life. Sports 

clubs and competitions are organised for staff to share the joy of sports 

participation, which also boost staff’s team spirit and sense of belonging.

2. Optimise Human Resources Management

ANTA Sports recognises that our employees are our most important 

asset. That is why we place a strong emphasis on attracting, retaining 

and developing the right people. To motivate our employees and 

to increase their job satisfaction, we offer comprehensive welfare 

and remuneration packages, in addition to having in place a fair 

performance appraisal system to reward staff for their contributions. 

We strive to improve the productivity and competitiveness of our 

employees by offering extensive trainings, mentorship programme and 

career development opportunities. We are delighted to see employee 

satisfaction is rising in our periodic employee surveys, which have 

provided constructive feedback on the effectiveness of the human 

resources management system and suggestions for improvements. As 

at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 11,800 employees 

(2009: 13,300).

2,020 views

3. Safeguard the Rights and Safety of Employees

Workplace health and safety is a key priority for the Group. We operate in 

strict compliance with labour laws, regulations and industry practices on 

areas including child labour and gender equality. We require our business 

partners to demonstrate a clear commitment to this principle. The Group 

is committed to safety and workplace improvement activities. In addition 

to the provision of adequate protective gear and work safety trainings, 

we also enforce stringent safety guidelines. Our care programme also 

extends to cover staff’s physical and mental well-being, which includes 

regular health checks and mental health seminars. Furthermore, the 

Group provides staff with well-equipped leisure and sports facilities, and 

organises regular outings and leisure activities to encourage our staff to 

maintain a balanced and healthy lifestyle.

2,020 views

2,020 views
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ANTA and Consumers

The Group is committed to delivering the best value to consumers in areas 

ranging from brand, product and customer service. ANTA’s mission is 

to promote the spirit of sports in people’s everyday lives. This philosophy 

underpins all our branding activities which aim to encourage our customers 

to lead a healthy and positive lifestyle. In our bid to offer our customers high-

quality sportswear products with superior functionality, we have continuously 

enhanced our R&D capabilities and required our factories and OEM to 

strictly follow stringent quality control standards. The Group also works 

closely with our retailers to provide customers with excellent shopping 

experiences by optimising our store image and service quality. In addition, we 

emphasise interactions with consumers and seek feedback through various 

communication channels such as product website, online forum, market 

survey and customer service hotline.

2,020 views

ANTA and Distributors and Franchisees

The success of our distributors and franchisees ensures the sustainable 

growth of our business. The Group sees our retailers as a crucial partner in our 

quest to grow and to prosper together. We strive to appreciate the challenges 

they face and explore ways to help them overcome those challenges and seize 

market potential. In addition to providing them with standards and manuals 

to facilitate their daily operations, our sales teams in 3 regional centres and 7 

branch offi ces maintain effective communications with and offer timely support 

to retailers. The Group is also dedicated to enhancing the competitiveness 

and profi tability of our retailers by sharing with them market insights and retail 

performance analyses. Training and guidance are provided to help retailers 

make key decisions and plans such as store opening, product ordering and 

inventory management. Furthermore, the Group offers standardised product 

display equipment and eye-catching POP materials to reinforce a consistent 

store image.

2,020 views

ANTA and Suppliers

The Group sees our suppliers, OEM and ODM as ongoing partners who are 

an integral part of the success of our supply chain management. Thus, we 

are committed to enhancing the product and manufacturing quality as well 

as the profi tability of our business by working together with these partners. 

The Group provides them with guidelines to ensure consistent practice. Our 

corporate culture is also communicated to ensure a clear understanding of 

ANTA’s mission and core values. In order to enhance suppliers’ operation and 

productivity, we regularly organise sessions for training as well as experience 

and knowledge sharing on workfl ow and in various technical areas. In 

addition, the Group is devoted to achieving mutual benefi ts with its suppliers 

through collaboration, such as collective procurement of materials, to enhance 

cost effectiveness.

2,020 views

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
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ANTA and Investors 2,020 views

Investor relations website
Provide interactive and user-friendly platform 
to gain access to financial and business 
information.

The Group
Shareholders, 

Investors, 
Analysts, 

Regulators, 
Media, Public

Investor/analyst briefings and press conferences
Senior management meets investors and media directly to report the financial 
information and business development. Answer questions from participants 
and enhance interactive communications.

AGM
Face-to-face meeting with Shareholders to answer questions and collect 
feedback, aiming to facilitate the understanding and communication between 
the Group and Shareholders.

Investor meetings, roadshows and investor conferences
Participate in regular meetings, roadshows and investor conferences to 
update global investors and to address their concerns.

Company visits 
Arrange company, trade fair and ANTA store visits to facilitate a deeper 
understanding of the business.

Statutory reports
Disclose financial and operational information 
through annual and interim reports as well as 
announcements.

Regular updates
Provide operational data and business 
updates to enhance corporate transparency.

Media relations
Disseminate latest information to media and public 
through press releases and media interviews.

Feedback collection
Gather research reports and market views on the Group. Respond to the 

suggestions and questions on operations and strategies, and enhance 

communications with the public.

The Group strictly complies with the Listing Rules to dispatch information to investors and the public on a timely, fair and transparent basis. 

Regular shareholder meetings, press conferences, company visits and investor/analyst briefi ngs are held to enhance the communication 

with the public. Senior management also attends investor conferences and roadshows. Useful information and operational updates are 

available on our investor relations website. Effective communications and timely information disclosure not only enable us to establish 

credibility with the capital market but also help us gather constructive feedback and ideas to the benefi t of our future development. Thus, 

the Group is committed to further enhancing the quality and transparency of disclosures. We are honoured to have achieved the following 

accomplishments during the year:

• Included as a constituent of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series

• Swept 5 awards in the “2010 Asia’s Best Companies — China” poll hosted by FinanceAsia, including being voted No. 1 in the “Best 

mid-cap” category in China

• Winner of the “2010 Corporate Governance Asia Annual Recognition Awards” (China)

• Received 6 awards in the “Corporate Governance Poll 2009” hosted by Asiamoney

Interactions between the Group and the Investing Public
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As one of the leading branded sportswear enterprises in China, ANTA Sports 

Products Limited primarily designs, develops, manufactures and markets 

sportswear, including sports footwear, apparel and accessories. The Group 

has established extensive distribution network with a leading presence in 

second and third tier cities in China under the management of regional 

distributors. The Group places great emphasis on branding by integrating 

sports resources and sponsorship, advertising and promotional activities and 

consistent store image to enhance brand and product differentiation. For the 

past nine years, its footwear has been enjoying a leading position in China 

composed index on market shares.

INVESTORS INFORMATION

Corporate Profile

Stock Codes

Share Information

Listing Day: 10 July 2007

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Number of shares 

outstanding: 2,493,833,000 shares 

 (As at 31 December 2010)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 2020

Bloomberg 2020HK

Reuters 2020.HK

MSCI 3741301

IR Contact

If you have any inquiries, please contact:

IR Department

ANTA Sports Products Limited, 

Unit 4408, 44th Floor, COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2116 1660 Fax: (852) 2116 1590

E-mail:   ir@anta.com IR website: ir.anta.com

Brand website: www.anta.com

Hill & Knowlton Asia Limited, 

36/F, PCCW Tower, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2894 6321 Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Email: anta@hillandknowlton.com.hk
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended 31 December 2010. 

Principal Place of Business 
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at Unit 4408, 44/F, 
COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Group’s principal place of business is in the PRC. 

Principal Activities 
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing, trading and distribution of sporting goods, including footwear, apparel 
and accessories, in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 128 and 129 of the 
annual report. 

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in 
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

2010

Percentage of 

the Group’s total

2009

Percentage of 

the Group’s total

Sales Purchases Sales Purchases

The largest customer  7.3% 6.6%

Five largest customers in aggregate 23.2% 25.6%

The largest supplier 6.2% 6.4%

Five largest suppliers in aggregate 24.2% 25.0%

Other than Guangzhou Anda Trading Development Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Anda”), a company controlled by a connected person, Mr. 
Ding Qingliang (details of our transactions with Guangzhou Anda are set out on page 76 of the annual report), at no time during the 
financial year have the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns 
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers. 

Five-year Financial Summary 
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on pages 6 and 7 of 
the annual report. 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date 
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 129 of the annual report. 

Transfer to Reserves 
Profits attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of RMB1,551,113,000 (2009: RMB1,250,941,000) have been transferred 
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. 

An interim dividend of HK20 cents per ordinary share (2009: HK12 cents per ordinary share) was paid on 10 September 2010. The 
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share (2009 final dividend: HK12 cents per 
ordinary share; 2009 special dividend: HK11 cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010. 
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Charitable Donations 
Charitable donations made by the Group during the financial year amounted to RMB6,905,000 (2009: RMB5,070,000). 

Non-current Assets 
Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets (including fixed assets, construction in progress, lease prepayments 
and intangible assets) during the financial year are set out in notes 10 to 13 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings 
There were no outstanding bank loans and other borrowings by the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2010. 

Share Capital 
Details of the movement of share capital of the Company during the financial year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during 
the financial year. 

Pre-emptive Rights 
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where 
the Company is incorporated. 

Directors 
The Directors during the financial year were: 

Executive Directors

Mr. Ding Shizhong (Chairman)
Mr. Ding Shijia (appointed as Deputy Chairman on 12 July 2010)
Mr. Lai Shixian
Mr. Wang Wenmo
Mr. Wu Yonghua
Mr. Zheng Jie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
Mr. Lu Hong Te
Mr. Dai Zhongchuan 

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on pages 84 and 85 of the annual report.

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Wang Wenmo, Mr. Wu Yonghua and Mr. Lu Hong Te will 
retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 

Each of the Directors in the Board has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years until terminated by 
giving 3 month’s notice in writing thereof by either party to the other. 

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the 
Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. 
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying 
Shares and Debentures 
As at 31 December 2010, the Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following interests in 
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of 
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as 
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by 
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and Its Associated Corporations

Name of Directors

Company/ 

Name of 

associated 

corporation

Capacity/

Nature of interest

 Interest in 

ordinary shares

Interest in 

underlying 

shares(2)

Approximate 

percentage 

of interest 

in such 

corporation

Mr. Ding Shizhong   Company Founder of a discretionary 

trust/Beneficial owner

1,438,346,000(3) – 57.68%

 Anta International Founder of a discretionary 

trust

4,144(3) – 41.44%

Mr. Ding Shijia   Company Founder of a discretionary 

trust/Beneficial owner

1,432,900,000(4) – 57.46%

Anta International Founder of a discretionary 

trust

4,084(4) – 40.84%

Mr. Lai Shixian   Company Interest of spouse 167,700,000(5) – 6.72%

  Company Beneficial owner – 5,250,000 0.21%

Mr. Wang Wenmo Anta International Founder of a discretionary 

trust

1,141(6) – 11.41%

Mr. Wu Yonghua Anta International Founder of a discretionary 

trust

601(7) – 6.01%

Mr. Zheng Jie Company Beneficial owner – 1,000,000 0.04%

Notes:

(1)  As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding ordinary shares of the Company and of Anta International stood at 2,493,833,000 and 10,000 respectively. 

(2)  The interests in underlying shares represent the interests in share options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option and the Share Option Scheme, 

details of which are set out in note 21(a) and 21(b) respectively to the consolidated financial statements. 

(3)  1,431,900,000 Shares were held through Anta International, an associated corporation, which held 57.42% of the issued share capital of the Company as 

at 31 December 2010. Shine Well (Far East) Limited is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at the general 

meeting of Anta International and therefore is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Anta International. The entire issued share capital of Shine 

Well (Far East) Limited is held by Top Bright Assets Limited. The entire issued share capital of Top Bright Assets Limited is in turn held by HSBC International 

Trustee Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) acting as the trustee of the DSZ Family Trust. The DSZ Family Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ding 

Shizhong as settlor and HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 2007. The beneficiaries under the DSZ Family Trust are family members of Mr. Ding Shizhong. 

Mr. Ding Shizhong as founder of the DSZ Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Anta International. 6,446,000 Shares were held by 

Mr. Ding Shizhong in the capacity of beneficial owner. 
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(4) 1,431,900,000 Shares were held through Anta International, which held 57.42% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010. Talent 

Trend Investment Limited is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Anta International 

and therefore is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Anta International. The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Investment Limited is 

held by Allwealth Assets Limited. The entire issued share capital of Allwealth Assets Limited is in turn held by HSBC Trustee acting as the trustee of the DSJ 

Family Trust. The DSJ Family Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ding Shijia as settlor and HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 2007. 

The beneficiaries under the DSJ Family Trust are family members of Mr. Ding Shijia. Mr. Ding Shijia as founder of the DSJ Family Trust is deemed to be 

interested in the Shares held by Anta International. 1,000,000 Shares were held by Mr. Ding Shijia in the capacity of beneficial owner. 

(5)  The interests of Mr. Lai Shixian in the Company are held through Anda Holdings, which holds 6.72% of the issued share capital of the Company. Spring Star 

Assets Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Anda Holdings, which is in turn held by HSBC Trustee acting as the trustee of the DYL Family Trust. 

The DYL Family Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lai Shixian’s spouse, Ms. Ding Yali, as settlor and HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 

2007. The beneficiaries under the DYL Family Trust are issue of Ms. Ding Yali. Ms. Ding Yali as founder of the DYL Family Trust is deemed to be interested in 

the Shares held by Anda Holdings and Mr. Lai Shixian is also deemed under the SFO to be interested in the interests of his spouse, Ms. Ding Yali. 

(6)  The interests of Mr. Wang Wenmo in Anta International are held through Fair Billion Development Limited, which holds 11.41% of the issued share capital of 

Anta International. The entire issued share capital of Fair Billion Development Limited is held by Asia Bridges Assets Limited, which is in turn held by HSBC 

Trustee acting as the trustee of the WWM Family Trust. The WWM Family Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Mr. Wang Wenmo as settlor 

and HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 2007. The beneficiaries under the WWM Family Trust are family members of Mr. Wang Wenmo. Mr. Wang Wenmo 

as founder of the WWM Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Anta International.

(7)  The interests of Mr. Wu Yonghua in Anta International are held through Spread Wah International Limited, which holds 6.01% of the issued share capital 

of Anta International. The entire issued share capital of Spread Wah International Limited is held by Allbright Assets Limited, which is in turn held by HSBC 

Trustee acting as the trustee of the WYH Family Trust. The WYH Family Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Mr. Wu Yonghua as settlor and 

HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 2007. The beneficiaries under the WYH Family Trust are family members of Mr. Wu Yonghua. Mr. Wu Yonghua as 

founder of the WYH Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Anta International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to 
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations 
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 
352 of the SFO or which had otherwise been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model 
Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2010, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or 
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 
of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

Number of Shares

(See below)

Approximate

Percentage

of interest in

the Company

HSBC Trustee Trustee (other than a bare trustee)(1) 1,720,047,000(L) 68.97%

Anta International Beneficial owner 1,431,900,000(L) 57.42%

Allwealth Assets Limited Corporation(1) 1,431,900,000(L) 57.42%

Shine Well (Far East) Limited Corporation(1) 1,431,900,000(L) 57.42%

Talent Trend Investment Limited Corporation(1) 1,431,900,000(L) 57.42%

Top Bright Assets Limited Corporation(1) 1,431,900,000(L) 57.42%

Anda Holdings Beneficial owner 167,700,000(L) 6.72%

Ms. Ding Yali Founder of a discretionary trust(2) 167,700,000(L) 6.72%

Interest of spouse(3) 5,250,000(L) 0.21%

Spring Star Assets Limited Corporation(2) 167,700,000(L) 6.72%

(L) – Long Position, (S) – Short Position
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Notes:

(1)  The interests of HSBC Trustee in the Company are held through Anta International, Anda Holdings and Anda Investments, holding approximately 57.42%, 

6.72% and 4.83% of the issued share capital of the Company, respectively. In addition, HSBC Trustee also held 47,000 Shares of the Company as trustee 

for persons unrelated to the substantial shareholders. 

HSBC Trustee was the trustee of the DSZ Family Trust and the DSJ Family Trusts and it held the entire issued share capital of Top Bright Assets Limited and 

Allwealth Assets Limited, which in turn held the entire issued share capital of Shine Well (Far East) Limited and Talent Trend Investment Limited, respectively. 

Each of Shine Well (Far East) Limited and Talent Trend Investment Limited was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting 

power at general meeting of Anta International and therefore each of them was deemed to be interested in all the 1,431,900,000 Shares held by Anta 

International. Accordingly, HSBC Trustee, Top Bright Assets Limited, Allwealth Assets Limited, Shine Well (Far East) Limited and Talent Trend Investment 

Limited were indirectly interested in the 1,431,900,000 Shares held by Anta International. 

HSBC Trustee was the trustee of the DYL Family Trust and it held the entire issued share capital of Spring Star Assets Limited, which in turn was entitled to 

exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Anda Holdings and therefore was deemed to be interested in 

all the 167,700,000 Shares held by Anda Holdings. Accordingly, HSBC Trustee and Spring Star Assets Limited were indirectly interested in the 167,700,000 

Shares held by Anda Holdings. 

HSBC Trustee was the trustee of the DHM Family Trust and it held the entire issued share capital of Sackful Gold Limited, which in turn was entitled to 

exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Anda Investments and therefore was deemed to be interested 

in all the 120,400,000 Shares held by Anda Investments. Accordingly, HSBC Trustee and Sackful Gold Limited were indirectly interested in the 120,400,000 

Shares held by Anda Investments.

(2)  Spring Star Assets Limited was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Anda Holdings and 

therefore was deemed to be interested in all the 167,700,000 Shares held by Anda Holdings. 

The entire issued share capital of Spring Star Assets Limited was held by HSBC Trustee acting as the trustee of the DYL Family Trust. The DYL Family Trust 

was an irrevocable discretionary trust set up by Ms. Ding Yali as settlor and HSBC Trustee as trustee on 23 May 2007. The beneficiaries under the DYL 

Family Trust were issue of Ms. Ding Yali. Ms. Ding Yali as founder of the DYL Family Trust was deemed to be interested in the 167,700,000 Shares held by 

Spring Star Assets Limited. 

(3)  Ms. Ding Yali was deemed under the SFO to be interested in the 5,250,000 Shares which may be issued to her spouse, Mr. Lai Shixian, an Executive 

Director of the Company, upon exercise of options granted to Mr. Lai Shixian under the Pre-IPO share option scheme, details of which are set out in note 

21(a) of the consolidated financial statements. 

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Directors were not aware of any other person or corporation having an 
interest or short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the 
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO. 

Continuing Connected Transactions 
Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted continuing 
connected transactions under the Listing Rules which are required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A 
of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) (“connected 
persons”) and the Company have been entered into and are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company in 
the announcements of the Company issued on 30 September 2009, 31 December 2009, 25 February 2010 and 30 September 2010. 

1. Packaging Material Supply Agreement with Quanzhou Anda Packaging Co., Ltd. (“Quanzhou Anda”) 

On 31 December 2009, ANTA China and Quanzhou Anda entered into an agreement to renew the existing packaging material 
supply arrangement (“Packaging Material Supply Agreement”) for a term of three years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 
2012 in relation to the supply of cardboard cases from Quanzhou Anda to the Group from time to time on normal commercial 
terms no less favourable than those available from independent third parties of the Group.

Under the Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the prices for the cardboard cases will be agreed between Quanzhou Anda 
and the Group from time to time after arm’s length negotiation and should be comparable to market prices of similar cardboard 
cases. The prices the Group pay for the cardboard cases and the other payment terms (i.e. a general credit period of 30 to 60 
days) shall be comparable to, and not less favourable than those offered by other independent suppliers of similar cardboard 
cases.
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During the financial year, Quanzhou Anda also supplied shoe boxes in addition to cardboard cases to the Group on the same 
terms under the Packaging Material Supply Agreement for supply of cardboard cases. The prices the Group pay for the shoe 
boxes and the other payment terms (i.e. a general credit period of 30 to 60 days) shall be comparable to, and not less favourable 
than those offered by other independent suppliers of similar shoe boxes.

Quanzhou Anda is an associate of Mr. Ding Shizhong and Mr. Lai Shixian (both of them are Executive Directors of the Company) 
by virtue of Rule 14A.11 of the Listing Rules and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

During the financial year, the Group’s purchase of cardboard cases and shoe boxes from Quanzhou Anda amounted to 
RMB14,912,000.

2.  Sportswear Sales Agreements of ANTA Products with Guangzhou Anda and Quanzhou Binhui Trading Co., Ltd. 

(“Quanzhou Binhui”) 

On 31 December 2009, ANTA China entered into two agreements to renew sportswear sales arrangement with Guangzhou Anda 
and Quanzhou Binhui (“Sportswear Sales Agreements”) for a term of three years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012 in 
relation to the sale of ANTA Products to Guangzhou Anda and Quanzhou Binhui.

Under the Sportwear Sales Agreements, the prices at which the Group sells its products to Guangzhou Anda and Quanzhou 
Binhui and the other payment terms (i.e. a general credit period between 30 to 90 days from the date of the Group’s invoice) will 
be based on terms that are comparable to, and not more favourable than those available to its independent distributors and after 
arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial terms.

Both Guangzhou Anda and Quanzhou Binhui are connected persons of the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4)(c) of the Listing 
Rules.

During the financial year, the Group’s sales of ANTA products to Guangzhou Anda and Quanzhou Binhui amounted to 
RMB399,730,000 and RMB57,886,000 respectively. 

3. Sales Agreement with Fila Korea Limited (“Fila Korea”) and Fila Sport Limited (“Fila Sport”)

Following the completion of the acquisition of Full Prospect and Fila Marketing on 30 September 2009, the transactions under 
the master sales agreement dated 1 December 2007 (“Master Sales Agreement”) (i.e. for a term from 1 December 2007 to 30 
November 2010) by Fila Marketing and Speed Benefit Limited, both indirect subsidiaries of the Company, with Fila Korea and 
Fila Sport became continuing connected transactions of the Company. Pursuant to the Master Sales Agreement, Fila Korea 
and Fila Sport agreed to supply footwear products, sports/lifestyle apparels, bags and accessories and other ancillary products 
manufactured by or offered by Fila Korea, and its affiliates to the Group on a continuing basis. The payment terms of each 
individual transaction were determined by the relevant contracting parties at the time of entering into the transactions with 
reference to factors such as the relevant transaction amount, nature and specification requirement of the particular transaction. 
An agreement has been entered into between the parties to renew the Master Sales Agreement for another term of three years 
(i.e. from 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2013). The amount of transactions under the renewed agreement are de minimus 
and hence exempt from the requirement of reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval 
according to Rule 14A.33(3)(b) of the Listing Rules.

Full Prospect is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which the Company is interested in 85% of its issued share 
capital on a fully converted basis. Fila Luxembourg S.a.r.l (“Fila Luxembourg”), a shareholder of Full Prospect, is interested in 15 
class B convertible shares, representing 15% of the issued share capital of Full Prospect on a fully converted basis. Fila Korea 
is the ultimate holding company of Fila Luxembourg and Fila Sport. Therefore, Fila Korea, being a substantial shareholder of Full 
Prospect, and Fila Sport, being an associate of Fila Korea, are connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the 
Listing Rules. 

During the financial year, Fila Products amounted to approximately RMB10,468,000 were purchased from Fila Korea and Fila 
Sport.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and 
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: 

(1)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; 

(2)  on normal commercial terms; and 

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the 
shareholders of the Company as a whole. 

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong 
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information 
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules 
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter containing their findings 
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Listing Rule 
14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts 
Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow 
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest (direct or indirect), subsisted at the end of 
the financial year or at any time during the financial year. 

Competing Business 
None of the Directors had any interest in any competing business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the financial year. 

Each of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the prospectus of the Company issued on 26 June 2007 (the “Prospectus”)) 
has confirmed to the Company of his/her compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the Company under the 
Non-competition Deed (as defined in the Prospectus). The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status of 
compliance and also confirmed that all the undertakings under the Non-competition Deed have been complied with by the Controlling 
Shareholders. 

Retirement Schemes 
The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and 
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 20 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 

Equity-settled Share-based Payments 
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed on 11 June 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme 
(the “Pre-IPO Option”) whereby a Director and 37 employees of the Company were given the rights to subscribe for shares of the 
Company. The subscription price per share pursuant to the Pre-IPO Option is at 20% discount to the global offering price. 

Under the Pre-IPO Option, 16,000,000 options were fully granted on 12 June 2007, and no option has been lapsed during the 
financial year (2009: 390,000). As at 31 December 2010, the total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of 
all outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Option is 10,692,000. 

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Option has a vesting period of 3 years commencing from the listing date and the options 
are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in 
cash. No further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Option on or after the date of listing of the Company on the Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange.
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(b)  Share Option Scheme 

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution 
passed on 11 June 2007. 

The maximum number of shares that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes shall not 
exceed 30% of the number of issued shares of the Company from time to time. Unless approved by the Shareholders in general 
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any grantee if the acceptance of 
those options would result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his options during 
any 12 month period exceeding 1% of the total shares of the Company (or its subsidiary) then in issue. 

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined 
by the Board, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of the grant.

On 15 September 2010 (“Date of Grant”), the Company granted 32,120,000 options at an exercise price of HK$16.20 per share 
to Mr. Zheng Jie, a Director, and certain employees under the Share Option Scheme. They were given the rights to subscribe for 
shares of the Company which are exercisable up to 10 years from the Date of Grant. Up to 40%, 30% and 30% of the options 
granted shall be exercisable on 15 March 2012, 15 March 2013 and 15 March 2014 respectively, such that all options granted 
shall be fully exercisable on 15 March 2014. During the financial year, no options has been lapsed.

Corporate Governance 
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 79 to 83 of the 
annual report, all the code provisions set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing 
Rules were met by the Company. 

Confirmation of Independence 
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant 
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent. 

Sufficiency of Public Float 
Based on the information that is publicly available and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior to 
this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 
December 2010 and at any time up to the latest practicable date. 

Auditors 
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the 
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Ling Shing Ping
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 21 February 2011
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The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate 
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board will strive to adhere 
to the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and commercial 
standards by focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders. 

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in 
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous 
compliance with the Code. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, save as disclosed below, all the code provisions set out 
in the Code were met by the Company.

(A) The Board of Directors
The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of all 
policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring of the performance of the 
senior management. The Directors make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. Currently, the Board comprises 
9 Directors, including 6 Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. Their names, biographical details 
and relationships (some of the Directors are related to each other) are set out in the section entitled “Directors and Senior 
Management” in the annual report. 

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and 
management of the Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management and certain specific responsibilities to 
the Board committees.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and all the Directors have confirmed 
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the financial year. 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not 
be performed by the same individual. During the financial year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company are performed by Mr. Ding Shizhong. With Mr. Ding’s extensive experience in sportswear consumer markets, he is 
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the roles 
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer simultaneously by Mr. Ding is beneficial to the business prospects and management of 
the Group. The balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board, which 
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises 6 Executive Directors and 3 Independent 
Non-Executive Directors and therefore has a strong independence element in its composition. 

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors 

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract 
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM upon retirement. 
The articles of association of the Company provide that any Director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the 
Board, shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at such 
meeting and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then 
be eligible for re-election. 
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Independent Non-Executive Directors 

Independent Non-Executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views 
carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the Company’s 
strategy, performance and control. All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional and 
industry expertise and management experience and have provided their professional advices to the Board. The Board also 
considers that Independent Non-Executive Directors can provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, 
results and management so that all interests of shareholders can be taken into account, and the interests of the Company and 
its shareholders can be protected. 

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years and are subject to retirement by rotation and 
re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. 

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-Executive Directors 
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are 
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules. 

Training and Support for Directors 

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Newly appointed Director would receive an induction package 
covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group also 
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. 

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance 

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. 

Board Committees 

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee (collectively “Board 
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are available upon request. The 
Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to 
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. 

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal controls 
and review of the consolidated financial statements. The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s external auditors 
to discuss the audit process and accounting issues (and in the absence of management if appropriate). Their written terms of 
reference are in line with the Code provisions. Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Lu 
Hong Te and Mr. Dai Zhongchuan, all of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. 

The Audit Committee met 3 times during the financial year. During the meetings, the Audit Committee has considered the annual 
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 
June 2010 as well as the reports prepared by the external auditors relating to accounting and internal control issues and major 
findings in the course of audit/review. Also, it has reviewed the 2010 annual audit plan. All members of the Audit Committee 
attended the meetings. 

Remuneration Committee 

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other benefits. The 
remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that their remuneration 
and compensation are reasonable. Their written terms of reference are in line with the Code provisions. Members of the 
Remuneration Committee comprise Mr. Ding Shizhong (Chairman), Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Zhongchuan. 

The Remuneration Committee met once during the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed 
and approved the new remuneration scheme for all staff for the financial year on behalf of the Board. All members of the 
Remuneration Committee attended the meeting. 
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Nomination Committee 

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible to consider and recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to 
become the member of the Board and is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on a 
regular basis and as required. Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. Lu Hong Te (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Chi Tat 
and Mr. Lai Shixian. 

One meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to discuss changing a Director as the deputy Chairman of the Board during 
the financial year. 

Meetings 

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. 
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of communications. The attendance of individual Directors 
at these meetings is set out below:

Board 

Meeting

Audit 

Committee 

Meeting

Remuneration

 Committee 

Meeting

Nomination

 Committee 

Meeting

No. of meetings held for the year ended

 31 December 2010 7 3 1 1

Executive Directors

 Mr. Ding Shizhong 5* N/A 1 N/A

 Mr. Ding Shijia 7 N/A N/A N/A

 Mr. Lai Shixian 6* N/A N/A 1

 Mr. Wang Wenmo 7 N/A N/A N/A

 Mr. Wu Yonghua 7 N/A N/A N/A

 Mr. Zheng Jie 7 N/A N/A N/A

Independent Non-Executive Directors

 Mr. Yeung Chi Tat 7 3 N/A 1

 Mr. Lu Hong Te 7 3 1 1

 Mr. Dai Zhongchuan 7 3 1 N/A

* Those Executive Directors have not attended Board meetings to approve renewal of waivers on continuing connected transactions to avoid conflict of 

interests.

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters brought before the meetings at least three days 
in advance. All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can ask for further information or retain 
independent professional advisors if necessary. They also have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, 
who is responsible for providing Directors with Board papers and related materials and ensuring that Board procedures are 
followed. Where queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken to respond as promptly and fully as possible. All Directors 
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. Reasonable notices of Board meetings are given 
to the Directors and Board procedures complied with the articles of association of the Company, as well as relevant rules and 
regulations. 

Conflict of Interest 

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the individual is 
required to declare such interest and to abstain from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting attended by Directors 
who have no material interest in the transaction.
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(B) Financial Reporting and Internal Control
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements of the Group and the Company. In the preparation of financial statements, the International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance have been adopted, the appropriate accounting policies have 
been consistently used and applied, and reasonable judgements and estimates are properly made. The Board aims to present 
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make 
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner. 

The work scope and responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s external auditor, are stated in the section entitled “Independent 
Auditor’s Report” in the annual report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

KPMG has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor since 2004. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature 
and the service charges of non-audit services to be performed by KPMG and considered that these non-audit services have no 
adverse effect on the independence of the auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on 
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. 

During the financial year, the fee payable to KPMG in respect of its statutory audit services provided to the Company was 
RMB2,863,000 (2009: HK$2,900,000). Fees for non-audit services for the same period comprise service charges for the 
following:

2010 2009

Review of interim results RMB737,000 HK$800,000

Tax review RMB100,000 RMB180,000

Internal control review (service rendered by KPMG Advisory (China) Limited) RMB800,000 –

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2009, the Group appointed SHINEWING Risk Services Limited as the 
independent adviser to carry out an internal control review. The related non-audit service fee amounted to HK$700,000.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed 
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the 
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules and 
regulations. The Group conducted general review and monitor of the Group’s internal management and operation during the 
financial year. 

In addition to the above, the Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of its internal control systems on 
all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis by appointing a professional accounting firm on their behalf. The scope 
of review by the professional accounting firm has been determined and approved by the Audit Committee. The professional 
accounting firm has reported major internal control review findings to the Board and the Audit Committee. No major issue but 
areas for improvement have been identified. All recommendations from the professional accounting firm will be properly followed 
up to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board and the Audit Committee considered that 
the key areas of the Group’s internal control systems are reasonably implemented and the Group has substantially complied with 
the Code provisions regarding internal control systems.
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(C) Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The management believes that effective communication with the investment community in a timely manner through various 
media is essential. We held regular briefings, attended investor conferences and participated in roadshows to meet institutional 
investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the Company’s business 
and development. 

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company follows best corporate governance practices. 
The notice of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM and the accompanying 
circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules. The 
chairman of the AGM exercises his power under the Articles of Association of the Company to put each proposed resolution to 
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are explained at the beginning of the meeting. 
Voting results are posted on the Group’s website on the day of the AGM.

Details of these communications are stated in the section entitled “ANTA and Investors” on page 69 in the annual report.

By order of the Board

Ling Shing Ping
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 21 February 2011
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Executive Directors

Mr. Ding Shizhong（丁世忠）, aged 40, is the Chief Executive Officer, the President, the Executive Director and the Board Chairman 
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall corporate strategies, brand management, planning and business 
development of our Group. He joined our Group in July 1994 and has dedicated to expand and promote our Group’s business and to 
develop China’s sporting goods industry.

He personally obtained the following recognition:

Year  Awards
1998  The Eminent Young Entrepreneur of Jinjiang
2000  Top Ten Eminent Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian
2004  2004 Top Ten Brand Talents in China
2006  Top Ten Outstanding Young Persons in China
2008  Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year – China
2009  World Economic Forum – Youth Global Leader
2009  China Business Leaders Awards – Public’s Choice of CEO

He is holding the following public offices:

Year  Public Offices
2003  The 10th Fujian Province People’s Congress deputy
2008  The 11th National People’s Congress deputy
2009  The 8th Organising Committee member of All-China Sports Federation
2010 Deputy Chairman of China Sporting Goods Federation
2010 Committee member of China Youth Entrepreneurs Association

Mr. Ding is the younger brother of Mr. Ding Shijia, the cousin of Mr. Wang Wenmo and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lai Shixian, all of 
whom are also the Company’s Executive Directors. He is also a director of Anta International, which holds 57.42% of the issued share 
capital of the Company. Mr. Ding is a director of Fujian Straits West-Coast Investment Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of China SCE Property 
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1966), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. 

Mr. Ding Shijia（丁世家）, aged 46, is the Executive Director and the Board Deputy Chairman of the Company. He is primarily 
responsible for the management of our Group’s footwear operations. He joined our Group in July 1994 and has over 10 years of 
experience in the sporting goods industry in China. In 2002 and 2004, he was awarded the title of Eminent Young Entrepreneur of 
Quanzhou. Mr. Ding is the elder brother of Mr. Ding Shizhong, the cousin of Mr. Wang Wenmo and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lai 
Shixian, all of whom are also the Company’s Executive Directors. He is also a director of Anta International, which holds 57.42% of 
the issued share capital of the Company. 

Mr. Lai Shixian（賴世賢）, aged 36, is the Chief Operating Officer, the Executive Director and the Vice President of the Company. 
He is primarily responsible for the supply chain and administrative management of the Group. He joined the Group in March 2003 
and has over 10 years of experience in administrative management. Mr. Lai holds an EMBA degree from China Europe International 
Business School. Mr. Lai is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding Shizhong and Mr. Ding Shijia, both of whom are the Company’s Executive 
Directors. He is also a director of Anta International, which holds 57.42% of the issued share capital of the Company. 

Mr. Wang Wenmo（王文默）, aged 54, is the Executive Director of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the management of 
the Group’s apparel operations. He joined the Group in June 2000 and has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry. Mr. 
Wang is the cousin of Mr. Ding Shizhong and Mr. Ding Shijia, both of whom are the Group’s Executive Directors. 

Mr. Wu Yonghua（吳永華）, aged 39, is the Executive Director and the Vice President of the Company. He is primarily responsible 
for the Group’s sales and marketing management. He joined the Group in October 2003 and has over 10 years of experience in sales 
and marketing in China. 

Mr. Zheng Jie（鄭捷）, aged 42, is the Executive Directors and the Executive Vice President of the Company. He is primarily 
responsible for brand and product management. He joined the Group in October 2008 and has over 10 years of experience in the 
field of marketing management, including nearly 8 years in the China division of an international sportswear brand as the head of sales 
and the general manager. Mr. Zheng holds a bachelor’s degree in management science from Shanghai Fudan University.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat（楊志達）, aged 41, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and joined the Board in 
February 2007. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree 
in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is also the president of the 
International Financial Management Association Hong Kong headquarters and the vice-president of the Hong Kong Wine Merchants’ 
Chamber of Commerce. He had previously worked at a major international accounting firm for over 10 years and possessed 
experience in auditing, corporate restructure and corporate finance. He is the financial controller and company secretary of Dynasty 
Fine Wines Group Limited (stock code: 828), and an independent non-executive director of Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (stock 
code: 1991) and Boer Power Holdings Limited (stock code: 1685), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. 
Yeung was an independent non-executive director of China Eco-Farming Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8166), which is listed on the 
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from September 2008 to May 2010.

Mr. Lu Hong Te（呂鴻德）, aged 50, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and joined the Board in February 
2007. He holds a bachelor’s degree in industrial management science from National Cheng Kung University, and a master’s degree 
and a doctoral degree in marketing from the Graduate Institute of Business Administration of the College of Management of National 
Taiwan University. He is now a professor at the department of business administration of Chung Yuan Christian University in Taiwan, 
specializing in sales management and business competitive strategies. He also serves as a visiting professor at institutions including 
SGP International Management Academy, Nanyang Technological University’s EMBA Center and Xiamen University’s EMBA Center. 
He is an independent non-executive director of 5 companies, namely Everlight Chemical Industrial Corporation (stock code: 1711) and 
Aiptek International Inc. (stock code: 6225) which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange as well as Capxon International Electronic 
Company Limited (stock code: 469), China Lilang Limited (stock code: 1234) and China SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock code: 
1966), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is also an independent director of 2 other companies, namely Firich 
Enterprises Co., Ltd (stock code: 8076) and Lanner Electronics Inc. (stock code: 6245), the shares of which are traded in the Gre Tai 
Securities Market in Taiwan. Mr. Lu was an independent non-executive director of China Green (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 0904), 
which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from November 2008 to March 2009. 

Mr. Dai Zhongchuan（戴仲川）, aged 44, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and joined the Board in April 
2009. He holds a bachelor’s degree and a master’s degree in economics from the Xiamen University. He is currently a deputy of the 
11th National People’s Congress, an associate dean of the College of Law and a tutor of the master’s postgraduate programme in 
international laws of Huaqiao University. Mr. Dai has over 20 years of working experience in legal research and holds various posts 
in public services in legal and judiciary area, including a member of the Central Legal Committee of the China National Democratic 
Construction Association, a standing committee member of the Quanzhou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political 
Consultative Conference, a member of the Internal and Judicial Affairs Committee of Quanzhou Municipal People’s Congress as well 
as an arbitrator of Quanzhou Municipal Arbitration Commission. He is an independent non-executive director of Fujian Tianguang Fire-
fighting Scie-Tech Incorporated Company (Stock Code: 2509), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. Ling Shing Ping（凌昇平）, aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Vice President of the 
Company. He is responsible for our overall financial and accounting affairs, treasury and company secretarial matters of the Group. He 
joined the Group in January 2007. He had previously worked at a major international accounting firm for over 10 years and possessed 
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Ling holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the 
University of Hong Kong. He is the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants. 

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the Executive Directors, as named above.
Only those 6 Executive Directors and the Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary are regarded as members of the Group’s senior 
management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
ANTA Sports Products Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ANTA Sports Products Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together 
“the Group”) set out on pages 87 to 129, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 
December 2010, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the 
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely 
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the 
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group 
as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies 
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 February 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Note

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Turnover 1 7,408,309 5,874,596

Cost of sales (4,237,755) (3,401,702)

Gross profit 3,170,554 2,472,894

Other revenue 2 44,626 29,399

Other net loss 2 (903) (718)

Selling and distribution expenses (1,186,840) (889,893)

Administrative expenses (290,626) (216,905)

Profit from operations 1,736,811 1,394,777

Net finance income  3 106,258 51,226

Profit before taxation  4 1,843,069 1,446,003

Taxation  5 (296,644) (196,713)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,546,425 1,249,290

Other comprehensive income for the year

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements 

 of operations outside Mainland China (35,902) (1,785)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,510,523 1,247,505

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

 Equity shareholders of the Company 1,551,113 1,250,941

 Non-controlling interests (4,688) (1,651)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,546,425 1,249,290

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

 Equity shareholders of the Company 1,515,211 1,249,156

 Non-controlling interests (4,688) (1,651)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,510,523 1,247,505

RMB cents RMB cents

Earnings per share 8

 – Basic 62.21 50.23

 – Diluted 62.04 50.09

The notes, significant accounting policies and principal subsidiaries on pages 92 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 25.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Note

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 503,474 506,420

Construction in progress 11 149,628 123,827

Lease prepayments 12(a) 35,835 28,024

Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights 12(b) 42,807 36,647

Intangible assets 13 531,349 486,983

Deferred tax assets 22(b) 46,343 11,750

Total non-current assets 1,309,436 1,193,651

Current assets

Inventories 15 453,823 374,090

Trade and other receivables 16 990,441 528,936

Pledged deposits 17 9,640 9,640

Fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months 18 900,000 1,560,000

Cash and cash equivalents 18 3,391,151 2,437,089

Total current assets 5,745,055 4,909,755

Total assets 7,054,491 6,103,406

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 1,070,646 819,586

Amount due to a related party 28(b) 2,745 813

Current taxation 22(a) 90,002 52,061

Total current liabilities 1,163,393 872,460

Net current assets 4,581,662 4,037,295

Total assets less current liabilities 5,891,098 5,230,946

Non-current liabilities

Long-term payable to non-controlling interests 

 – unsecured and at amortised cost 41,582 44,006

Deferred tax liabilities 22(b) 118,784 49,612

Total non-current liabilities 160,366 93,618

Total liabilities 1,323,759 966,078

Net assets 5,730,732 5,137,328

Equity

Share capital 23 241,991 241,838

Reserves 24 5,436,040 4,838,101

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 5,678,031 5,079,939

Non-controlling interests 52,701 57,389

Total liabilities and equity 7,054,491 6,103,406

The notes, significant accounting policies and principal subsidiaries on pages 92 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

Ding Shizhong Lai Shixian Ling Shing Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Hong Kong, 21 February 2011
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Note

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 14 133 138

Total non-current assets 133 138

Current assets

Other receivables 16 267 2,177

Amounts due from subsidiaries 14 946,203 1,499,429

Cash and cash equivalents 18 200,437 595,444

Total current assets 1,146,907 2,097,050

Total assets 1,147,040 2,097,188

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals 19 1,951 3,509

Amounts due to subsidiaries 14 – 319

Total current liabilities 1,951 3,828

Net current assets 1,144,956 2,093,222

Total assets less current liabilities 1,145,089 2,093,360

Equity

Share capital 23 241,991 241,838

Reserves 24 903,098 1,851,522

Total equity 1,145,089 2,093,360

Total liabilities and equity 1,147,040 2,097,188

The notes, significant accounting policies and principal subsidiaries on pages 92 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

Ding Shizhong Lai Shixian Ling Shing Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Hong Kong, 21 February 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Attributable to equity shareholders 

of the Company

Note

Share

capital

RMB’000

Reserves

RMB’000

Total

RMB’000

Non-

controlling

interests

RMB’000

Total

equity

RMB’000

Balances as at 1 January 2009 241,654 4,239,218 4,480,872 – 4,480,872

 Changes in equity for 2009:

 Profit for the year – 1,250,941 1,250,941 (1,651) 1,249,290
 Other comprehensive income – (1,785) (1,785) – (1,785)

 Total comprehensive income – 1,249,156 1,249,156 (1,651) 1,247,505

 Dividends approved in respect of

  the previous year 25(b) – (394,954) (394,954) – (394,954)

 Dividends declared in respect of

  the current year 25(a) – (263,414) (263,414) – (263,414)

 Shares issued pursuant to

  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 23 184 7,588 7,772 – 7,772

 Equity-settled share-based transactions 24(e) – 507 507 – 507

 Acquisition of subsidiaries 29 – – – 59,040 59,040

Balances as at 31 December 2009 and  

 1 January 2010 241,838 4,838,101 5,079,939 57,389 5,137,328

 Changes in equity for 2010:

 Profit for the year – 1,551,113 1,551,113 (4,688) 1,546,425
 Other comprehensive income – (35,902) (35,902) – (35,902)

 Total comprehensive income – 1,515,211 1,515,211 (4,688) 1,510,523

 Dividends approved in respect of

  the previous year 25(b) – (504,290) (504,290) – (504,290)

 Dividends declared in respect of

  the current year 25(a) – (435,813) (435,813) – (435,813)

 Shares issued pursuant to 

  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 23 153 6,309 6,462 – 6,462
 Equity-settled share-based transactions 24(e) – 16,522 16,522 – 16,522

Balances as at 31 December 2010 241,991 5,436,040 5,678,031 52,701 5,730,732

The notes, significant accounting policies and principal subsidiaries on pages 92 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

Note

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Operating activities

Profit before taxation 1,843,069 1,446,003

Adjustments for:

 – Depreciation 10 66,797 58,574

 – Amortisation of lease prepayments 12(a) 638 588

 – Amortisation of intangible assets 13 16,766 4,481

 – Interest expense 3 3,487 906

 – Interest income 3 (79,729) (51,999)

 – Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 703 192

 – Equity-settled share-based payments 4(a) 16,522 507

Changes in working capital

 – Increase in inventories (79,733) (31,787)

 – Increase in trade and other receivables (467,814) (14,840)

 – Increase in pledged deposits – (9,456)

 – Increase in trade and other payables 250,474 369,679

 – Increase/(decrease) in amount due to a related party 1,932 (618)

Cash generated from operations 1,573,112 1,772,230

Income tax paid (224,124) (130,317)

Interest received 83,860 46,831

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,432,848 1,688,744

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 29 – (399,987)

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (50,818) (44,826)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 774 1,512

Payments for construction in progress (38,045) (67,813)

Payments for lease prepayments 12(a) – (1,031)

Payments for acquisition of land use rights 12(b) (14,609) (14,546)

Payments for purchase of intangible assets 13 (61,132) (5,227)

Placements of fixed deposits held at 

 banks with maturity over three months (6,599,140) (3,128,000)

Uplift of fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months 7,259,140 1,789,640

Net cash received from/(used in) investing activities 496,170 (1,870,278)

Financing activities

Payment for long-term payable to non-controlling interests (5,413) –

Proceeds from shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 6,462 7,102

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company 25 (940,103) (658,368)

Net cash used in financing activities (939,054) (651,266)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 989,964 (832,800)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 2,437,089 3,271,674

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (35,902) (1,785)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 18 3,391,151 2,437,089

The notes, significant accounting policies and principal subsidiaries on pages 92 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing, trading and distribution of sporting goods including footwear, apparel 
and accessories in the PRC. Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, discounts, rebates, value added 
taxes and other sales taxes, which may be analysed as follows:

2010
RMB’000

2009
RMB’000

Anta products 6,766,938 5,567,937
Others* 641,371 306,659

Total turnover 7,408,309 5,874,596

* Others represent sales of products of Sports Lifestyle series, Kids sportswear series, Fila branded products and sales to overseas customers for the 
year.

The Group operated in a single business segment, which was manufacturing, trading and distribution of ANTA branded 
sporting goods including footwear, apparel and accessories. Pursuant to the acquisition of the Fila Business in the PRC on 30 
September 2009, an additional business segment, which is the trading and distribution of the Fila branded sporting goods, has 
been identified. However, except for the Fila PRC Trademarks, the turnover and financial results (in absolute amount) of the 
Fila Business in the PRC are less than 10% of the Group’s turnover and profit respectively for the year ended 31 December 
2010. Therefore, the Directors consider that, the presentation of segment information of Fila Business in the PRC would not be 
meaningful in the annual financial statements. Accordingly, no segmental analysis is presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s 
turnover (2009: Nil).

2. Other Revenue and Other Net Loss

2010
RMB’000

2009
RMB’000

Other revenue
Government grants* 33,289 23,776
Rental income from operating leases 29 63
Others 11,308 5,560

44,626 29,399

Other net loss
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (703) (192)
Others (200) (526)

(903) (718)

* Government grants include cash subsidies granted by various local tax bureaus to the Group’s subsidiaries totalling RMB32,009,000 for the year ended 
31 December 2010 (2009: RMB21,860,000).
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3. Net Finance Income

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Interest income 79,729 51,999

Net foreign exchange gain 30,016 133

109,745 52,132

Interest expense recognised on payable carried at amortised cost (3,487) (906)

Net finance income 106,258 51,226

4. Profit Before Taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

(a) Staff costs(i) & (ii):

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 75,728 51,623

Equity-settled share-based payments 16,522 507

Salaries, wages and other benefits 565,110 484,030

657,360 536,160

(b) Other items:

Cost of inventories sold(i) 4,237,755 3,401,702

Depreciation(i) 66,797 58,574

Amortisation

– lease prepayments 638 588

– intangible assets 16,766 4,481

Subcontracting charges(i) 307,850 271,288

Auditors’ remuneration 3,600 3,260

Operating lease charges in respect of properties

– minimum lease payments 43,829 24,873

Research and development costs(i) & (ii) 135,046 103,286

(i) Cost of inventories sold includes subcontracting charges, staff costs, depreciation and research and development costs, total amounting to 

RMB914,203,000 (2009: RMB786,971,000).

(ii) Research and development costs includes staff costs of employees in the Research and Development Department, which are included in the staff costs 

as disclosed above.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income represents:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Current tax – PRC Corporate Income Tax

 Provision for the year 262,065 158,851

Deferred tax

 Origination of temporary differences (note 22(b)) 34,579 37,862

296,644 196,713

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject 
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

(ii) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macao Complementary (Profits) Tax and Singapore Income Tax has been 
made as the Group does not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, Macao Complementary (Profits) 
Tax and Singapore Income Tax during the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

(iii) In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws, regulations and implementation guidance note, 
certain subsidiaries in the Mainland China are entitled to tax concessions and tax relief whereby the profits of these 
subsidiaries are taxed at preferential income tax rates. Taxation of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are 
calculated using the applicable preferential income tax rates granted to these subsidiaries.

 According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules, dividends receivable by non-PRC 
corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax 
treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax 
Arrangement and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for withholding tax at the 
rate of 5% for dividend income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and holds 
25% or more of the equity interests of the PRC company. As all of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC 
are directly and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of 
the PRC dividend withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on the expected 
dividends to be distributed from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated after 31 
December 2007.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Profit before taxation 1,843,069 1,446,003

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated 

 at the applicable rates in the tax jurisdictions concerned 468,900 363,641

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 13,182 22,582

Tax effect of non-taxable income (5,533) (5,852)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 3,265 4,549

Withholding tax on profits retained by PRC subsidiaries 69,172 49,612

Tax effect of tax concessions (252,342) (237,819)

Actual tax expense 296,644 196,713
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6. Directors’ Remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Company are set out below:

Fees

Basic

salaries,

allowances

and other

benefits

Contributions

to

retirement

benefit

scheme

Equity-settled 

share-based

payments

Discretionary

bonuses Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 21)

Year ended 31 December 2010

Executive Directors

Mr. Ding Shizhong – 1,080 14 – 532 1,626

Mr. Ding Shijia – 500 8 – 148 656

Mr. Lai Shixian – 500 6 80 143 729

Mr. Wang Wenmo – 500 14 – 148 662

Mr. Wu Yonghua – 500 6 – 148 654

Mr. Zheng Jie – 2,600 53 539 – 3,192

– 5,680 101 619 1,119 7,519

Independent Non-Executive 

 Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat 209 – – – – 209

Mr. Lu Hong Te 139 – – – – 139

Mr. Dai Zhongchuan 96 – – – – 96

Total 444 5,680 101 619 1,119 7,963

Year ended 31 December 2009

Executive Directors

Mr. Ding Shizhong – 1,080 10 – 532 1,622

Mr. Ding Shijia – 500 4 – 148 652

Mr. Lai Shixian – 500 6 204 142 852

Mr. Wang Wenmo – 500 10 – 148 658

Mr. Wu Yonghua – 500 6 – 148 654

Mr. Zheng Jie – 2,592 46 – – 2,638

– 5,672 82 204 1,118 7,076

Independent Non-Executive 

 Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat 211 – – – – 211

Mr. Lu Hong Te 141 – – – – 141

Mr. Dai Zhongchuan 64 – – – – 64

Mr. Wong Ying Kuen, Paul 47 – – – – 47

Total 463 5,672 82 204 1,118 7,539

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out 
in note 7 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement 
under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments, 1 (2009: 2) is/are also a Director(s) of the Company whose emoluments are 
disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining 4 (2009: 3) individuals are as follows:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,756 3,449

Discretionary bonuses 2,619 1,742

Equity-settled share-based payments 754 29

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 137 120

8,266 5,340

The emoluments of the 4 (2009: 3) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Number of individuals

2010 2009

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 – 2

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 3 –

RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 – 1

RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 1 –

8. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of 
RMB1,551,113,000 (2009: RMB1,250,941,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the 
year of 2,493,215,000 (2009: 2,490,636,000).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

2010

’000 Shares

2009

’000 Shares

Issued ordinary shares 2,492,088 2,490,000

Effect of share options exercised 1,127 636

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2,493,215 2,490,636

(b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares in issue adjusted for 
the potential dilutive effect caused by the share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme (see note 21(a)) 
assuming they were exercised.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2010

’000 Shares

2009

’000 Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2,493,215 2,490,636

Effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme 7,076 6,915

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 2,500,291 2,497,551
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9. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a profit of RMB12,893,000 (2009: a loss of 
RMB105,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings

Plant and

machinery

Motor

vehicles

Furniture and

fixtures

Retail outlets

leasehold

improvements Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost:

As at 1 January 2009 281,457 144,138 21,705 85,962 – 533,262

Additions 30,612 20,097 566 23,047 507 74,829

Transfer from construction in progress

 (note 11) 30,543 – – 4,047 – 34,590

Disposals – (1,484) (1,190) (830) (8) (3,512)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) – – 283 1,839 3,003 5,125

As at 31 December 2009 and

 1 January 2010 342,612 162,751 21,364 114,065 3,502 644,294

Additions – 9,076 6,149 35,358 1,333 51,916

Transfer from construction in progress

 (note 11) 4,867 – – 8,545 – 13,412

Disposals – (1,279) (1,361) (1,510) – (4,150)

As at 31 December 2010 347,479 170,548 26,152 156,458 4,835 705,472

Accumulated depreciation:

As at 1 January 2009 24,194 28,843 8,887 19,184 – 81,108

Charge for the year 14,656 13,661 3,211 26,517 529 58,574

Written back on disposals – (368) (1,070) (362) (8) (1,808)

As at 31 December 2009 and

 1 January 2010 38,850 42,136 11,028 45,339 521 137,874

Charge for the year 15,731 14,915 3,435 29,871 2,845 66,797

Written back on disposals – (332) (1,200) (1,141) – (2,673)

As at 31 December 2010 54,581 56,719 13,263 74,069 3,366 201,998

Net book value:

As at 31 December 2010 292,898 113,829 12,889 82,389 1,469 503,474

As at 31 December 2009 303,762 120,615 10,336 68,726 2,981 506,420

All of the Group’s buildings and plant and machinery are located in the PRC.
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11. Construction in Progress

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

As at 1 January 123,827 86,541

Additions 39,213 71,876

Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 10) (13,412) (34,590)

As at 31 December 149,628 123,827

Construction in progress represents land and buildings under construction and plant and equipment pending for installation in 
the PRC.

12. Lease Prepayments/Prepayments for Acquisition of Land Use Rights
(a) Lease Prepayments

2010
RMB’000

2009
RMB’000

Cost:
As at 1 January 31,500 30,469
Additions – 1,031

Transfer from prepayments for acquisition of land use rights (note 12(b)) 8,449 –

As at 31 December 39,949 31,500

Accumulated amortisation:
As at 1 January 3,476 2,888

Charge for the year 638 588

As at 31 December 4,114 3,476

Net book value:

As at 31 December 35,835 28,024

Lease prepayments represent prepayments of land use rights premiums to the PRC authorities. The Group’s leasehold land 
is located in the PRC, on which the manufacturing plants are built. The Group is granted land use rights for a period of 50 
years.

(b) Prepayments for Acquisition of Land Use Rights

2010
RMB’000

2009
RMB’000

As at 1 January 36,647 22,101
Additions 14,609 14,546

Transfer to lease prepayments (note 12(a)) (8,449) –

As at 31 December 42,807 36,647

The Group made prepayments for the acquisition of land use rights for certain properties held for own use under 
development in the PRC. The related ownership certificates are under application as at 31 December 2010.



Annual Report 2010  ANTA Sports Products Limited 99

13. Intangible Assets

Computer
software

Patents and
trademarks Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cost:
As at 1 January 2009 5,043 230 5,273
Additions 5,227 – 5,227

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) – 482,150 482,150

As at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 10,270 482,380 492,650

Additions 61,132 – 61,132

As at 31 December 2010 71,402 482,380 553,782

Accumulated amortisation:
As at 1 January 2009 1,128 58 1,186
Charge for the year 1,279 3,202 4,481

As at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 2,407 3,260 5,667

Charge for the year 4,027 12,739 16,766

As at 31 December 2010 6,434 15,999 22,433

Net book value:

As at 31 December 2010 64,968 466,381 531,349

As at 31 December 2009 7,863 479,120 486,983

The amortisation charge for the year is included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses in 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

14. Investments in Subsidiaries/Amounts due from/to Subsidiaries

The Company

2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 133 138

Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are shown on pages 128 and 129.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and are expected to be recovered/paid within one year.

15. Inventories

The Group

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Raw materials 110,784 100,383

Work in progress 87,174 69,122

Finished goods 255,865 204,585

453,823 374,090
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16. Trade and Other Receivables

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade receivables 496,726 273,378 – –

Advance payments to suppliers 327,126 103,015 – –

Deposits and other prepayments 85,401 108,271 265 2,025

Prepayment for construction costs 390 1,454 – –

VAT deductible 73,170 28,864 – –

Interest receivable 6,208 10,339 – 152

Other receivables 1,420 3,615 2 –

990,441 528,936 267 2,177

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. An ageing analysis 
of the trade receivables, none of which is considered to be individually or collectively impaired, is as follows:

The Group

2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000

Current 486,398 269,755

Less than 3 months past due 10,311 3,574

Past due over 3 months 17 49

496,726 273,378

The Group normally grants a credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers. Receivables that were current relate to customers 
for whom there was no recent history of default. Receivables that were past due relate to a number of independent customers 
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on experience, management believes that no impairment allowance 
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are 
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

17. Pledged Deposits
These bank deposits have been pledged to banks as security for certain construction projects.

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Fixed Deposits held at Banks

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Deposits with banks within three months to

 maturity when placed 3,190,021 2,175,441 165,521 492,441

Cash at bank and in hand 201,130 261,648 34,916 103,003

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of

 financial position and consolidated statement

 of cash flows 3,391,151 2,437,089 200,437 595,444

Deposits with banks with more than three months to

 maturity when placed 900,000 1,560,000 – –

4,291,151 3,997,089 200,437 595,444

As at 31 December 2010, the balances that were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to RMB4,083,099,000 (2009: 
RMB3,385,384,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC 
government.
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19. Trade and Other Payables

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Trade payables 474,188 371,158 – –

Receipts in advance from customers 12,592 9,808 – –

Accrued construction costs 1,787 1,683 – –

VAT and other taxes payable 49,245 27,189 – –

Accruals 487,343 373,974 – –

Other payables 45,491 35,774 1,951 3,509

1,070,646 819,586 1,951 3,509

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on 
demand. An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

The Group

2010 2009

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 3 months 450,798 336,724

3 months to 6 months 3,060 13,798

Over 6 months 20,330 20,636

474,188 371,158

20. Employee Retirement Benefits
Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in several defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) 
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government authorities whereby the Group is required to make contributions to 
the Schemes at the rates of 14% to 22% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government authority is responsible for the 
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident 
Fund Scheme Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF 
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer 
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a 
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

21. Equity-settled Share-based Payments
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed on 11 June 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option 
scheme (“the Pre-IPO Option”) whereby a Director and 37 employees of the Company were given the rights to subscribe for 
shares of the Company. The subscription price per share pursuant to the Pre-IPO Option is at a 20% discount to the global 
offering price.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Option has a vesting period of 3 years commencing from the date of listing of the 
Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Listing Date”) and the options are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The 
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.
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21. Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Continued)

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

Number of

options

(’000 shares)

Vesting

conditions

Contractual

life of options

Options granted to a Director:

 – on 12 June 2007 5,250 3 years from the Listing Date of

 the Company’s shares 10 years

Options granted to employees:

 – on 12 June 2007 10,750 3 years from the Listing Date of

 the Company’s shares 10 years

Total share options 16,000

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

2010 2009

Exercise

price

Number of

options

Exercise

price

Number of

options

’000 shares ’000 shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year HK$4.224 12,437 HK$4.224 14,915

Exercised during the year HK$4.224 (1,745) HK$4.224 (2,088)

Lapsed during the year HK$4.224 – HK$4.224 (390)

Outstanding at the end of the year HK$4.224 10,692 HK$4.224 12,437

Exercisable at the end of the year HK$4.224 10,692 HK$4.224 6,897

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was HK$13.76 
(2009: HK$10.52).

The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 had an exercise price of HK$4.224 (2009: HK$4.224) and a 
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7 years (2009: 8 years).
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21. Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme (“the Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ written 
resolution passed on 11 June 2007. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are authorised, at their discretion, to 
invite employees of the Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options at a consideration of 
HK$1 to subscribe share of the Company.

The maximum number of shares that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes 
shall not exceed 30% of the number of issued shares of the Company from time to time. No option may be granted to any 
person such that the total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted 
and to be granted to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the number 
of shares of the Company in issue.

On 15 September 2010, options were granted to a Director and certain employees of the Group pursuant to the Share 
Option Scheme. The options have a vesting period of 3.5 years commencing from the date of grant and the options are 
exercisable within a period of 10 years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the 
Company and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

Number of

options

(’000 shares)

Vesting

conditions

Contractual

life of options

Options granted to a Director:

 – on 15 September 2010 1,000 3.5 years from the date of grant 10 years

Options granted to employees:

 – on 15 September 2010 31,120 3.5 years from the date of grant 10 years

Total share options 32,120

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

2010

Exercise

price

Number of

options

’000 shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year – –

Granted during the year HK$16.20 32,120

Outstanding at the end of the year HK$16.20 32,120

Exercisable at the end of the year HK$16.20 –

No share options were exercised during the year.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an exercise price of HK$16.20 and a weighted average contractual 
life of 10 years.
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21. Equity-settled Share-based Payments (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of 
share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on a Black-
Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this model. 
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2010

Fair value at measurement date HK$4.902

Share price HK$16.20

Exercise price HK$16.20

Expected volatility 40.42%

Expected option life 6 – 7 years

Expected dividends 2.90%

Risk-free interest rates 1.329% – 1.557%

The expected volatility is based on 1 year historical volatility, since the Company does not have a long enough 
price history to calculate historical volatility for the expected terms. The expected dividends are based on historical 
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair 
value measurement of the services received. There were no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

22. Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Balance of provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax 90,002 52,061

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The component of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and the 
movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

Dividend

withholding 

tax

Accrued 

expenses Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 1 January 2009 – – –

Charged/(credited) to consolidated statement of

 comprehensive income (note 5(a)) 49,612 (11,750) 37,862

As at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 49,612 (11,750) 37,862

Charged/(credited) to consolidated statement of

 comprehensive income (note 5(a)) 69,172 (34,593) 34,579

As at 31 December 2010 118,784 (46,343) 72,441
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22. Taxation in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s certain subsidiaries have not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative 
tax losses carried forward of RMB138,848,000 (2009: RMB119,065,000) of which RMB48,667,000 (2009: RMB42,325,000) 
will expire within 5 years under the current tax legislation. The cumulative tax losses have not been recognised as a deferred 
tax asset as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the 
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

As at 31 December 2010, temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits of the Group’s certain subsidiaries in 
the Mainland China amounted to RMB1,583,786,000 (2009: RMB1,380,852,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB79,189,000 
(2009: RMB69,043,000) have not been recognised in respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on the 
distribution of these retained profits, as the Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in the Mainland 
China and the Directors have determined that these profits are not likely to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

23. Share Capital

Par value

Number of

shares

Nominal

value of

ordinary

HK$ ’000 HK$’000

Authorised:

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010 0.10 5,000,000 500,000

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as follows:

Par value

Number of

shares

Nominal value of

ordinary shares

HK$ ’000 HK$’000 RMB’000

Issued and fully paid:

As at 1 January 2009 0.10 2,490,000 249,000 241,654

Shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO

 share option scheme 0.10 2,088 209 184

As at 31 December 2009 and

 1 January 2010 0.10 2,492,088 249,209 241,838

Shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO

 share option scheme 0.10 1,745 174 153

As at 31 December 2010 0.10 2,493,833 249,383 241,991

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year, pursuant to the Company’s Pre-IPO Option (note 21(a)), options were exercised to subscribe for 1,745,000 
(2009: 2,088,000) ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of RMB6,462,000 (2009: RMB7,772,000) of which 
RMB153,000 (2009: RMB184,000) was credited to share capital and the balance of RMB6,309,000 (2009: RMB7,588,000) 
was credited to the share premium account. RMB155,000 (2009: RMB103,000) has been transferred from the share-based 
compensation reserve to the share premium account. No options (2009: 390,000 options) lapsed during the year. As at 31 
December 2010, the total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options outstanding is 42,812,000 
from the Company’s Pre-IPO Option and the Share Option Scheme (2009: 12,437,000 from the Company’s Pre-IPO Option).
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24. Reserves
The Group

Note

Share

premium

Capital

reserve

Statutory

reserve

Exchange

reserve

Share-based

compensation

reserve

Retained

profits

Total

reserves

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(b)) (Note 24(c)) (Note 24(d)) (Note 24(e))

As at 1 January 2009 2,729,633 141,029 164,084 (254,775) 1,262 1,457,985 4,239,218

Profit for the year – – – – – 1,250,941 1,250,941

Other comprehensive 

 income – – – (1,785) – – (1,785)

Total comprehensive income – – – (1,785) – 1,250,941 1,249,156

Dividends approved in respect

 of the previous year 25(b) (394,954) – – – – – (394,954)

Dividends declared in respect

 of the current year 25(a) (263,414) – – – – – (263,414)

Shares issued pursuant to

 Pre-IPO share option 

 scheme 23 7,691 – – – (103) – 7,588

Appropriation to statutory 

 reserve 24(c) – – 85,198 – – (85,198) –

Equity-settled share-based 

 payments 24(e) – – – – 507 – 507

As at 31 December 2009 

 and 1 January 2010 2,078,956 141,029 249,282 (256,560) 1,666 2,623,728 4,838,101

Profit for the year – – – – – 1,551,113 1,551,113

Other comprehensive 

 income – – – (35,902) – – (35,902)

Total comprehensive income – – – (35,902) – 1,551,113 1,515,211

Dividends approved in respect

 of the previous year 25(b) (504,290) – – – – – (504,290)

Dividends declared in respect

 of the current year 25(a) (435,813) – – – – – (435,813)

Shares issued pursuant

 to Pre-IPO share option

 scheme 23 6,464 – – – (155) – 6,309

Appropriation to statutory 

 reserve 24(c) – – 86,168 – – (86,168) –

Equity-settled share-based 

 payments 24(e) – – – – 16,522 – 16,522

As at 31 December 2010 1,145,317 141,029 335,450 (292,462) 18,033 4,088,673 5,436,040
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24. Reserves (Continued)

The Company

Share

premium

Exchange

reserve

Share-based

compensation

reserve

Retained

profits

Total

reserves

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(d)) (Note 24(e))

As at 1 January 2009 2,729,633 (313,383) 1,262 86,805 2,504,317

Loss for the year – – – (105) (105)

Other comprehensive income – (2,417) – – (2,417)

Total comprehensive income – (2,417) – (105) (2,522)

Dividends approved in respect of

 the previous year 25(b) (394,954) – – – (394,954)

Dividends declared in respect of

 the current year 25(a) (263,414) – – – (263,414)

Shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO

 share option scheme 23 7,691 – (103) – 7,588

Equity-settled share-based payments 24(e) – – 507 – 507

As at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 2,078,956 (315,800) 1,666 86,700 1,851,522

Profit for the year – – – 12,893 12,893

Other comprehensive income – (44,045) – – (44,045)

Total comprehensive income – (44,045) – 12,893 (31,152)

Dividends approved in respect of

 the previous year 25(b) (504,290) – – – (504,290)

Dividends declared in respect of

 the current year 25(a) (435,813) – – – (435,813)

Shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO

 share option scheme 23 6,464 – (155) – 6,309

Equity-settled share-based payments 24(e) – – 16,522 – 16,522

As at 31 December 2010 1,145,317 (359,845) 18,033 99,593 903,098

(a) Share Premium and distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the Company may be applied for payment 
of distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution or 
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves, including share premium and retained profits, of the Company as at 31 
December 2010 was HK$1,075,731,000 (2009: HK$2,124,812,000).

(b) Capital Reserve

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group prior to the listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange, Anta Enterprise Group Limited (“Anta Enterprise”) entered into a deed of assignment with the controlling 
shareholders of the Company whereby advances from the controlling shareholders to Anda International Investment Limited 
totalling HK$144,376,000 (equivalent to RMB141,029,000) were assigned to Anta Enterprise at a consideration of HK$1.0. 
This assignment of debt was reflected as a reduction in the advances from the controlling shareholders and a corresponding 
increase in the capital reserve during 2007.
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24. Reserves (Continued)

(c) Statutory Reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after 
offsetting prior year losses) to the reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to the 
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders. The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval 
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase paid-in capital of the subsidiary, provided that the 
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

(d) Exchange Reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of 
operations outside Mainland China.

(e) Share-based Compensation Reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair value of employee services in respect of share options granted to 
certain directors and employees of the Group.

(f) Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure in the light of changes in economic conditions so as to 
maintain a sound capital position. Total capital is defined as shareholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25. Dividends
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Interim dividend declared and paid after the interim period of HK20 cents

 per ordinary share (2009: HK12 cents per ordinary share) 435,813 263,414

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period of HK25 cents

 per ordinary share (2009: HK12 cents per ordinary share) 527,383 263,108

No special dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

 (2009: HK11 cents per ordinary share) – 241,182

963,196 767,704

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period have not been recognised as a liability as at 
the end of the reporting period.
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25. Dividends (Continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid 
during the year:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2009,

 approved and paid during the year, of HK12 cents per ordinary share

 (2008: HK10 cents per ordinary share) 263,108 219,419

Special dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2009,

 approved and paid during the year, of HK11 cents per ordinary share 

 (2008: HK8 cents per ordinary share) 241,182 175,535

504,290 394,954

26. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, commodity price and currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s 
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to 
manage these risks are described below:

(a) Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and deposits with banks. In respect of trade 
and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. 
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk on trade and other receivables is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of 
each customer rather than the industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations 
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual customers. As at the end of the reporting 
period, 10% (2009: 9%) and 31% (2009: 30%) of the total trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer 
and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are 
set out in note 16.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial 
institutions with established credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.

(b) Liquidity Risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements centrally, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves 
of cash and readily realisable short term investment of cash surplus and adequate committed lines of funding from major 
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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26. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Continued)

(b) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and 
the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments 
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current as at the end of the reporting period) and the 
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

The Group

Carrying
Contractual undiscounted cash flows amount on
More than More than consolidated

Within 1 year but 2 years but statement
1 year or less than less than More than of financial

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total position
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables 1,070,646 – – – 1,070,646 1,070,646
Amount due to a related party 2,745 – – – 2,745 2,745
Long-term payable to 
 non-controlling interests – 3,982 11,947 87,608 103,537 41,582

1,073,391 3,982 11,947 87,608 1,176,928 1,114,973

As at 31 December 2009
Trade and other payables 819,586 – – – 819,586 819,586
Amount due to a related party 813 – – – 813 813

Long-term payable to 
 non-controlling interests – 4,124 12,371 94,841 111,336 44,006

820,399 4,124 12,371 94,841 931,735 864,405

The Company

2010 2009

Carrying Carrying

amount on amount on

Within statement Within statement

1 year or of financial 1 year or of financial

on demand Total position on demand Total position

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Other payables and accruals 1,951 1,951 1,951 3,509 3,509 3,509

Amounts due to subsidiaries – – – 319 319 319

1,951 1,951 1,951 3,828 3,828 3,828
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26. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Continued)

(c) Interest Rate Risk

(i) Interest Rate Profile

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from cash at bank. All of the bank deposits of the Group are fixed rate 
instruments and are insensitive to any change in market interest rates. The following table details the interest rate 
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s interest-generating financial assets as at the end of the reporting period:

The Group

2010 2009

Effective Effective

interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000

Financial assets

Fixed rate instruments:

Pledged deposits 3.24% 9,640 3.24% 9,640

Bank deposits 0.01%-3.50% 4,090,021 0.01% – 3.24% 3,735,441

4,099,661 3,745,081

Variable rate instruments:

Cash at bank and in hand 0.01% 201,130 0.01% 261,648

201,130 261,648

Total instruments 4,300,791 4,006,729

Fixed rate instruments as a percentage

 of total instruments 95% 93%

The Company

2010 2009

Effective Effective

interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000

Financial assets

Fixed rate instruments:

Bank deposits 0.01%-0.87% 165,521 0.01% – 2.05% 492,441

165,521 492,441

Variable rate instruments:

Cash at bank and in hand 0.01% 34,916 0.01% 103,003

34,916 103,003

Total instruments 200,437 595,444

Fixed rate instruments as a percentage

 of total instruments 83% 83%
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26. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Continued)

(c) Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity Analysis

As at 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all 
other variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profit for the 
year by approximately RMB36,874,000 (2009: RMB38,998,000). Other components of consolidated equity would not 
be affected (2009: Nil) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis has been performed assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of 
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose 
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of reporting period. The impact on the Group’s profit after tax 
(and retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest 
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

(d) Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through contractual obligations, bank deposits, amounts due to 
intermediate holding company and long term payable to non-controlling interests that are denominated in a foreign currency 
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving 
rise to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rate 
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(i) Exposure to Currency Risk

The following table details the Group’s major exposure as at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising 
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which 
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the 
spot rate at the end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of 
operations outside Mainland China into the Group’s presentation currency is excluded.

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Renminbi)

2010 2010 2009 2009

Hong United Hong United

Kong States Kong States

Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Cash and cash equivalents 99 168 71 873

Trade and other receivables 1,048 4,479 – 1,789

Amount due to intermediate 

 holding company (17,018) – (229,086) –

Trade and other payables (95) (12,125) (203) (6,168)

Long-term payable to 

 non-controlling interests – (41,582) – (44,006)

Net exposure to currency risk (15,966) (49,060) (229,218) (47,512)
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26. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Continued)

(d) Currency Risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity Analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other 
components of consolidated equity that would arise if the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant 
exposure as at the end of the reporting period had changed, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

2010 2009

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) profit after Effect (decrease) profit after Effect

in foreign tax and on other in foreign tax and on other

exchange retained components exchange retained components

rates profits of equity rates profits of equity

in % RMB’000 RMB’000 in % RMB’000 RMB’000

Hong Kong dollars 5 (679) – 5 (10,030) –

(5) 679 – (5) 10,030 –

United States dollars 5 (2,446) – 5 (2,377) –

(5) 2,446 – (5) 2,377 –

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on 
each of the group entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into 
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those 
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency as at the end of the reporting 
period, including inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other 
than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from 
the translation of the financial statements of operations outside Mainland China into the Group’s presentation currency. 
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

(e) Commodity Price Risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group’s products included polymers, plastics and cotton. The 
Group is exposed to price fluctuations of these raw materials which are influenced by global as well as regional supply and 
demand conditions. Price fluctuations of raw materials could adversely affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group 
historically has not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity price changes.

(f) Business Risk

The Group’s primary business is the design, manufacturing and distribution of branded sports footwear, apparel and related 
accessories. The Group’s financial results are influenced by the rapidity with which designs are copied by competitors and 
reproduced at much lower prices, as well as by the Group’s ability to continue to create new designs that find favour in 
the market place, maintain a larger network of distributors, manufacture sufficient quantities to meet fashionable sales, and 
dispose of excess inventories without excessive losses. The performance of the newly acquired Fila business in the PRC is 
dependent on the market perception and acceptance of the Fila brand and the images associated with the brand. Based on 
these factors, the Group may experience significant fluctuations in its future financial results.

(g) Fair Values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 
2010 except that the fair value of the long-term payable to non-controlling interests is approximately RMB52,000,000 (2009: 
RMB60,000,000), which is estimated using the expected future payments discounted at prevailing market interest rate as at 
the end of the reporting period.
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27. Commitments
(a) Operating Leases

As at 31 December 2010, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as 
follows:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Within 1 year 38,297 40,338

After 1 year but within 5 years 42,527 35,803

After 5 years 2,800 4,480

83,624 80,621

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 
years, with an option to renew when all terms are renegotiated.

(b) Capital Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2010 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Contracted for 81,970 103,832

Authorised but not contracted for 322,855 158,637

404,825 262,469

28. Material Related Party Transactions
(a) Transactions with a Related Party

During the year ended 31 December 2010, in addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the 

consolidated financial statements, transactions with 泉州安大包裝有限公司 or Quanzhou Anda Packaging Co., Ltd.* 
(“Quanzhou Anda”) are considered as related party transactions as Quanzhou Anda is effectively 60% owned by Mr. Ding 

Shizhong and 40% by 福建安大輕工發展有限公司 or Fujian Anda Light Industrial Development Co., Ltd.*, which is effectively 
30% owned by Mr. Ding Shizhong and 40% by Mr. Lai Shixian. Both Mr. Ding Shizhong and Mr. Lai Shixian are Executive 

Directors of the Company.

During the year, the Group purchased raw materials from Quanzhou Anda totalling RMB14,912,000 (2009: RMB7,378,000). 
The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that such purchases were conducted on normal commercial terms and in 
the ordinary course of business.

* The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The official names of  these companies are in Chinese.

(b) Balance with a Related Party

As at the end of the reporting period, trade balance due to Quanzhou Anda amounted to RMB2,745,000 (2009: 
RMB813,000). The amount due to Quanzhou Anda is unsecured, interest free and is expected to be paid within one year.
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28. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c) Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as 
disclosed in note 6 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

2010

RMB’000

2009

RMB’000

Short-term employee benefits 8,553 8,281

Equity-settled share-based payments 901 233

9,454 8,514

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 4(a)).

29. Acquisition of Subsidiaries
Acquisition of Fila Business in PRC

Effective on 1 October 2009, the Group acquired the entire interest in Fila Marketing (Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiary and 
an 85% equity interest in Full Prospect Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fila Business in the PRC”) from their respective 
owners. Fila Marketing (Hong Kong) Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Fila (Macao) Ltd, are responsible for retailing 
products bearing the Fila PRC Trademarks in Hong Kong and Macao respectively. Full Prospect Limited and its subsidiaries own 
and manage the Fila PRC Trademarks in mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao.

Fila Business in the PRC contributed turnover of RMB18,417,000 and incurred loss of RMB13,820,000 to the Group for the 
period from 1 October 2009 to 31 December 2009. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2009, the Group’s turnover 
would have been approximately RMB5,951,963,000, and profit for the year would have been approximately RMB1,223,006,000. 

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the acquisition date are as follows:

Preacquisition

 carrying 

amount

RMB’000

Fair value

 adjustment

RMB’000

Recognised 

value on

 acquisition

RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment (note 10) 5,125 – 5,125

Intangible assets (note 13) 449,477 32,673 482,150

Inventories 18,848 (9,055) 9,793

Trade and other receivables 19,627 – 19,627

Cash and cash equivalents 44,478 – 44,478

Trade and other payables (13,102) – (13,102)

Loan from the vendor of Fila Business in the PRC (See below) (118,958) – (118,958)

Current taxation (619) – (619)

Long-term payable to non-controlling interests (43,947) – (43,947)

Net identifiable assets 360,929 23,618 384,547

Non-controlling interests (59,040)

Consideration 325,507

Satisfied by:

 Purchase consideration settled in cash 325,507

Net cash outflow on acquisition:

 Purchase consideration 325,507

 Cash and cash equivalents acquired (44,478)

 Settlement of Loan from the vendor of Fila Business in the PRC 

  (See above) 118,958

Net cash outflow on acquisition 399,987
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30. Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and 
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the 
consolidated financial statements. Other than the assumptions relating to the valuation of fair value of share options granted 
as set forth in note 21, the Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most significant estimates and 
judgements used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairments

The management determines the impairment loss if circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not 
be recoverable. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable 
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, 
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the value in 
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgement 
relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available 
information in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based 
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating costs.

(b) Net Realisable Value of Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to 
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical experience 
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer 
preferences and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimates at the 
end of each reporting period.

(c) Depreciation and Amortisation

The management reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation 
and amortisation expenses charge for the year. The management determines that the remaining useful life of the Fila PRC 
Trademark is 37 years based on management’s expertise in the sportswear industry. It could change significantly as a result 
of changes in the sportswear market. The useful lives of other assets are based on the Group’s historical experience with 
similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and amortisation expenses for 
future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

(d) Provision for Deferred Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The management 
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions 
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax 
losses not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, 
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is 
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(e) Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon acquisition of subsidiaries

In connection with acquisition of subsidiaries, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are adjusted to their estimated 
fair values on date of acquisition. The determination of fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed involves 
management’s judgement and assumptions. Any change in such judgement and assumptions would affect the fair value of 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and would change the amount of depreciation or amortisation expenses recognised 
relating to those identifiable property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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31. Revised IFRSs
The IASB has issued two revised IFRSs, a number of amendments to IFRSs and two new Interpretation that are first effective for 
the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s 
financial statements:

• IFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

• Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements

• Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting policies but none of these changes in policies have a material impact on the 
current or comparative periods, for the following reasons:

• The impact of the majority of the revisions to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s financial 
statements as these changes will first be effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant transaction (for example, a 
business combination or a disposal of a subsidiary) and there is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded in respect 
of previous such transactions.

• The impact of the amendments to IFRS 3 (in respect of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and IAS 27 (in respect 
of allocation of losses to non-controlling interests (previously known as minority interests) in excess of their equity interest) 
have had no material impact as there is no requirement to restate amounts recorded in previous periods and no such 
deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current period.

• The amendment introduced by the Improvements to IFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respect of IAS 17, Leases, resulted 
in a change of classification of certain of the Group‘s leasehold land interests located in the PRC, but this had no material 
impact on the amounts recognised in respect of these leases as the lease premiums in respect of all such leases are fully 
paid and are being amortised over the remaining length of the lease term.

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as follows:

• As a result of the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008), any business combination acquired on or after 1 January 2010 will 
be recognised in accordance with the new requirements and detailed guidance contained in IFRS 3 (revised 2008). These 
include the following changes in accounting policies:

— Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder’s fees, legal fees, 
due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees, will be expensed as incurred, whereas previously they 
were accounted for as part of the cost of the business combination and therefore impacted the amount of goodwill 
recognised.

— If the Group holds interests in the acquiree immediately prior to obtaining control, these interests will be treated as 
if disposed of and re-acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining control. Previously, the step-up approach would 
have been applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

— Contingent consideration will be measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the 
measurement of that contingent consideration unrelated to facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date 
will be recognised in profit or loss, whereas previously these changes were recognised as an adjustment to the cost of 
the business combination and therefore impacted the amount of goodwill recognised.

— If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other temporary deductible differences and these fail to meet the 
recognition criteria for deferred tax assets at the date of acquisition, then any subsequent recognition of these assets 
will be recognised in profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to goodwill as was previously the policy.
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31. Revised IFRSs (Continued)

— In addition to the Group’s existing policy of measuring the non-controlling interests (previously known as the “minority 
interests”) in the acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, 
in future the Group may elect, on a transaction by transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interest at fair 
value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 3 (revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be applied 
prospectively to any business combinations in the current or future periods. The new policy in respect of recognition in 
the movement of deferred tax assets will also be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses and other temporary 
deductible differences acquired in previous business combinations. No adjustments have been made to the carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that arose from business combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the application of this 
revised standard.

• As a result of the adoption of IAS 27 (amended 2008), the following changes in policies will be applied as from 1 January 
2010:

— If the Group acquires an additional interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will be accounted for 
as a transaction with equity shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their capacity as owners and therefore no 
goodwill will be recognised as a result of such transactions. Similarly, if the Group disposes of part of its interest in a 
subsidiary but still retains control, this transaction will also be accounted for as a transaction with equity shareholders 
(the non-controlling interests) in their capacity as owners and therefore no profit or loss will be recognised as a result 
of such transactions. Previously the Group would have treated such transactions as step-up transactions and partial 
disposals, respectively.

— If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in 
that subsidiary, with any remaining interest retained by the Group being recognised at fair value as if reacquired. In 
addition, as a result of the adoption of the amendment to IFRS 5, if at the end of reporting period the Group has the 
intention to dispose of a controlling interest in a subsidiary, the entire interest in that subsidiary will be classified as 
held for sale (assuming that the held for sale criteria in IFRS 5 are met) irrespective of the extent to which the Group 
will retain an interest. Previously such transactions would have been treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 27, these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively to 
transactions in current or future periods and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

• As a result of the amendments to IAS 27, as from 1 January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly owned subsidiary 
will be allocated between the controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion to their interests in that entity, even if 
this results in a deficit balance within consolidated equity being attributed to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if the 
allocation of losses to the non-controlling interests would have resulted in a deficit balance, the losses were only allocated 
to the non-controlling interests if the non-controlling interests were under a binding obligation to make good the losses. 
In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS 27, this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively and 
therefore previous periods have not been restated.

• As a result of the amendment to IAS 17, Leases, arising from the “Improvements to IFRSs (2009)” omnibus standard, the 
Group has re-evaluated the classification of its interests in leasehold land as to whether, in the Group’s judgement, the lease 
transfers significantly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the land such that the Group is in a position economically 
similar to that of a purchaser. The Group has concluded that the classification of such leases as operating leases continues 
to be appropriate.
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32. Non-adjusting Event after the Reporting Period
After the end of the reporting period the Directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 25.

33. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued But 
Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December 2010
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and 
Interpretations and one new standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which have not 
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for accounting 

periods beginning on or after

Revised IAS 24 Related party disclosures 1 January 2011

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011

Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes 1 January 2012

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period 
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s 
results of operations and financial position.

34. Immediate and Ultimate Holding Company
The Directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31 December 2010 to be Anta 
International Group Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This entity does not produce financial statements available 
for public use.

35. Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 21 February 2011.



ANTA Sports Products Limited  Annual Report 2010120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A) Statement of Compliance
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 February 2007. The shares of the Company were listed on the Main 
Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 10 July 2007.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations, promulgated by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (“IASB”).

These consolidated financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 
and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 
Limited.

(B) Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. The 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (RMB), rounded to the nearest thousand, and are prepared on the 
historical cost basis except that the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair value as explained in 
(L) below.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial 
statements and estimates with major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 30.  

(C) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 include the financial statements of the Company 
and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently 
are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group 
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group 
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly 
or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of 
those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that 
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling 
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests 
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year 
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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(C) Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial 
liabilities in accordance with (M).

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, 
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect 
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a 
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control 
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when 
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see (I)).

(D) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see (I)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the 
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if 
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

– Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of 
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of completion.

– Plant and machinery 5-10 years
– Motor vehicles 5 years
– Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
– Retail outlets leasehold improvements 2 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(E) Construction in Progress
Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction and equipment pending for installation, 
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see (I)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs 
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment when substantially all of the activities 
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its intended 
use.

(F) Lease Prepayments
Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities. Land use rights are carried at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see (I)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the respective periods of the rights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(G) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less 
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see (I)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ 
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use 
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

– patents and trademarks 10-40 years
– computer software 3-5 years

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

(H) Operating Lease Charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or 
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more 
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit 
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the 
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(I) Impairment of Assets
(i) Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each end of the reporting period to determine whether 
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the 
attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

– significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
– a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
– it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and
– significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the 

debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting 
is material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk 
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for 
financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit 
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal 
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in 
respect of trade receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not 
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group 
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and 
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and 
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(I) Impairment of Assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each end of the reporting period to identify indications that the 
following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

– property, plant and equipment;
– lease prepayments;
– intangible assets;
– construction in progress; and
– investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

– Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

– Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating 
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating 
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, 
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value 
in use, if determinable.

– Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year 
in which the reversals are recognised.

(J) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories 
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of 
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal 
occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(K) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for 
impairment of doubtful debts (see (I)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any 
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less 
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see (I)).

(L) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Performances of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are managed and their performances are evaluated on a 
fair value basis. A financial asset is classified in this category at initial recognition in accordance with the Group’s investment 
strategy. At each end of the reporting period, the fair value is re-measured with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in 
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss includes the interest income earned on these financial assets. 
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(M) Payables
Trade and other payables and payable to non-controlling interests are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and other payables 
and payable to non-controlling interests are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be 
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(N) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(O) Employee Benefits
(i) Short Term Employee Benefits and Contributions to Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or 
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules and 
regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are 
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

(ii) Share-based Payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a 
share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton 
Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the 
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair 
value of the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to 
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless 
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based 
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of 
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is 
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is 
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share 
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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(P) Income Tax
(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and 

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respectively.

(ii) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
as at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax 
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits 
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that 
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation 
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of 
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried 
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support 
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into 
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or 
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted as at the end of the reporting 
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and is reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any 
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each other and are 
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, 
if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the following additional conditions are met:

–  in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

–  in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on 
either:

–  the same taxable entity; or

–  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or 
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(Q) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive 
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, 
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible 
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also 
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(R) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss 
as follows:

(i) Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has accepted the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes 
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts, rebates and goods returns.

(ii) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iii) Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered 
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the 
use of the leased asset.

(iv) Government Grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance that 
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the 
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which 
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised as deferred 
income and subsequently recognised as revenue in profit or loss upon satisfaction of the conditions attaching to the grants.

(S) Translation of Foreign Currencies
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency that best reflects 
the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional currency”). The 
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries outside Mainland China is Hong Kong dollars and the functional 
currency of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is Renminbi. The financial statements are presented in RMB (“presentation 
currency”) for easy reference to international investors.

(ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at the foreign exchange rates ruling 
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign 
exchange rates ruling as at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Mainland China are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the 
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position’s items are translated into 
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates as at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Mainland China, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that 
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(T) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(U) Research and Development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development 
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources 
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is 
incurred.

(V) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

(W) Related Parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant 
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of such 
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(iv) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant 
influence of such individuals; or

(v) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a 
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that 
individual in their dealings with the entity.

(X) Segment Reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial 
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and 
assessing the performance of, the group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar 
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, 
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the 
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Name of company

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Issued and fully

paid up/

registered capital

Attributable

equity interest

Direct Indirect Principal activities

Anta Enterprise Group Limited

 (“Anta Enterprise”)

BVI/Hong Kong USD10,000/

USD50,000

100% – Investment holding

Motive Force Sports Products 

 Limited (“Motive Force”)

BVI/Hong Kong USD10,000/

USD50,000

100% – Investment holding

Anda International Investment 

 Limited (“Anda Int’l Inv”)

Hong Kong HKD1,000,000/

HKD1,000,000

– 100% Investment holding

ANTA International Limited

 (“ANTA Int’l”)

Hong Kong HKD1/HKD10,000 – 100% Management services

安踏（中國）有限公司（「安踏中國」）
ANTA (China) Co., Ltd. (“ANTA China”)

 (Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC HKD600,000,000/

HKD600,000,000

– 100% Manufacturing and

 trading of sporting

 goods

安踏（長汀）體育用品有限公司
 （「安踏長汀」）
ANTA (Changting) Sports Products

 Co., Ltd. (“ANTA Changting”)

 (Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC HKD80,000,000/

HKD80,000,000

– 100% Manufacturing of

 sporting goods

安踏（廈門）體育用品有限公司
 （「安踏廈門」）
ANTA (Xiamen) Sports Goods

 Co., Ltd. (“ANTA Xiamen”)

 (Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC HKD50,000,000/

HKD50,000,000

– 100% Manufacturing of

 sporting goods

安踏（泉州）體育用品有限公司
 （「安踏泉州」）
ANTA (Quanzhou) Sports Products

 Limited (“ANTA Quanzhou”)

 (Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC HKD100,000,000/

HKD100,000,000

– 100% Manufacturing of

 sporting goods

廈門安踏貿易有限公司
 （「廈門安踏貿易」）
Xiamen ANTA Trading Co., Ltd.

 (“Xiamen ANTA Trading”)

 (Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC HKD300,000,000/

HKD300,000,000

– 100% Trading of sporting

 goods

廈門安踏投資管理有限公司
 （「廈門安踏投資」）
Xiamen ANTA Investment

 Management Company Limited

 (“Xiamen ANTA Investment”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB200,000,000/

RMB200,000,000

– 100% Investment holding

晉江安踏貿易有限公司
 （「晉江安踏貿易」）
Jinjiang ANTA Trading Co., Ltd.

 (“Jinjiang ANTA Trading”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB10,000,000/

RMB10,000,000

– 100% Trading of sporting

 goods
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Name of company

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Issued and fully

paid up/

registered capital

Attributable

equity interest

Direct Indirect Principal activities

北京安踏體育用品有限公司
 （「北京安踏」）
Beijing ANTA Sports Products Limited

 (“Beijing ANTA”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB10,000,000/

RMB10,000,000

– 100% Retailing of sporting

 goods

廈門安踏實業有限公司
 （「廈門安踏實業」）
Xiamen ANTA Industrial Limited

 (“Xiamen ANTA Industrial”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB100,000,000/

RMB100,000,000

– 100% Manufacturing of

 sporting goods

廈門安踏電子商務有限公司
 （「廈門安踏電子商務」）
Xiamen ANTA E-Commerce Limited

 (“Xiamen ANTA E-Commerce”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB10,000,000/

RMB10,000,000

– 100% Retailing of sporting

 goods

Fila Marketing (Hong Kong) Limited

 (“Fila Marketing”)

Hong Kong HKD79,800,000/

HKD79,800,000

– 100% Retailing of sporting

 goods

Fila (Macao) Limited

 (“Fila Macao”)

Macao MOP25,000/

MOP25,000

– 100% Retailing of sporting

 goods

Full Prospect Limited

 (“Full Prospect”)

Cayman Islands/

 Hong Kong

USD100/

USD50,000

– 85% Investment holding

Full Prospect (IP) PTE Ltd

 (“Full Prospect IP”)

Singapore/

 Hong Kong

USD200,000/

USD200,000

– 85% Trademark holding

Speed Benefit Limited

 (“Speed Benefit”)

Hong Kong HKD1,000,000/

HKD1,000,000

– 85% Investment holding

斐樂體育有限公司
（「斐樂中國」）
Fila PRC Co. Limited (“Fila China”)

(Notes (i) and (iii))

PRC USD9,000,000/

USD9,000,000

– 85% Trading of sporting

 goods

廈門斐樂體育用品有限公司
 （「廈門斐樂」）
Xiamen Fila Sports Products Limited

 (“Xiamen Fila”)

 (Notes (ii) and (iii))

PRC RMB20,000,000/

RMB20,000,000

– 85% Retailing of sporting

 goods

Notes:

(i) These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

(ii) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

(iii) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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GLOSSARY

AGM
The annual general meeting 
of the Company or any 
adjournment thereof 

Anda Holdings
Anda Holdings International 
Limited

Anda Investments
Anda Investments Capital 
Limited

ANTA
ANTA Brand

Anta International
Anta International Group 
Holdings Limited

ANTA Sports/
Company
ANTA Sports Products Limited

ANTA Store(s)
ANTA authorised retail store(s)

ASP/Average 
Selling Price
Sales amount divided by sales 
quantity

Average Sales Floor 
Area
Practical sales floor area, 
excluding warehouse, divided 
by number of stores

Board
The Board of Directors of the 
Company

BVI
The British Virgin Islands

CBA
Chinese Basketball Association

CCTV
China Central Television

CCTV5
China Central Television Sports 
Channel

China/PRC
People’s Republic of China

COC
Chinese Olympic Committee

CPI
Consumer Price Index

CSD
Chinese Sports Delegation

CSR
Corporate Social Responsibility

CUBA
Chinese University Basketball 
Association

ERP
Enterprise Resources Planning 
System, a business support 
system that maintains in a 
single database for a variety of 
business functions

Executive Directors
Executive directors of the 
Company

Fila Business in the 
PRC
Entire interest in Fila Marketing 
and its subsidiary and an 85% 
equity interest in Full Prospect 
and its subsidiaries.

Fila PRC 
Trademarks
All trademarks bearing “FILA” 
brand registered in the 
Mainland China, Hong Kong 
and Macao

Fila Products
Sportswear products bearing 
the Fila PRC Trademarks

GDP
Gross Domestic Product

Group
The Company and its 
subsidiaries

Hong Kong
The Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region of the 
PRC

Hong Kong Dollars, 
HK$
Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful 
currency of Hong Kong

Hong Kong Stock 
Exchange/HKEX
The Stock Exchange of Hong 
Kong Limited

Independent Non-
Executive Directors
Independent non-executive 
directors of the Company

IPO
Initial Public Offering

Kids Sportswear 
series
ANTA’s sportswear products 
for children aged between 8 
and 14 

Listing Rules
The Rules Governing the 
Listing of Securities on The 
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 
Limited

MSCI
Morgan Stanley Capital 
International Global Standard 
Index

NBA
National Basketball Association

ODM
Original Design Manufacturer

OEM
Original Equipment 
Manufacturer

POP
Point of purchase advertising

POS
ANTA stores’ point of sales

PPI
Producer Price Index

R&D
Research and development

RMB
Renminbi, the lawful currency 
of the PRC

Share(s)
Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 
each in the share capital of the 
Company

Shareholders
Shareholders of the Company

Sports Lifestyle 
series
ANTA’s trendy leisure 
sportswear products for 
consumers aged between 15 
and 28

Total Sales Floor 
Area
Practical sales floor area, 
excluding warehouse

TVC
Television Commercial

WTA
Women’s Tennis Association

Year
The year ended 31 December 
2010
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